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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

Huang Juncan Chairman
BEE T

| am pleased to present to you the business review and outlook
of Gemdale Properties and Investment Corporation Limited (the
“Company”), and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for
the fifteen months ended 31 December 2013.

The fiscal year 2013 was an encouraging one for the Group.
Despite the investors tended to take a wait-and-see attitude
towards the capital market in Hong Kong, we still completed our
new shares issuance, raising approximately HK$700 million in
February. This new shares placement not only broadened the
capital base, it also introduced many world-class investment
funds into the Company which provides solid foundation for the
rapid growth of the Group in the future. In May, the Company
has been listed as one of the constituent stocks of MSCI China
Index in MSCI Global Small Cap Indices. In October, Gemdale
Corporation completed the injection of six residential projects
into the Company. Together with our newly acquired projects,
as of the end of this financial year, we owned a land bank of
approximately 4 million square metres, representing an increase
of 350% as compared to the end of last year, thus maximising
the sales size and profitability in the coming years. In March
2014, the Group also completed a three-year term syndicate
loan in the sum of US$185 million with consolidated interest rate
at less than 5%. This further provides financial resources to the
Group for new land bank acquisition and general working capital
for further development.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

The Group also achieved record highs in terms of net profit.
Its net profits attributable to shareholders amounted to
approximately HK$1,149 million, representing a significant
increase of 131% over the twelve months period ended 30
September 2012 in previous financial year. The contracted
sales of the Group also set another historical high. For the
fifteen months ended 31 December 2013, the Group achieved
contracted sales of RMB4,232 million (equivalent to HK$5,357
million). Recognised revenue from property development was
HK$37 million, representing an increase of 107% over the twelve
months period ended 30 September 2012.

In 2013, the global economy continued to experience a slow
recovery from the financial crisis. In the US, the economy
continued to grow in slow pace and the Federal Reserve
gradually tightened back its third round of quantitative easing.
Meanwhile, the economy in the European Union rebounded
from its trough and showed signs of recovery in its economy.
Emerging markets and other developing countries are suffering
from the tapering of quantitative easing from Federal Reserve,
which causes funds outflow from their economies, drop in
currencies and slower economy growth.

In China, its economic growth was relatively stable with a
growth rate of 7.7%. Most economic indicators during the year
continued to remain positive, easing worries about worsening
economic downturn. In particular, the policies stated in the report
of the Third Plenary of the 18th Central Committee of China’s
Communist Party addressed many issues related to the PRC
property sector, including the promulgation of regulations and
policies on accelerating the urbanisation progress, segregating
the management between commercial housing and affordable
housing and changing the rural land use, which are favourable
to facilitating sustainable and healthy development of the sector.

The property sector in the PRC experienced a high growth
rate in 2013, both in terms of transaction volume and prices.
It is resulted from the strong rigid demand in first and second
tier core cities while the macro property market was further
segmented by the sluggish growth in small and medium cities.
Leading companies in the property sector mostly followed this
trend and policy requirements. By focusing on small-to-medium
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

size residential property development with rigid demand, rapid
turnaround and flexible operating strategies, they were able
to maintain faster growth and larger market share and further
enhance sector concentration. Property developers focus in
improving the overall efficiency, higher sales turnover and firmly
seize the new opportunities brought about by urbanisation, and
retain their core competitiveness in the highly competitive and
rapidly consolidating market.

The Group’s strategy of acquiring new projects has primarily
been “focus on first-and-second tier cities with large population”.
In current fiscal year, the Group acquired four quality plots of
land in Shenyang, Xi’an and Dalian with total gross floor area
of approximately 1.34 million square metres in government land
auctions, further enhancing the Group’s land reserves in its
core region. Based on the land acquisition prices, the average
cost of our new land acquisitions in FY 2013 was approximately
RMB2,100 per square metre. After the completion of the asset
injection by Gemdale Corporation, it added another 1.5 million
square metres land bank to the Group. As of 31 December
2013, the Group’s overall land bank amounted to a total GFA of
approximately 4 million square metres.

The Group’s investment properties continued to provide stable
cashflow and profits to the Group, with its properties almost
fully leased out.

We endeavour to actively take part in every land auction
opportunity in cities with selected investments, and follow
disciplined investment-decision procedures and to be cautious
in bidding. As to investment opportunities, we focused on
residential properties with rigid demand and property complexes
in the downtown area of the cities. We placed strong emphasis
on expanding our land bank in the affluent first- and second-tier
cities under Gemdale Corporation’s existing operational
coverage with the objectives of maximising our scale and
strengthening our operations in these existing cities.

In 2013, we sustained our prudent financial management
strategies by relying on cash-on-hand and shareholder’s loans
from Gemdale Corporation for new land acquisitions and
controlling our net gearing ratio.
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During current fiscal period, we strengthened our equity through
new shares placement to mutual funds and Gemdale Corporation
for raising cash and paying consideration for acquiring parent
company’s residential projects. As at 31 December 2013,
our net debt-to-equity ratio has been increased to 31% (30
September 2012: 0%), such net gearing ratio is currently within
a comfortable range for our operations. In addition, our capital
structure is more flexible due to the continuous support from
our parent company. As at 31 December 2013, the unpaid land
premium amounted to approximately RMB835 million, a low
level compared to our overall land bank cost and our peers in
the industry.

Looking forward to 2014, the Group will remain focused in
expanding sales size and enhancing profitability, while further
strengthening its investment in first-and-second tier cities with
large population. In terms of business model, the Group’s
residential property development business will focus on
quick-turnover products with first-time home owners and first-
time home changing owners as target customers to maintain our
sales momentum. The Group will further leverage on our parent
company'’s reputable brand, relationship and financial support
to speed up our growth and development. Furthermore, the
Group will continue to maintain and develop its comprehensive
financing platform to support further growth by leveraging both
domestic and overseas financial markets.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
appreciation to all employees for their hard work and to
shareholders for their support. Looking forward to the next five
years, we will continue to forge ahead and accelerate our growth
and development, enhance our competitive edge and make
continual effort to become one of the most successful property
developers in China.

Huang Juncan
Chairman
Hong Kong, 7 March 2014
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Financial Highlights

M=

For the
period ended
31 December

For the
year ended
30 September

2013 2012

BZE H=E

—E-=F —E——4F

+=A=+—8H NA=+H

LHEA R IFFE

(Restated)

(In HK$'000) (ABEFITRBER) (&%)

Revenue WA 290,651 199,264

Profit attributable to owners PAYNCIESEEDN eyl 1,149,394 497,150

of the Company

Basic earnings per share (HK$) BREARZF (BT 0.1323 0.0725

As at As at

31 December 30 September

2013 2012

R=-®—= R-ZZT—Z4F

+=—B=+—H hA=+H

(Restated)

(In HK$'000) (ABEFITBER) (&%)

Total assets BEBTE 15,652,890 6,844,735

Total liabilities BERHE 8,548,266 3,040,223

Total equity (including 1A% (B 7,104,624 3,804,512
non-controlling interests) FEIEAC IR R A ZS)

Total borrowings B85 4,001,075 1,474,007

Net borrowings BaoEEE 2,185,639 -

Net asset value per share (HK$) FREEFE (BET) 0.646 0.421

Current ratio mEhtE & 1.5 2.0

Gearing ratio A E 56% 39%

Net borrowings over total equity BRCFBER AR ERE 31% 0%
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Financial Review

Bt %5 1 A

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Following the change of the ultimate holding company of the
Company to &b (&) DB RAR (“Gemdale Corporation”)
on 28 September 2012, the name of the Company was changed
to Gemdale Properties and Investment Corporation Limited
on 12 March 2013. Further, the financial year end date of the
Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) has been changed
from 30 September to 31 December effective from 2013 to align
with that of Gemdale Corporation such that the current financial
reporting period would be a 15-month span from 1 October 2012
to 31 December 2013. The corresponding comparative amounts
shown covered twelve months period from 1 October 2011 to 30
September 2012, and therefore may not be entirely comparable
with amounts shown for the current period.

In October 2013, the Group acquired certain project companies
of the immediate holding company (“the Target Companies”)
(“the Acquisition”). As the Company and the Target Companies
are under the common control of Gemdale Corporation before
and after the Acquisition, the Acquisition has been accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements of the Group as
a business combination under common control using the
principles of merger accounting under Accounting Guideline 5
Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA”). The consolidated financial statements of the Group
included the financial position, results and cash flows of the
Target Companies as if the Acquisition had occurred since
28 September 2012 (the date of which Gemdale Corporation
completed the acquisition of the Company). As a result, certain
corresponding comparative amounts for the year ended 30
September 2012 were restated.

The accounting policies and methods of computation used in
the preparation of the financial statements for the fifteen months
ended 31 December 2013 were consistent with those used in
the previous year ended 30 September 2012, except that the
Group has adopted a voluntary change in accounting policy
regarding the revenue recognition of sale of properties and,
for the first time, the revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”, which included all HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards, and Interpretations) issued by HKICPA
which are effective for the Group’s financial periods beginning
on or after 1 October 2012.
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Financial Review

g JE) -

RESULTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

The total revenue of the Group for the fifteen months ended 31
December 2013 increased by 46% to HK$290.7 million from
HK$199.3 million for the twelve months ended 30 September
2012. The increase was mainly due to increase in rental income
as a result of higher rental rates upon the renewal of the leases
of Vision Shenzhen Business Park (VSBP) and Sohu.com Internet
Plaza (SIP), recognition of revenue from sales of residential units
of Shenyang Yijing project launched in October 2013 and an
additional three months rental income included in current period
compared to last year.

During the period under review, the Group reached a consensus
with the relevant government authorities in Shenzhen for the
reactivation of the development of a previously idle project
namely phase 3 of Shenzhen Hi-tech Industrial Park (“VSBP 3”).
The development project was fully impaired in prior years, and
a portion of provision amounting to HK$262.4 million was written
back accordingly during the current period. While the project
will be developed into research and development offices for
rental purpose and apartments for sale purpose, the provision
written back was shared by business park segment amounting to
HK$228.3 million and property development segment amounting
to HK$34.1 million.

The changes of fair values of investment properties of
HK$1,413.4 million in the period under review included the
2 and 3 of VSBP and SIP while the
changes of HK$667.6 million in the last financial year included
the valuation of phases 1 and 2 of VSBP and SIP.

valuation of phases 1,

Other income and gain decreased to HK$21.3 million for the
current period from HK$71.7 million for the twelve months ended
30 September 2012. The decrease was mainly due to a recovery
of retention money of HK$41.4 million relating to the disposal of
an interest in a land development site in Beijing in prior years
included in the last financial year and reduction in interest
income by HK$12.1 million as a result of acquisition of certain
parcels of land in the PRC and lower interest rates obtained from
the bank deposits during the period under review.
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The Group’s direct operating expenses for the fifteen months
ended 31 December 2013 increased to HK$318.7 million from
HK$81.5 million for the twelve months ended 30 September
2012. The significant increase was mainly due to operating
expenses incurred for property development projects newly
acquired or bidded in Shenzhen, Shenyang, Dalian and Shaanxi,
the PRC, higher marketing and operating expenses for Shanghai
Shanshui Four Seasons project and increase in staff cost
incurred for business expansion of the Group with the number of
staff increased from 210 in last year to 356 in the current period.

The Group’s administrative expenses for the fifteen months
ended 31 December 2013 increased to HK$118.5 million from
HK$33.8 million for the twelve months ended 30 September
2012, mainly due to the increase in share-based compensation
expenses.

The finance cost increase to HK$56.1 million for the current
period from HK$29.6 million for the twelve months ended 30
September 2012. The increase was mainly due to interest paid
on loans from the immediate holding company and a non-
controlling shareholder for acquisition of land in the PRC.

Overall, the Group recorded higher profit attributable to owners
of the Company for the fifteen months ended 31 December 2013
of HK$1,149.4 million, against profit of HK$497.2 million for the
twelve months ended 30 September 2012. The increase was
mainly due to an increase in changes in fair values of investment
properties of HK$559.4 million (net of corporate income tax of
HK$186.4 million) and a provision written back of HK$262.4
million for VSBP 3 recorded in the current period.

On a per-share basis, the Group recorded basic earnings of
HK$0.1323, against HK$0.0725 for the twelve months ended
30 September 2012, representing a substantial increase of
82%. There were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the current period. Accordingly, the diluted earning per
share was same as the basic earnings per share. For the twelve
months ended 30 September 2012, the diluted earnings per
share was HK$0.0724.
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PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.01 per share (Year ended 30 September 2012: Nil)
for the fifteen months ended 31 December 2013, subject
to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. The proposed final dividend, if
approved, will be paid on or about 30 June 2014 to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
on 20 May 2014.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS
Property development

For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2013, the property
development revenue increased to HK$55.5 million, representing
19% of the total revenue, compared with HK$21.7 million,
representing 11% of the total revenue for the twelve months
ended 30 September 2012. The revenue of the current period
was mainly contributed by the sales from the Shenyang Yijing
project and the sales of remaining car park spaces in Hong Kong
while sales from the Shanghai Shanshui Four Seasons project
was recognised in the previous year. The loss in the property
development segment during the current period increased
to HK$134.2 million. The increase in loss was mainly due to
operating expenses incurred for the PRC property development
projects newly acquired or obtained from bidding and higher
marketing and operating expenses for Shanghai Shanshui Four
Seasons project. The loss was partially offset by the provision
written back of HK$34.1 million for VSBP 3 included in the
current period.
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Business park

The revenue earned by the business park segment for the fifteen
months ended 31 December 2013 grew from HK$177.6 million,
representing 89% of the total revenue for the twelve months
ended 30 September 2012, to HK$235.2 million representing
81% of the total revenue. This improved revenue was due to
the higher rental earned by VSBP and SIP, and rental income
of fifteen months recorded for the current period against twelve
months for the last year. During the period under review, the
business park segment recorded a profit of HK$1,783.7 million,
including fair value gain on investment properties of HK$1,413.4
million, compared with fair value gain of HK$667.6 million for the
previous year and a provision written back of HK$228.3 million
for VSBP 3.

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

The Group’s total shareholders’ funds increased from HK$2,974.7
million as at 30 September 2012 to HK$5,871.7 million as at 31
December 2013, representing a significant increase of 97%. On
a per-share basis, the consolidated net asset value of the Group
attributable to the owners of the Company as at 31 December
2013 increased to HK$0.646 against HK$0.421 (restated) as at
30 September 2012. The total shareholders’ funds constituted
approximately 38% of the total assets of HK$15,652.9 million as
at 31 December 2013, against 43% (restated) of total assets of
HK$6,844.7 million (restated) as at 30 September 2012.
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HA 7 B 5 B 88 5 228,300,0007T °
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FEEREEBG4T M_E—=—-F A=
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+ B A & 15 & E 42 58 75 %6,844,700,0007T (&
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

Liquidity and capital resources

The Group’s deposit, bank and cash balances increased by 18%
to HK$1,815.4 million as at 31 December 2013 from HK$1,537.8
million (restated) as at 30 September 2012. The increase
was mainly from the pre-sale proceeds of several property
development projects in the PRC launched during the current
period and the receipts of net proceeds of HK$691.6 million from
the issue of new shares in February 2013, net of cash applied
to acquisition of land use rights in Shenzhen, Shenyang, Dalian
and Shaanxi, the PRC and the development cost of property
projects in the PRC.

For financing the Group’s business development, the Company
issued 900,000,000 new shares of the Company at a subscription
price of HK$0.78 per share in early of February 2013 with net
proceeds of approximately HK$691.6 million and arranged loan
facilities from the ultimate holding company of RMB2,520 million
and from the immediate holding company of HK$1,700 million
during the period under review. The loan facilities of the ultimate
holding company and the immediate holding company were
unsecured and interest bearing at 6.15% per annum and 4%
per annum, respectively. As at 31 December 2013, the undrawn
loan facilities of the ultimate holding company and the immediate
holding company amounted to RMB640.4 million and HK$520.8
million respectively.

On 7 March 2014, the Company arranged a 3-year term
loan facility of US$185 million with a syndicate of banks for
refinancing the existing indebtedness of the Company and the
Group’s corporate funding requirement.

14
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Borrowings BEX
Total bank and other borrowings of the Group decreased by 81% AEBZRITREMERABH T ——F A
to HK$279.2 million as at 31 December 2013 from HK$1,438.6 = H 2 & #1,438,600,0007T/# 281% % — &
million as at 30 September 2012. The loans from related —=F+=F=+—H Z%%279,200,0007T °
parties of the Group as at 31 December 2013 were amounted R-ZZE—=F+-A=+—H KEBEZHESH
to HK$3,721.9 million, against HK$35.4 million (restated) as at &3k /A&##3,721,900,0007C * M =—Z ——F 1L
30 September 2012. RA=+82@&7 &5 &% %35,400,0007T
(&B5) o
The maturity profiles of the Group’s outstanding borrowings as A&EBR - Z—=F+_A=+—HBK_T—=
at 31 December 2013 and 30 September 2012 are summarised FHLA=Z+THZKEEER ZERMBE Rt
below: N
As at
i
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——HF
+=ZA=+—H NA=+H
HK$°’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(E3))
Short-term and long-term bank EHRRERTR
and other borrowings: HMER :
Within the first year or on demand B —F R EERFER 279,176 1,178,079
In the second year FE_FENR - 260,504
279,176 1,438,583
Loans from related parties: BESFE:
Within the first year or on demand —F RN EEKEFEE 3,721,899 35,424
Total borrowings wholly repayable HARAFANBHEEZ 4,001,075 1,474,007
within five years BB
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The net debt (measured by total borrowings minus cash and
bank deposits excluded restricted cash) as at 31 December
2013 was HK$2,185.6 million. There was no net debt as at 30
September 2012. The increase of net debts was mainly due
to acquisition of land use rights for parcels of land in the PRC
and payment of development cost of PRC property projects,
and partially offset by repayment of certain bank and other
borrowings with the proceeds from pre-sale of Shanghai Four
Seasons project.

The Group’s gearing ratio (defined as the total borrowings over
total equity, including non-controlling interests) rose to 56% as
at 31 December 2013 from 39% (restated) as at 30 September
2012.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
Foreign currency risk

As at 31 December 2013, borrowings denominated in United
States dollar (US$) remained at the same levels, those in Hong
Kong dollar (HK$) and Renminbi (RMB) increased during the
period under review. As most of the operating income of the
Group’s business is denominated in RMB and the continuity
of appreciation of RMB against US$ and HKS$ is expected, the
foreign exchange risk exposure was considered minimal. The
Group will review and monitor its currency exposure from time
to time and when appropriate to hedge its currency risk.
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The currency denominations of the Group’s outstanding
borrowings as at 31 December 2013 and 30 September 2012
are summarised below:

FRAZTEHAREY SRRREEES A
gk

As at
i

31 December 30 September
2013 2012
—E-=F —ET—_F
+=A=+—8 NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
(Restated)
(&%)
Hong Kong dollar oty 1,179,226 715,588
Renminbi AR¥E 2,390,677 479,153
United States dollar E7T 431,172 279,266
Total “E 4,001,075 1,474,007

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2013, 7% (30 September 2012: 100%
(restated)) of borrowings of the Group were on a floating
rate basis. The interest rate risk exposure was considered
acceptable and no hedging was considered necessary. The
Group will continue to monitor the suitability and cost efficiency
of hedging instrument (including interest rates swaps) and
consider a mix of fixed and floating rate borrowings in order to
manage interest rate risks.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

No asset of the Group was pledged at the end of the reporting
period. As at 30 September 2012, certain of the Group’s bank
and other borrowings were secured by certain properties under
development with aggregate carrying value of HK$1,063.7 million.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (30 September 2012: Nil).

MZ=E R

RIB—=F+_"A=+—R0 AEEH7% (=%
—Z—FNA=+H8:100% (F3)) ERIRZH
MEFR - MEARPERAER  HBEAZE
o REBBEEEZEEPTA (BHFEMNXE
H) 2@EMRAARG - UAREEETE KT
MEEEERZFE - WEEEHEMEER -

BEEEH

RRER  ZEETREEFELTMEE - B
—E—ZHFNA=FH AEBZEFRITRE
B KA RET AR (BB % 1,063,700,000 2 &
TFEERYEERA -

RZZE—=F+ZA=t+—B  AEEXRFEM
BEASZABE (ZE—ZFNA=+H: &)
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Five-year Financial Summary

EFHBEHRE

[ |
15 months
ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
BE-Z-=fF H2-T-F HE-T—F HE_T-ZF HE_TTNF
+=A=+-H NA=+H NA=+H NA=T+H NA=+H
t+HE@A I35 EFE EE JI=:3:3
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(In HK$'000) (ABETTAEN) (E5)) (E5) (E31)
Results E4
Revenue WA 290,651 199,264 302,604 1,347,620 130,570
Profit/(loss) before tax BRATER /(BE) 1,480,383 759,364 354,728 390,052 (14,713)
Tax (charge)/credit BB () &% (343,454) (214,766) (131,526) (142,755) 11,743
Profit/(loss) for the period/year 8/ FrEfl /(E8) 1,136,929 544,598 223,202 247,297 (2,970)
Attributable to: AT AT :
Owners of the Company AUNGIE=Y-PN 1,149,394 497 150 205,836 194,044 3,169
Non-controlling interests FERBFER (12,465) 47,448 17,366 53,253 (6,139)
1,136,929 544,598 223,202 247,297 (2,970)
As at As at As at As at As at
31 December 30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
RZB-=F RZF-—F RIB——F RZIT-TF RZTTNE
+=ZA=+-H NAZ1H NE=1H NE=1H NE=1E
(Restated)
(In HK$'000) (ABETTREN) (E5))
Assets and liabilities BERERE
Total assets BESE 15,652,890 6,844,735 4,933,761 4,168,452 5,113,862
Total liabilities BlEEE (8,548,266) (3,040,223) (1,975,612) (1,811,764) (2,996,536)
Total equity (including RS (B 7,104,624 3,804,512 2,958,149 2,356,688 2,117,326
non-controlling interests) SRR B AE RS )
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LAND BANK

The Group’s management believes that a sizable and quality
land bank is the most important successful factor for a property
developer. Timing for acquisition of land bank at competitive
pricing is the core successful factor for the Group.

As the Group’s strategy is to expand into nationwide property
developer in the PRC, it succeeded in entering into five new
cities including Shenyang, Dalian, Tianjin, Xi'an and Ningbo
during the period. A total of four new acquisitions of land parcels
were transacted through participation in public land auctions,
with an approximate gross floor area of 1,338,000 square
meters in aggregate added to the Group’s land bank for a total
consideration of RMB2,842 million. Also, the acquisition of six
residential projects from Gemdale Corporation at consideration
of HK$1,272.7 million, gives the Group an extra land bank of
1,500,000 square meters.

As at 31 December 2013, total land bank of the Group (in terms

of gross floor area) amounted to approximately 4 million square
meters in eight different cities in the PRC.

Total GFA #2ZSEmiE
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T i fE A

AEENEEERE  BAEREREAN TR
HYEERBAREREZNXNDEE - MER
AERF OO ERIE T A EE T RSB AKX

AEENREERESHREFR2EEET
% HRERNEEER K& - K2 ALK
BRERMEFRT - BBL2EARALIMINE
NEBMAEWETMBH L FAEEN T
{518 hn 48 $£1,338,000°F A KB BE AV R A T 7S -
wRE A ARK2842,000,0007T © B A&
[ LA 48 R (B 7B #51,272,700,0007T [A] 4 b £ [ UK
BAEEEEE  AASEEREINLHE
1,500,000 J5 K °

RZE—=F+-A=+—H
FEEBEEZPEN\ETRNHT
#9/54,000,000F 75 K °

C AREmAL
CIRBEmAERE

23.5%
931,000 m? F752K

9.2%
365,000 m? 3F 772K

7.0%

279,000 m? ¥ 77K

5.9%
235,000 m? F 77K

22.8%

4Beijing - Shenyang
B33 &S
Tianjin

R

# Dalian
Rig

Shenzhen
w

Ningpo-

905,000 m? ¥ J7 K

18.3%
724,000 m2 ;5K

3.7%
146,000 m? 77 5%

9.6%
383,000 m?2 ¥ 5 K

7

ISh\anghai

Y4

Annual Report 2012/13 19




Review of Operations

EZOE

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Properties Sales and Development

The Group’s high quality housing products continued to attract
medium to high income level end-users. Sales performance
became prominent starting the fourth quarter in 2013 after
more saleable resources being available after asset injection
in October 2013.

With more residential projects being available for sale, property
contracted sales increased significantly from Nil to RMB4,232
million, corresponding to a saleable gross floor area of 334,400
square meters.

Contracted sales from major projects during the fifteen months

7 ERE

MEEERBR

AEERENETEREBERTSRAKFR
AFPNEM - E-T—=F+ AT ANEER
AHERRIEM BT =FFENFFHIAHE

RILAEIEM -

HARAEEENEEBEEEN  DEANEER
AR 1% = A R #4,232,000,0007T @ 1HE 2
A E AR A334,400F K ©

HE_ZT—=F+-_A=+—HLETHREAAFZ

ended 31 December 2013: HEMESHHEENT
Saleable GFA Amount
(sg. m) (RMB ’'0000)
AIHE RS TR
City W Name of project RS (Fak)  (ARBST
Beijing bR Beijing Mentougou b RPIEEE 16,925 60,700
Shanghai 8 Shanghai Shanshui Four Seasons  _E/& ILI7KPIZ 108,842 192,061
Shenyang & Shenyang Riverfront Left Shore EGEA L E 58,211 38,555
Shenyang Yijing FESER 24,933 18,529
Tianjin PAV= Tianjin Yijing REEIF 75,944 74,160
Xi'an (i Xi'an YiHua Nian L BEF 5,645 5,253
Xi'an XiangYue TianXia ELZARKT 43,937 33,929
Total BT 334,437 423,187
Proportion of Property Sales by Cities Proportion of Property Saleable GFA Sold by Cities
1T & 5 BV 3 EE & EL ) R E DB E YR IHE 2 EE AL
5.1%
17.5% 14.3% 22.7%
30 59% M Beijing X
9.3% M shanghai £/%
14.8% M Shenyang &[5
[ Xi’an AL
13.5% 45.4% Tianjin &2
24.9%
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Residential Development Projects FERRER

Beijing Mentougou 71 Shanghai Shanshui Four Seasons
b mPIERE LK

Shenyang Riverfront Left Shore Shenyang Yijing
&5 BN I RIS EIR

Tianjin Yijing E Xi'an YiHua Nian
RAEEER PR BEEF BLZARKT
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Property Leasing

For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2013, with the
increase in rental rate for expired leases and therefore a higher
average rental rate, as well as the rental income covered
fifteen months financial period (2012: 12 months), rental income
increased to HK$154 million (Year ended 30 September 2012:
HK$119 million). Taken into account of the fair value gain of
HK$1,413 million (Year ended 30 September 2012: HK$668
million) in respect of the investment properties, segment profit
was HK$1,784 million (Year ended 30 September 2012: HK$807
million).

As at 31 December 2013, Vision Shenzhen Business Park Phase
1 and 2 in Shenzhen Nan Shan district was 97% let while the
occupancy rate for the Beijing Sohu.com Internet Plaza was 100%.
The Group owns 100% and 60% of these projects respectively.

Investment Property Projects

M Vision Shenzhen Business Park Phase 1 and 2

RIS E S — R =8

Beijing Sohu.com Internet Plaza
ERBIMBRARE
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ling Ke (“Mr. Ling”), aged 54, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since November 2012. Mr. Ling
joined & (@) RHBR2AF (“Gemdale Corporation”) in
1992. He is also the Chairman of Gemdale Corporation and is
overall responsible for the Gemdale Corporation, particularly in
charge of strategic planning. Mr. Ling has extensive experience
in strategic planning, property development and corporate
management. He holds a master’s degree in Engineering
Management from Zhejiang University, the PRC. He is granted
the professional title of Senior Economist.

Mr. Huang Juncan (“Mr. Huang”), aged 43, has been an
Executive Director of the Company and the Chairman of the
Group since November 2012. He is also the chairman of the
Nomination Committee of the Board. Mr. Huang joined Gemdale
Corporation in 1992. He is also a director and the President of
Gemdale Corporation and is in charge of the whole operation
of Gemdale Corporation. Mr. Huang has extensive experience
in property investment, design, construction, marketing and
corporate management. He holds a bachelor’'s degree in Civil
Engineering from Tongji University, the PRC and a MBA from
University of Wales, Newport (Shenzhen), the PRC.

Mr. Wei Chuanjun (“Mr. Wei”), aged 45, has been an Executive
Director and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company since
October 2012. Mr. Wei joined Gemdale Corporation in 2003. He
is also Senior Vice President and the Chief Financial Officer of
Gemdale Corporation and is responsible for overall financing
and accounting of Gemdale Corporation. Mr. Wei has extensive
experience in property development and financial management.
He is a fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of The Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He holds an EMBA from Shanghai University
of Finance and Economics, the PRC.

Mr. Xu Jiajun (“Mr. Xu”), aged 35, has been an Executive
Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since
October 2012 and January 2013, respectively. He is also a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Board. Mr. Xu
is a director, Senior Vice President and the Board Secretary of
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Gemdale Corporation and is responsible for capital management
and strategic planning of Gemdale Corporation. Mr. Xu has
extensive experience in property development, corporate
management and strategic planning. He was awarded the
“Gold medal prize of Board Secretary” by New Fortune Magazine
in 2010, 2011, and 2012, and was awarded the “Best Board
Secretary” by Money Week in 2011 and 2012. He holds a
master’'s degree in management from Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics, the PRC.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hui Chiu Chung (“Mr. Hui”), aged 66, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
December 2004. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee as well as member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Board. Mr. Hui is currently the
chairman and chief executive officer of Luk Fook Financial
Services Limited. He also serves as a non-executive Director
of Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited, an independent
non-executive director of China South City Holdings Limited,
Chun Wo Development Holdings Limited, Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited, Lifestyle International Holdings Limited,
SINOPEC Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd. and Zhuhai Holdings
Investment Group Limited, whose shares are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Hui has over 42 years of experience
in the securities and investment industry. He had for years been
serving as a council member and vice chairman of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, a member of the Advisory
Committee and the Committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts
of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission, a director
of the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited, a
member of the Listing Committee of the Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited, an appointed member of the Securities and
Futures Appeal Tribunal, a member of the Standing Committee
on Company Law Reform, and an appointed member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants Investigation
Panel. Mr. Hui was appointed by the Government of the HKSAR
a Justice of the Peace in 2004 and was also appointed a
member of the Zhuhai Municipal Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference in 2006.
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Mr. Chiang Sheung Yee, Anthony (“Mr. Chiang”), aged 56, has
been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since November 2012. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Board. Mr.
Chiang is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong. He obtained a
Bachelor of Laws degree at the University of Hong Kong in
1980 and was admitted as a solicitor of Hong Kong in 1983.
He was appointed by the Ministry of Justice in the People’s
Republic of China as an attesting officer in 1995. He is a trustee
of Chong Hing Bank Limited — Staff Welfare and Retirement
Benefits Scheme. He resigned as an independent non-executive
director of Pizu Group Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the GEM Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
on 14 December 2012. Mr. Chiang has substantial experience in
foreign investment and property transactions in the PRC.

Mr. Hu Chunyuan (“Mr. Hu”), aged 44, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since November 2012.
He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Board. Mr. Hu is currently the
vice-president and executive partner of BDO China Shu Lun Pan
Certified Public Accountants LLP and a fellow certified public
accountant (as approved by the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants). He concurrently serves as an executive
of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of its Technical Advisory Committee, an executive of
Shenzhen Nonpartisan Intellectuals Association, an executive of
the Shenzhen Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
chief member of its Continuing Education Committee, a visiting
Professor at Sun Yat-sen University, and a consultant to the
Internal Control Standard Committee of the Ministry of Finance.
He obtained his bachelor's degree in Economics (Accounting)
from Xi’an Jiaotong University in 1991, his master’'s degree in
Economics (Accounting) from Xiamen University in 1994, and
his doctor’s degree in Economics (Accounting) from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics in 1998 where he was
a student of Professor Xu Zhengdan, a famous accounting
expert. Since 1991, he has been successively engaged in
auditing and management consultancy in the Accounting Firm
of Xiamen University, the Xiamen Certified Public Accountants,
Shenzhen Dahua Tiancheng Certified Public Accountants, BDO
China Li Xin Da Hua Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd. and
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BDO China Shu Lun Pan Certified Public Accountants LLP. In
1993, he passed the national CPA qualification exam. He was
approved as a Chinese certified public accountant in 1996, and
a certified public accountant qualified for engaging in securities
and futures activities in 1999. He has served as a member of
the Listing Committee of Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and an
independent director of F{EERK 7 A R A 7](Citic Real Estate
Company Limited) and &3k ZE % 5 E R 2 §(Changcheng Real
Estate Company Limited).

Mr. Hu has published over 80 academic articles in various
magazines including “Managerial Auditing Journal”, “Accounting
Research”, “Auditing Research” and the “Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountant”, and a number of works such as
“Auditing Risk Research”, “Risk Fundamentals Auditing”, “Risk
Guidance Auditing”, “Compilation and Auditing of Simulated
Financial Information” and “Non-standard Unqualified Audit
Report”. His works of “Auditing Testing” and “Modern Auditing
Methodologies: Risk Fundamentals Auditing” are the continuing
training textbooks for Chinese public certified accountants. As a
representative from the public certified accountants industry, he
participated in the preparation of a number of relevant rules and
regulations, accounting standards and auditing standards. He
has extensive experiences in group reorganisation, IPO, assets
restructuring and debts restructuring of companies, the auditing
of listed companies and securities companies, and the design
of corporate governance structure and management structure.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wong Ho Yin (“Mr. Wong”), aged 38, has been the Company
Secretary of the Company since October 2012. Mr. Wong was
graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology with a master’s degree in business administration.
Mr. Wong is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a CFA charterholder. Before joining the
Group, Mr. Wong worked in several Hong Kong listed/private
companies as CFO as well as an international accounting firm.
Mr. Wong has more than 16 years of experience in accounting,
treasury, finance and merger and acquisition.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company (together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is
committed to maintain a high standard of corporate governance
with an emphasis on a quality board of directors, sound
internal control, principles and practices, and transparency
and accountability to all shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).

The Company has taken steps to adopt the principles and
comply with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”). The Board has reviewed periodically the
compliance of the CG Code and is of the view that throughout
the 15 months ended 31 December 2013 (“FY2013” or the
“Reporting Period”), the Company has complied with the
applicable code provisions of the CG Code, except for the
following deviations:—

1. Under the CG Code A.6.7, independent non-executive
Directors should attend general meetings and develop
a balanced understanding of the view of Shareholders.
Due to other pre-arranged business commitments which
must be attended by Mr. Hu Chunyuan, an independent
non-executive Director, he was not able to attend two
special general meetings of the Company held on 15 May
2013 and 17 October 2013 respectively.

2. Under CG Code C.1.2, management should provide all
members of the board with monthly updates giving a
balanced and understandable assessment of the issuer’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail
to enable the board as a whole and each director to
discharge their duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13
of the Listing Rules. During the first six months of the
Reporting Period, management had not provided all
members of the board with such updates on a monthly
basis due to the restructuring of the management and
general staff of the Group and the change of accounting
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systems after the change of the controlling shareholder of
the Company in November 2012. However, several board
meetings were held during the period for reviewing the
periodic operating and financial conditions of the Group
based on updated operating information provided by the
management. As such, the Company considers that all
members of the board were given regular updates on the
Company’s performance, position and prospects during
that period. The Company has complied with the CG
Code C.1.2 then.

3. Under CG Code E.1.2, the chairman of the board
should attend the annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM”). Due to other pre-arranged business
commitments which must be attended by Mr. Huang
Juncan, the chairman of the board, he was not present at
the AGM of the Company held on 29 January 2013 (“2013
AGM").

4. Under CG Code E.1.3, the issuer should arrange for
the notice to shareholders to be sent for AGMs at
least 20 clear business days before the meeting. The
notice of 2013 AGM of the Company had been sent to
its shareholders more than 21 clear calendar days in
compliance with the Company’s bye-laws but less than 20
clear business days before the date of the 2013 AGM as
the new management of the Company intended to meet
the shareholders of the Company at the 2013 AGM as
soon as possible.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, as amended from
time to time, (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Following specific enquiries
made by the Company, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the Reporting Period. The Model Code also applies
to other specified senior management of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEg

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) currently AAFEZEEZS ([EHE)|) BATANEHTES
comprises four executive Directors and three independent N=FBIUIFNTEE([BILFHTEES) 4
non-executive Directors (‘INEDs”). The Directors during the X - REHANEEARFRAMEEZS
Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Ling Ke (note 1) ERE (M)

Mr. Huang Juncan (Chairman) (note 1) BERREE (FFE) (FaE1)

Mr. Wei Chuanjun (Chief Financial Officer) (note 2) BETSREYE (HBEZ) (Ht2)
Mr. Xu Jiajun (Chief Executive Officer) (note 2) BREBIE (TTBAEZ) (HTit2)
Mr. Leung Ka Hing, Harry (a past Director and see note 3) REBGAE (BAEEEREZNGE3)
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Cheong Fook Seng, Anthony (a past Director and see note 4)  SRBK &4+ (BHEEFLK ZMTit4)
Ms. Chong Siak Ching (whose alternate was Mr. Chia Nam Toon) REMBZ+ (EETEFAHEELE)

(a past Director and see note 4) (BIFEFERZNE4)
Mr. Hui Choon Kit (a past Director and see note 4) FTBBE A (BAEEFERZNF4)
Mr. Lim Ee Seng (a past Director and see note 4) WIaBs & (BIFEFER N iT4)

Mr. Tang Kok Kai, Christopher (a past Director and see note 4) SSE{E%E (BHEFER EHTE4)

INEDs BAFBITES

Mr. Hui Chiu Chung PR ST

Mr. Chiang Sheung Yee, Anthony (note 5) BREEE (Hit5)

Mr. Hu Chunyuan (note 5) tEITLEE (H1i25)

Mr. Kwee Chong Kok, Michael (a past Director and see note 6) 8B E (B EFE R LHT1:16)

Ms. Wong Siu Ming, Helen (a past Director and see note 6) mARAT T (BHEEFEREZNTE6)

Mr. Chong Kok Kong (a past Director and see note 6) KRB AE (BFEFERZNFZE)

Notes: Htat -

1. appointed on 20 November 2012 1. R-FE——F+—HAZF+HEZH

2. appointed on 30 October 2012 2. R-FE——F 1+ A=+ HEEZH

3. resigned as chief executive officer of the Company and executive 3. DR =ZEFE—ZFF+A=ZFHAR=ZF—Z=F
Director on 30 October 2012 and 20 November 2012, respectively F—H - HABERRGIITRAER R TEE

4. resigned on 20 November 2012 4. R-F——F—H =+ HEF

5. appointed on 30 November 2012 5. REZF—ZFF+—A=1+HEZF

6. resigned on 30 November 2012 6. R-F——Ff—H="1HEFF

The Directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 23 ZEZBEEBRFERNFHRFE2I3EF 265 -
to 26 of this annual report.
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The three INEDs represent more than one-third of the Board. The
Board possesses a mix and balance of skills and experience
which are appropriate for the requirements of the business of the
Company. The opinions raised by the INEDs in Board meetings
facilitate the maintenance of good corporate governance
practices. One of the INEDs has the appropriate professional
qualification and accounting and audit experience and expertise
as required by Rules 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. A balanced
composition of executive and independent non-executive
Directors also generates a strong independent element on the
Board, which allows for an independent and objective decision
making process for the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders. The Company will review the composition of the
Board from time to time to ensure that the Board possesses
the appropriate and necessary expertise, skills, diversity of
perspective and experience to meet the needs of the Group’s
business and to enhance the shareholders’ value.

All INEDs are appointed with specific term of not more than three
years and all Directors are appointed with letters of appointment
and subject to retirement by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the AGMs in accordance with the
bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”).

The Company has received from each INED an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Company considers that all the three
INEDs are independent.

Directors and officers policy

The Company has arranged for appropriate Directors and
officers liability insurance to indemnify its Directors and officers
against liabilities arising out of legal action on corporate
activities. Such insurance coverage is reviewed and renewed
on an annual basis.

Board meetings

During the Reporting Period, the Board met regularly and held
13 meetings. The attendance record of members of the Board,
on a named basis, at these meetings is set out in the table on
page 49 of this corporate governance report.
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Sufficient notices of not less than 14 days for regular board
meetings and reasonable notice for non-regular board meetings
were given to all Directors so as to ensure that each of them
had an opportunity to attend the meetings. Board papers will
be given to the Board before the date of the Board meeting
by the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”). If potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder or a Director arises which the Board has determined
to be material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical board
meeting rather than a written resolution, and the interested
parties are required to abstain from voting. The Directors attend
meetings in persons or through other means of electronic
communication in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

The Company Secretary shall attend all regular board meetings
to advise on corporate governance and statutory compliance,
when necessary. Directors shall have full access to information
on the Group and are able to obtain independent professional
advice whenever deemed necessary by the Directors. The
Company Secretary shall prepare minutes and keep records of
matters discussed and decisions resolved at all board meetings.

Relationships and associations among the Directors

Each of the executive Directors is also a director and/or top
management of Gemdale Corporation* (&1t (5£E) IR {H ER
A |]), which is the holding company of Famous Commercial
Limited
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Ling Ke, Mr. Huang Juncan,

Limited. Famous Commercial is the controlling
Mr. Wei Chuanjun and Mr. Xu Jiajun, all of whom are executive
Directors, in aggregate, owned more than 30% interest in
Oceanlane Global Limited, which had entered into a conditional
subscription agreement with the Company on 17 August 2013
for the subscription of a total of 155,347,498 new shares in
the Company at the subscription price of HK$0.96 per share,
representing approximately 1.71% of the issued share capital of
the Company as of the date of this corporate governance report.

Save as disclosed above, there was no relationship between
members of the Board (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship(s)).

*

For identification purpose only
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Huang Juncan and the Chief
Executive Officer is Mr. Xu Jiajun. The positions of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer are held by separate individuals
with a view to maintaining an effective segregation of duties
between the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business and operations.

One of the important roles of the Chairman is to provide
leadership for the Board to ensure that the Board always
acts in the best interest of the Group. The Chairman shall
ensure that the Board works effectively and fully discharges its
responsibilities, and that all key issues are discussed by the
Board in a timely manner. The Chairman has taken into account,
where appropriate, any matters proposed by the Directors
for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman has delegated the
responsibility of drawing up the agenda for each board meeting
to the Chief Executive Officer and the Company Secretary. With
the support of the Chief Executive Officer and the Company
Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and have
received adequate and reliable information in a timely manner.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

On appointment to the Board, each newly appointed Director
receives a comprehensive induction package covering business
operations, policy and procedures of the Company as well
as the general, statutory and regulatory obligations of being
a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/
her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant
regulatory requirements.

32
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The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or
updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition,
the Company has been encouraging the Directors and senior
executives to enrol in a wide range of professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, companies
ordinance/act and corporate governance practices organised
by professional bodies, independent auditors and/or chambers
in Hong Kong so that they can continuously update and further
improve their knowledge and skills.

From time to time, Directors are provided with written materials
to develop and refresh their professional skills. The Company
Secretary also organises and arranges seminars on the latest
development of applicable laws, rules and regulations for the
Directors to assist them in discharging their duties. During the
Reporting Period, the Company organised for the Directors and
executives an in-house workshop on the Listing Rules.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
Directors received the following training with an emphasis on
the roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company
in compliance with the new requirement of the CG Code on
continuous professional development during the Reporting
Period:
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|
Corporate Governance/
Updates on laws, rules and
regulations
EER BREM -
RAIRKB ZEH
Reading Attending
Notes materials briefings
BtaE RIEAM R HiEERE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Ling Ke & A 3 v v/
Mr. Huang Juncan B5ERELE 3 v v/
Mr. Wei Chuanjun EEFEEE 1 v v/
Mr. Xu Jiajun BRELE 1 v v/
Mr. Leung Ka Hing, Harry PREXE (BHEEFE) 2
(past Director)
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Cheong Fook Seng, Anthony RERSEE (BEEE) 2
(past Director)
Ms. Chong Siak Ching (past Director) REBL LT BHRAEZE) 2
Mr. Chia Nam Toon (Alternate to HEREE (KREFLLTZ 2
Ms. Chong Siak Ching (past director)) HIF£% (iBtE%))
Mr. Hui Choon Kit (past Director) STEGEE (BTEE) 2
Mr. Lim Ee Seng (past Director) MWeB L (BAEE) 2
Mr. Tang Kok Kai, Christopher BB EEE (BREESE) 2
(past Director)
INEDs BYFHTES
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung R A v v
Mr. Chiang Sheung Yee, Anthony BRELE 5 v v
Mr. Hu Chunyuan tHETLEA 5 v v
Mr. Chong Kok Kong (past Director) RENSEE (BEEE) 4
Mr. Kwee Chong Kok, Michael BERSLE (BEEFE) 4
(past Director)
Ms. Wong Siu Ming, Helen BERATT (BHEEFE) 4
(past Director)
Notes: Btat -
1. Appointed on 30 October 2012 1. R-F——F A=+ HEZHF
2. Resigned on 20 November 2012 2. R-FE——F+—HZ1THEF
3. Appointed on 20 November 2012 3. R-FE——F—HZFHEZH
4. Resigned on 30 November 2012 4. R-F——F—H="1HFF
5. Appointed on 30 November 2012 5. R-FE——F+—H=F+HEZH
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RESPONSIBILITY OF DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for ensuring continuity of leadership,
development of sound business strategies, availability of
adequate capital and managerial resources to implement the
business strategies adopted, adequacy of systems of financial
and internal controls and conduct of business in conformity with
applicable laws and regulations. All Directors have made full and
active contribution to the affairs of the Board and the Board has
always acted in the best interest of the Group.

The executive Directors and senior management are delegated
with respective levels of authorities with regard to key corporate
strategy and policy and contractual commitments. Management
is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group
with divisional heads responsible for different aspects of the
business.

The Board considers that in preparing the financial statements,
the Group has applied the appropriate accounting policies that
are consistently adopted and made judgements/estimates that
are reasonable and prudent in accordance with the applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, as issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
publication of the financial statements of the Group is also in a
timely manner.

The Board, having made appropriate enquiries, is of the view
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it
is appropriate for the Group to adopt the going concern basis
in the preparation of the financial statements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees, namely,
the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee, each of which has the specific written terms of
reference that will be reviewed and updated periodically where
necessary. Copies of minutes of all meetings and resolutions
of the board committees are kept by the Company Secretary
and are open for inspection at reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any Director. Each board committee is required to
report to the Board on its decisions and recommendations,
where appropriate. Each board committee is also provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense
according to the Company’s policy, if necessary.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”)
has been established with specific written terms of reference
stipulating its authorities and duties in compliance with Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules, which are available on the websites
of the Company (www.gemdalepi.com) and HKExnews
(www.hkexnews.hk). The Audit Committee currently comprises
Mr. Hu Chunyuan (Chairman of the committee), Mr. Hui
Chiu Chung and Mr. Chiang Sheung Yee, Anthony. All Audit

Committee members are INEDs.

The functions of the Audit Committee are, among other things,
to assist the Board to review the financial reporting, including
interim and final results, to supervise over the Group’s internal
controls, risk management and to monitor the internal and
external audit functions and to make relevant recommendations
to the Board to ensure effective and efficient operations and
reliable reporting. The functions of the Audit Committee will be
reviewed regularly by the Board and amended from time to time,
as and when appropriate, in order to ensure compliance with
the applicable code provisions of the CG Code (as amended
from time to time).
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During the Reporting Period,

the Audit Committee held 4

meetings with the senior management, 3 of which were joined

by the external auditors. The attendance record of the committee

members, on a named basis, at these meetings is set out in the

table on page 49 of this corporate governance report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit

Committee and its recommendations made to the Board during

the Reporting Period:

(a)

reviewing (i) the annual results of the Company for the
financial year ended 30 September 2012; (ii) the interim
results of the Company for the 6 months ended 31
March 2013; and (iii) the second interim results of the
Company for the 12 months ended 30 September 2013,
and ensuring the full, complete and accurate disclosure
in the aforesaid financial statements pursuant to the
accounting standards and other legal requirements for
presenting the same to the Board for approval;

proposing the re-appointment of external auditors for the
Reporting Period;

reviewing the audit fee proposal for the Reporting Period
for auditors of the Company to perform audit services and
other special corporate projects;

reviewing the audit plan for the Reporting Period;
reviewing the overall effectiveness of internal controls;
reviewing the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of the staff and the accounting and financial
reporting matters; and

reviewing the connected transactions and continuing

connected transactions for the financial year ended 30
September 2012.
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All issues raised by the Audit Committee have been addressed
by the management. The work and findings of the Audit
Committee have been reported to the Board. During the
Reporting Period, there were no issues brought to the attention
of the management and the Board that required disclosure in
this annual report.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Board (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was splitted from the nomination and remuneration
committee of the Board in November 2012 with specific
written terms of reference stipulating its authorities and
duties, which are available on the websites of the Company
(www.gemdalepi.com) and HKExnews (www.hkexnews.hk). The
Remuneration Committee currently comprises Mr. Hui Chiu
Chung (INED and Chairman of the committee), Mr. Hu Chunyuan
(INED) and Mr. Xu Jiajun (executive Director).

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are as
follows:

(a) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s

policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing

remuneration policy;

(b) to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives;

(c) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment;

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the

remuneration of non-executive Directors;
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(h)

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the group;

to review and approve compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it
is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair
and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct
to ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms
and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held
4 meetings (one of which was held by the former Nomination

and Remuneration Committee to resolve remuneration related

matters). No Director took part in any discussion about his own

remuneration. The attendance record of the committee members,

on a named basis, at these meetings is set out in the table on

page 49 of this corporate governance report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the

Remuneration Committee and recommendations made to the
Board during the Reporting Period:

(a)

reviewing and determining the annual salary of the
executive Directors and the senior management for
the Reporting Period and the financial year ending 31
December 2014 (“FY2014");

reviewing and determining the bonus payment of the
executive Director(s) and senior management for the
financial year ended 30 September 2012 and the
Reporting Period;
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proposing the Directors’ fee of INEDs for the Reporting
Period and FY2014;

proposing the offer and grant of share options under
the Company’s share option schemes to Directors and
eligible grantees; and

(e) determining the remuneration package of the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration for the Reporting Period
are set out in note 10 to the audited financial statements
contained in this annual report. In addition, pursuant to the CG
Code B.1.5, the annual remuneration of other members of the
senior management of the Group by bands for the Reporting
Period is set out below:

¥R 5

Remuneration bands

REBMERAR —T-—NFHRFEBEL
FRTEFEZEFHSD

RHORBAARBREAINEZTRAE
AR ARENEEBEE - &

(e) EBEARTITHEBEZFMETE -

REEHANESTFH2FBTERNAFRA L
BB RRMEI0 1 RELE TR
B.1.5 > HEMAARESREEBEMKEZF
EHMAERWT

Number of individual A

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination
Committee”) was splitted from the nomination and remuneration
committee of the Board in November 2012 with specific written
terms of reference stipulating its authorities and duties, which are
available on the websites of the Company (www.gemdalepi.com)
and HKExnews (www.hkexnews.hk). The Nomination Committee
currently comprises Mr. Huang Juncan (Chairman of the Board
and the committee), Mr. Hui Chiu Chung (/INED) and Mr. Chiang
Sheung Yee, Anthony (INED).
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The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

(a) to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of
perspectives) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b)  toidentify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

(c) to review the Board diversity policy and any measurable
objectives for implementing such Board diversity policy
as may be adopted by the Board from time to time and to
review the progress on achieving the objectives; and to
make disclosure of its review results in the annual report
of the Company annually;

(d) to assess the independence of INEDs; and

(e) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief
executive.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held 1
meeting, in which it nominated the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and recommended to the Board as well as reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board with reference
to certain criteria. The attendance record of the committee
members, on a named basis, at this meeting is set out in the
table on page 49 of this corporate governance report.
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As the Company recognises that having a board diversity policy
can enhance the quality of its performance, the Board adopted a
board diversity policy during the Reporting Period in compliance
with the CG Code A.5.6. Pursuant to the board diversity policy
of the Company, in designing the Board’s composition so as to
achieve board diversity, a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service of the candidates will be taken into account. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Board has reviewed and
amended the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
for expanding its roles and functions to include reviewing the
Board diversity policy and measurable objectives adopted
for implanting such Board diversity policy, in determining the
composition of the Board, so as to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board and promote the development of higher corporate
governance. The revised terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are made available on the websites of the Company
(www.gemdalepi.com) and HKExnews (www.hkexnews.hk).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board has undertaken and adopted the responsibility for
performing the corporate governance duties pursuant to the CG
Code and is committed to ensuring that an effective governance
structure is in place to continuously review, monitor and improve
the corporate governance practices within the Group with regard
to the prevailing legal and regulatory requirements.
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During the Reporting Period, the Board has reviewed the policies
and practices on the Group’s corporate governance, developing
a code of conduct applicable to the Directors and employees,
monitoring the Company’s legal and regulatory compliance and
training and continuing professional development of Directors
and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
the disclosure in this annual report.

This corporate governance report has been reviewed by the
Board in discharge of its corporate governance function.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring
that board procedures are followed and that the Board is fully
briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments and that it has regard to them when making
decisions. The Company Secretary is also directly responsible
for the Group’s compliance with the continuing obligations of
the Listing Rules, Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share
Repurchases, Companies Ordinance, Securities and Futures
Ordinance and other applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Mr. Wong Ho Yin, who was appointed as a full-time company
secretary of the Company, reports to the Board and is
responsible for, inter alia, providing updated information on
the Listing Rules and regulatory and corporate governance
developments to all Directors from time to time. During the
Reporting Period, Mr. Wong has complied with Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules and taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the Reporting Period, the fees paid/payable to the Company’s
external auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided to the Group are set out below:

SN A% BB 2 A

RERE AR - ZRQ ) HEINE R SRR ) 28 5 B 12 4
ZEZEEBZBRBHOEN BN 2 BRE N
T

2013 2012

—E-=F —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

Services rendered R R BET T BT

Audit services EZIRE 1,860 1,060
Non-audit services IEE LIRS

Review and other reporting services 0 R H A R IR AR TS 280 330

2,140 1,390

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view and are
in compliance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
statutory requirements and other regulatory requirements. As
at 31 December 2013, the Board was not aware of any material
misstatement or uncertainties that might put doubt on the Group’s
financial position or continue as a going concern. The Board
endeavours to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects
in financial reporting.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities
is set out on pages 81 to 82 of this annual report. There are no
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has undertaken the overall responsibility for
maintaining sound and effective internal control systems to
safeguard the Company’s assets and shareholders’ interests, as
well as, with the Audit Committee, for reviewing the effectiveness
of these systems. The internal audit department of the holding
company of the Company is delegated to ensure and maintain
sound internal control functions by monitoring such internal
control systems and procedures constantly so as to ensure that
they can provide reasonable assurance against misstatement
or loss and to manage risks of failure in the Group’s operational
systems. In addition, the Company will engage independent
consultants to conduct review of the internal control system and
risk management of the Group as and when necessary. The
Board is responsible for approving and overall reviewing internal
control policy while the responsibility of day-to-day management
of operational risks lies with the management.

The internal control system is to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material loss; and to manage
rather than completely eliminate the risk of system failure. In
addition, it should provide a basis for the maintenance of proper
and fair accounting records and assist in the compliance with
relevant rules and regulations. During the Reporting Period, the
Board reviewed all material internal controls, including financial,
operational and compliance control and risk management
It also reviewed with Audit Committee and the
information from the internal audit department in respect of the

function.

effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system, adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function and
satisfied that they were effective and in compliance with our
policies.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Company aims at promoting and maintaining effective

(both
individuals and institutions) (collectively the “Stakeholders”)

communications with shareholders and investors
to ensure that the Group’s information is disseminated to
Stakeholders in a timely manner and enable them to have a
clear assessment of the enterprise performance. A shareholder’s
communication policy has been adopted by the Company and
will be reviewed on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

Constitutional documents

During the Reporting Period, there had been no significant
change to the Company’s constitutional documents.

Disclosures in corporate website

Extensive information on the Group’s activities and financial
position will be disclosed in the annual reports, interim reports,
announcements, circulars and other corporate communications
which will be sent to shareholders and/or published on the
websites of HKExnews (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(www.gemdalepi.com). Other inside information is released
by way of formal public announcements as required by the
Listing Rules and the provisions in relation to disclosure of
Inside Information under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

General meeting with Shareholders

The Company also acknowledges that annual general meetings
and various general meetings are valuable forums for the Board
to communicate directly with the shareholders and members
of the Board and the members of various committees are
encouraged to attend and answer questions at such general
meetings.
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Procedures for Shareholders to convene a special general
meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws and the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (“Companies Act’), registered Shareholders
holding not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company (“SGM Requisitionists”) can deposit a written
request to convene a SGM at the registered office of the
Company (“Registered Office”), which is presently situated at
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda. The
SGM Requisitionists must state in their request(s) the objects of
the SGM and such request(s) must be signed by all the SGM
Requisitionists and may consist of several documents in like
form, each signed by one or more of the SGM Requisitionists.

The share registrars of the Company (the “Share Registrars”)
will verify the SGM Requisitionists’ particulars in the SGM
Requisitionists’ request. Promptly after confirmation from the
Share Registrars that the SGM Requisitionists’ request is in
order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the Board
to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice to all the
registered Shareholders in accordance with all the relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements. On the contrary, if the
SGM Requisitionists’ request is verified not in order, the SGM
Requisitionists will be advised of the outcome and accordingly,
a SGM will not be convened as requested.

The SGM Requisitionists, or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a SGM if within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit of
the SGM Requisitionists’ request, the Board does not proceed
duly to convene a SGM provided that any SGM so convened
is held within three (3) months from the date of the original
SGM Requisitionists’ request. A SGM so convened by the SGM
Requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly
as possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by
the Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at a
general meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act, either any number of the
registered Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%)
of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company (“Requisitionists”), or not
less than 100 of such registered Shareholders, can request the
Company in writing to (a) give to Shareholders entitled to receive
notice of the next general meeting notice of any resolution which
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting; and (b) circulate to Shareholders entitled to have notice
of any general meeting any statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
the Requisitionists; and it must be deposited at the Registered
Office with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
relevant expenses, not less than six weeks before the meeting
in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or not
less than one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition, provided that if an AGM is called for a date six weeks
or less after the requisition has been deposited, the requisition
though not deposited within the time required shall be deemed
to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election
as a Director, please refer to the procedures made available
under the Corporate Governance section of the Company’s
website at www.gemdalepi.com.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose
contact details are as follows:

Suites 3602-3608, 36th Floor
Two International Finance Centre
No. 8 Finance Street

Central

Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2826 2888

Email: hhx@gemdalepi.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT VARIOUS MEETINGS

Details of the attendance of individual Directors at Board
meetings, committee meetings and shareholder meetings held

EESRNEERZHER

i

—ZFUHHRFE -

EREENEFS

F ZESeRRBERREZLERE %WIJZZD

during FY2013 are as follows: N
Audit Remuneration Nomination AGM SGM
Board Committee Committee  Committee BR BR
ETe ENZEE §MZEE REZEE BEAE $BRIAE
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr. Ling Ke RREE 5/10* 0/1 0/2
Mr. Huang Juncan BRIEEE 7107 1 0/1 0/2
(Chairman of the Board) (EZ21fF)
Mr. Wei Chuanjun BEBLAE 9/12" 0/1 12
Mr. Xu Jiajun RRMEEE 8/12" 3/3 117 0/2
Mr. Leung Ka Hing, Harry RREEE 212
(past Director) (BHEZ)
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
Mr. Cheong Fook Seng, Anthony REHEE 2/2
(past Director) (BILEE)
Ms. Chong Siak Ching REENL 112
(past Director) (BREE)
Mr. Chia Nam Toon HEEEE 12
(Alternate to Ms. Chong Siak (REELLZ
Ching (past Director)) BHEE (BEZ))
Mr. Hui Choon Kit (past Director) HBHEK (BHEE) 22 11
Mr. Lim Ee Seng (past Director) WalsEE (BRAEZE) 2/2 11
Mr. Tang Kok Kai, Christopher YEELE (BHEF) 212
(past Director)
INEDs BUFHTEE
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung il 12113 404 4j4 i 17 2/
Mr. Chiang Sheung Yee, Anthony BHELE 99 2/2 1 111 2/2
Mr. Hu Chunyuan PELEL 9/9 12 3/3 17 0/2
Mr. Kwee Chong Kok, Michael DYEEE 4/4 212
(past Director) (BrEE)
Ms. Wong Siu Ming, Helen "5EHLT 414 2[2
(past Director) (BEF)
Mr. Chong Kok Kong (past Director)  SREIR %4 (B2ZE %) 2/4 2/2 11
Notes: Hat
1. Appointed on 30 October 2012 1. REZF—ZF+ A=+ HEZ
2. Resigned on 20 November 2012 2. R-FE——F+—H -1 HEF
3. Appointed on 20 November 2012 3. R —E——Ff+—H - HEZT
4. Resigned on 30 November 2012 4. R-FE——F+—H=+HFT
5. Appointed on 30 November 2012 5. REZFE—ZFF+—A=1+HEZF

required to abstain from voting.

>k

Three of the meetings were held to discuss the connected
transactions of the Company in which executive Directors were

One of the meetings was held by the former Nomination and
Remuneration Committee to resolve remuneration related matters.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their
report and the audited financial statements of the Company
for the 15 months ended 31 December 2013 (the “Reporting
Period”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company continues to be investment
holding while the principal activities of its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) are property investment, development and
management of residential, commercial and business park
projects. There have been no changes in the nature of the
Group's principal activities during the Reporting Period.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group’s revenue and contribution to operating profit for the
Reporting Period by business segment is as follows:

ARAER ([EE]) EREARFEE-T—
=Ft+-A=t+—HLE+AEA TH&REHD) 2
EEemENREBERMBESR

FEXK

ARBBEBENREERASTEER  MAHBA
A (e [AEE]) cX2XBRRMERE -
BRAEEEET BELBXEEAR - ®BEH
N AEEZ ETBXHHEL T EITAES -

RIEMA - AEBIREB D B2 WA RKLE 4

By business segment: REBDEB
Property Business
development park  Corporate Group
(In HK$’000) (UB¥ThEN) MERRE [EESE] tEER r5E
Revenue WA 55,490 235,161 - 290,651
Segment profit/(loss) HEEF (ER) (134,218) 1,783,697 (118,601) 1,530,878
SUBSIDIARIES NG|

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2013 are set out in note 19 to the financial statements.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the 15 months ended 31 December
2013 and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at
that date are set out on pages 83 to 226 of the annual report.

No interim dividend was paid during the Reporting Period. The
Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.01 per share (Year ended 30 September 2012: Nil) for the
15 months ended 31 December 2013, subject to shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. The proposed final dividend, if approved, will be paid
on or about 30 June 2014 to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on 20 May 2014.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on page 18 of the
annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Details of movements in properties under development of the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 17 to the
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in investment properties of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements. Further details of the Group’s investment properties
are set out on pages 228 to 232 of the annual report.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED

The Group’s bank borrowings as at 31 December 2013 and the
amount of interest capitalised by the Group during the Reporting
Period are set out in notes 31 and 7 to the financial statements,
respectively.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the Reporting Period are set out in note 27(a) to the financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Reporting Period are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and note 28 to the financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2013, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution and/or distribution in specie amounted to
approximately HK$2,646,266,000. This amount has included
share premium which may be distributed in form of bonus shares
amounting to HK$1,613,050,000.

WARRANTS, OPTIONS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Other than the share option schemes of the Company and the
outstanding options granted under such share option schemes
as disclosed in note 27(b) to the financial statements, the
Company had no outstanding warrants, options or similar rights
as at 31 December 2013.

DONATION

Donation made by the Group during the Reporting Period
amounted to HK$378,000 (Year ended 30 September 2012 Nil).
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[ |

DIRECTORS =23

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of RWEEANEEAFRAE EEWF -

the annual report were:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Ling Ke (note 1) Er A (HiE1)

Mr. Huang Juncan (Chairman) (note 1) =HEREEE (FE) (KiF1)

Mr. Wei Chuanjun (Chief Financial Officer) (note 2) BEERE (HEE) (KiF2)

Mr. Xu Jiajun (Chief Executive Officer) (note 2) BRRERE (77B4EH) (Ki72)

Mr. Leung Ka Hing, Harry (a past Director and see note 3) PRERE (BHEF - BREHE3)

Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Cheong Fook Seng, Anthony (a past Director and see note 4)  SRigR i (BHEZEFE » E LN it4)

Ms. Chong Siak Ching (whose alternate was Mr. Chia Nam Toon) REBxw+ (EETEEABEEBEL)

(a past Director and see note 4) (BIEEE - FANFE4)

Mr. Hui Choon Kit (a past Director and see note 4) EGLE (BAFEFE - BRENE4)

Mr. Lim Ee Seng (a past Director and see note 4) MGt (BAEESE - FAMNH4)

Mr. Tang Kok Kai, Christopher (a past Director and see note 4) HB{ER4E (BHREEF - BLENiT4)

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) BYEHITES

Mr. Hui Chiu Chung FFRRA S

Mr. Chiang Sheung Yee, Anthony (note 5) BrREEE (Hits)

Mr. Hu Chunyuan (note 5) tEITLEE (H1i25)

Mr. Kwee Chong Kok, Michael (a past Director and see note 6) SSEBAE (BHEE @ 7 LN1iE6)

Ms. Wong Siu Ming, Helen (a past Director and see note 6) mERT T (BREEFE - BFLEAHE)

Mr. Chong Kok Kong (a past Director and see note 6) SREINSEE (BEESE - FRMTE)

Notes: Mt -
appointed on 20 November 2012 1. REZF—ZF+— A1+ HEZF
appointed on 30 October 2012 2. RZF—ZF+A=-F+HEZF

3. resigned as chief executive officer of the Company and executive 3. PR =ZE——ZFF+A=ZFHAR=ZF—Z=F
Director on 30 October 2012 and 20 November 2012, respectively +— A=+ HEAEARRATHBERNTESE
resigned on 20 November 2012 4. R-IFE——F+—H -1 HEFT
appointed on 30 November 2012 5. RE-F——F+—H=1THEZHF
resigned on 30 November 2012 R-FE——F+—H=1HEF

The Company has received annual confirmations of AAFRBWRIMAEBYIFNTESRLZFES
independence from all INEDs and as at the date of the annual MR E X TRARSFNAFERBBHTNES
report still considers them to be independent. AYAR
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According to bye-law 109(A) and 189(vii) of the bye-laws of
the Company, three Directors, namely, Mr. Chiang Sheung
Yee, Anthony, Mr. Hu Chunyuan and Mr. Xu Jiajun will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming AGM of the Company and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company on 20 May
2003 (the “Share Option Scheme 2003”) which expired on 20
May 2013 and a new share option scheme was adopted by the
Company on 15 May 2013 (the “Share Option Scheme 2013")
for the purpose of continuing to give incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to the
Qualifying Grantees (as defined in the Share Option Scheme
2013) of the Company. Any share options which were granted
under the Share Option Scheme 2003 prior to its expiry shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme 2003.

A summary of the Share Option Scheme 2003 and the Share
Option Scheme 2013 (collectively “Share Option Schemes”) is
set out as follows:

Purposes of the Share Option Schemes

The purposes of the Share Option Schemes are to attract and
retain the best quality personnel for the development of the
Company’s businesses, to provide additional incentives to
directors and employees, etc., and to promote the long term
financial success of the Company by aligning the interests of
option holders to shareholders.

Participants of the Share Option Schemes

Eligible participants of the Share Option Schemes include any
employee or any proposed employee (including an officer
or director (whether executive or non-executive) or alternate
director of the Company or any affiliate), etc.
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Total number of shares available for issue under the Share
Option Schemes and percentage of issued share capital as
at the date of the annual report

Share options representing the rights to subscribe for
154,230,000 shares under the Share Option Scheme 2003
remain outstanding as of the date of this report. As the Share
Option Scheme 2003 has already expired, no further share
options will be granted under the Share Option Scheme 2003.

The Company had granted share options representing the
rights to subscribe for 462,803,000 shares under the Share
Option Scheme 2013 up to the date of this report. Pursuant to
the existing scheme mandate limit, the Company may further
grant share options to subscribe for 313,934,489 shares of the
Company, representing approximately 3.45% of the total issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of this report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Share
Option Schemes

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
both exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue
unless the same is approved by shareholders in general meeting.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
respective associates, are subject to the approval in advance
by the INEDs of the Company, excluding the INED(s) of the
Company who is/are the grantee(s) of the share options. In
addition, any share option granted to a substantial shareholder
or an INED of the Company, or to any of their respective
associates, in any 12-month period must not exceed 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of grant or
with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares as at the date of grant) must not exceed
HK$5 million unless the same is approved by shareholders in
general meeting.
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The period within which the shares must be taken up under
an option

The exercise period of the share options granted is determined
by the Board, and commences on a specified date and ends
on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant
of the share options.

The minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised

1 year

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls must
or may be made or loans for such purposes must be paid

HK$1 is to be paid by each grantee as consideration for the
grant of option within 28 days from the date of offer.

The basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price shall be determined by the Directors, being
at least the highest of:

(a) the closing price of shares as stated in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer, which must be

a business day;

the average closing price of shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of offer; and

(c)

the nominal value of a Company’s share.

The remaining life of the Share Option Schemes

The Share Option Schemes shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on the respective dates of their
adoption. The Share Option Scheme 2003 expired on 20 May
2013. The Share Option Scheme 2013 which was adopted on
15 May 2013 will expire on 15 May 2023.
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Details of the movements of the share options under the Share

Option Schemes during the Reporting Period are as follows:

BRETEIAT 2BRER RS HANEBFE
LU

Number of share options

BREZE
Exercised
during the

Outstanding Reporting Cancelled  Outstanding

as at Granted during Period during the as at

Year of grant 1/10/2012  the Reporting (Note 7) Reporting 3112/2013

(Note 6) R=B-ZF Period REELHR Period R-E-Z=%&

Name or category of grantees BRELER THh-H REESHR (i REESRN +=A=+-A

SaEHEHER (Hiit6) W RAT R Rt (Wit7) HUH K17
Executive Directors

YHES

Mr. Ling Ke 2013 - 27,950,000 - - 27,950,000

ARt 2013 - 49,500,000 - - 49,500,000

- 77,450,000 - - 77,450,000

Mr. Huang Juncan 2013 - 20,960,000 - - 20,960,000

aRBEE 2013* - 43,500,000 - - 43,500,000

- 64,460,000 - - 64,460,000

Mr. Wei Chuanjun 2013 - 11,650,000 - - 11,650,000

BEERE 2013" - 32,500,000 - - 32,500,000

- 44,150,000 - - 44,150,000

Mr. Xu Jiajun 2013 - 15,130,000 - - 15,130,000

BRELE 2013* - 39,100,000 - - 39,100,000

- 54,230,000 - - 54,230,000

Mr. Leung Ka Hing, Harry 2011 4,000,000 - - (4,000,000 -

(a past Director)
PRELE (BAEE)
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Number of share options
BREHE

Exercised

during the
Outstanding Reporting Cancelled  Outstanding
as at Granted during Period during the as at
Year of grant 110/2012  the Reporting (Note 7) Reporting 31112/2013
(Note 6) R=F-Zf Period RBESHR Period H-Z-=f
Name or category of grantees Notes RLEH tA-H R&EHR K3 REEHR TZA=1-A
SREHATER it (Hrit6) AT R (Wt7) HE W KA

Non-executive Directors

FHTES
Ms. Chong Siak Ching (a past Director) 2 2003 1,079,439 - - (1,079,439) -
REENT (BHEZE) 2004 1,079,439 - - (1,079,439) -
2005 1,727,103 - - (1,727,103) -
2006 1,800,000 - - (1,800,000) -
2007 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) -
2008 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) -
2009 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) -
2010 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) -
2011 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) -
15,685,981 - - (15,685981) -
INEDs
BUkHTES
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung 2005 1,103 - - (1,103) -
SR 2006 1,800,000 - - (1,800,000) -
2007 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) -
2009 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) -
2010 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) -
2011 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) -
2013 - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
2013 - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
9,801,103 5,000,000 - (9,801,103) 5,000,000
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Number of share options
BRES A
Exercised
during the

Outstanding Reporting Cancelled  Outstanding

as at Granted during Period during the as at

Year of grant 110/2012  the Reporting (Note 7) Reporting 31112/2013

(Note 6) H=B-ZF& Period RBREHR Period RZZ-=F

Name or category of grantees Notes RLEH tA-H R&EHR K3 REEHR TZA=1-A

SREHATER it (Hrit6) AT E it (Wt7) BUH HRTE

Mr. Chiang Sheung Yee, Anthony 5 2013 - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000

BrELE 2013* - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000

- 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000

Mr. Hu Chunyuan 5 2013 - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000

BETEE 2013" - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000

- 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000

Mr. Chong Kok Kong (a past Director) 4 2006 900,000 - - (900,000 -

REXEE (BAEE) 2007 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) -

2008 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) -

2009 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) -

2010 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) -

2011 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) -

10,900,000 - - (10,900,000) -

Mr. Kwee Chong Kok, Michael 4 2011 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) -

(a past Director)

PYELE (BHEF)

Ms. Wong Siu Ming, Helen 4 2011 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) -

(a past Director)

ERANNT (HHEF)
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Number of share options
BRES A
Exercised
during the
Outstanding Reporting Cancelled  Outstanding
as at Granted during Period during the as at
Year of grant 110/2012  the Reporting (Note 7) Reporting 31112/2013
(Note 6) H=B-ZF& Period RBREHR Period RZZ-=F
Name or category of grantees Notes RLEH tA-H R&EHR K3 REEHR TZA=1-A
SREHATER it (Hrit6) AT it (Wt7) BUH HRTE
Others
At
In aggregate 2003 7,562,298 - (1,619,159) (5,943,139) -
CEl 2004 8,636,841 - (1619,159)  (7,017,682) -
2005 7,879,907 - - (7,879,907) -
2006 7,400,000 - - (7,400,000 -
2007 9,550,000 - - (9,550,000) -
2008 5,250,000 - - (5,250,000) -
2009 7,425,000 - - (7,425,000 -
2010 6,150,000 - - (6,150,000) -
2011 3,488,000 - - (3,488,000) -
2013 - 72,540,000 - - 72,540,000
2013* - 291,598,000 - - 291,598,000
63,342,046 364,138,000 (3238318)  (60,103,728) 364,138,000
107,729,130 619,428,000 (3,238,318)  (104,490,812) 619,428,000
Notes: Htat -
1. Appointed on 30 October 2012 1 R-F——F+HA=1THEZF
2. Resigned on 20 November 2012 2 R-E——F+—A=-1+HEFT
3. Appointed on 20 November 2012 3 R-F——F+—H-1HEZF
4, Resigned on 30 November 2012 4 R-E——F+—A=1HFT
5. Appointed on 30 November 2012 5 R-F——F+—H=1THEZHF
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Closing price of the
Company’s share quoted
on the Stock Exchange

Exercise period immediately before

(subject to vesting the date of grant

schedule below) Exercise ARARGREE

Year of Grant Date of grant TR (SRR price R AT EB AT
RHIF5 R AH V- Lok TEE Pz UimE
HK$ HK$

BT BT

2003 31/12/2003 31/12/2004 - 30/12/2013 0.1580 0.1547
2004 31/12/2004 31/12/2005 - 30/12/2014 0.1547 0.1547
2005 30/12/2005 30/12/2006 - 29/12/2015 0.1343 0.1343
2006 13/11/2006 13/11/2007 - 12/11/2016 0.1670 0.1660
2007 09/11/2007 09/11/2008 - 08/11/2017 0.3370 0.3450
2008 14/11/2008 14/11/2009 - 13/11/2018 0.1000 0.0680
2009 13/11/2009 13/11/2010 - 12/11/2019 0.1550 0.1500
2010 12/11/2010 12/11/2011 - 11/11/2020 0.2050 0.2100
2011 11/11/2011 11/11/2012 - 10/11/2021 0.1656 0.1620
2013 07/01/2013 07/01/2014 - 06/01/2023 0.5500 0.4550
2013* 20/05/2013 20/05/2014 - 19/05/2023 0.7920 0.7800

Percentage of shares over
which a share option

is exercisable

Vesting schedule for share options R-BE=F+-F=+—-H FIERZBREGEATE
granted on 31 December 2003 RUiIZERBEZEBREZ BREZES R
%
Before the first anniversary of the date of grant R Az —#FET 0
On or after the first but before the second il HE .z —BF 22 18 F R 25
anniversary of the date of grant
On or after the second but before the third R AB L HAFEZ %18 = FF R 25
anniversary of the date of grant
On or after the third but before the fourth R ARz = BF B2 7 BI9EF 5] 25
anniversary of the date of grant
On or after the fourth anniversary of R HBLZ IEF 2 # 25

the date of grant
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Percentage of shares over
which a share option
is exercisable
Vesting schedule for share options R-EE=FF-F=+—R# S RZBOEATTE
granted after 31 December 2003 RUZERBEZEBREZ BREZEI
%
Before the first anniversary of M H Bz —BF 5T 0
the date of grant
On or after the first but before the second R AR —AF 2 # 40
anniversary of the date of grant 18 Ry 28 B
On or after the second but before the third M A B EFE L 30
anniversary of the date of grant 18 = 4 B
On or after the third anniversary R A2 =HFs 2 # 30
of the date of grant
In relation to the share options, if the eligible participant, during TEREME e EELREER FITAE
any of the periods specified above, exercises that share option THIRETEZBRIESRZEZRGEE & FEL
for such number of shares which, in aggregate, represents less RE B8 B E 77 57 B3] 7] 77 (8 B IR 12 B 25 %
than the number of shares for which the eligible participant may ZRIDEH - AIA EEREERZARI A TE
exercise in respect of such period, the balance of the shares MIARITIEZERIENR ZR1DEHEEE - A
comprised in that share option for which the eligible participant BRI S BIR2EEZ R T — R ERE AT 7T
could have exercised (but did not exercise) in that period shall (BEER IR 2 IR (7 & H -
be carried forward and added to the number of shares which
the eligible participant may exercise in the next succeeding
period or periods.
7. The weighted average closing prices of the shares immediately 7. REZRE - FEE = FRERRIEZTTIEERIE

before the dates on which share options were exercised under
the Share Option Scheme 2003 were HK$0.43.

S (£E) BIDEBE A 7 (‘Gemdale Corporation”), the ultimate
holding company of the Company, adopted a share option
scheme in February 2010 for the purpose of giving incentive
to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to the qualifying grantees of that company. Eligible
participants of the share option scheme include executive
directors of the Company, which has been disclosed under the
section headed “Directors’ Interests in Securities” below.

Apart from the aforesaid, at no time during the Reporting Period
was the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors and chief executive of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2013, the following Directors and the chief
executive of the Company had the following interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO or the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers under the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”):

R-ZZE—=F+=_A=+—8 AR TIES
REBITBRABRAARKERAHEE (TXR
ERERETEBHFRAER ((BFREE
RGI1) EXVER) Z2Bin - HBERD REREP R
EIREES LA EIENEI52E LR AR R A
GFEETSMzEZRAR  NREESKBAEK
PIEXVEB S EMAR A 2 L AR EFEITE
HFERHHRETR ([ZEFH)) BRTHAEAR
NAIRER Tz Em AR T

Annual Report 2012/13 F =k

(a) Long position in the share options of the Company (@) REQFEREZHFR

Approximate

percentage

of total

Number of Total number shareholding

share options of underlying (Note 3)

Nature of outstanding shares LR

Name of Director interest HARITHEZ  Notes HERfS ZBHREsR

BEEfR ERME BREHE k3 By (H1:#3)

Mr. Ling Ke Beneficial Owner 27,950,000 1 77,450,000 0.85%
B EmBEAA 49,500,000 2

M. Huang Juncan Beneficial Owner 20,960,000 1 64,460,000 0.71%
HEREEE BB A 43,500,000 2

Mr. Wei Chuanjun Beneficial Owner 11,650,000 1 44,150,000 0.49%
EEFLEA EmBEAA 32,500,000 2

Mr. Xu Jiajun Beneficial Owner 15,130,000 1 54,230,000 0.60%
BRERE EmEEA 39,100,000 2

Mr. Hui Chiu Chung Beneficial Owner 2,000,000 1 5,000,000 0.05%
FTRRASE A EnlEA 3,000,000 2

Mr. Chiang Sheung Yee, Beneficial Owner 2,000,000 1 5,000,000 0.05%

Anthony

BHELA EmEEA 3,000,000 2

Mr. Hu Chunyuan Beneficial Owner 2,000,000 1 5,000,000 0.05%
BT A EmEEA 3,000,000 2
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Notes: Kiat

1. The share options were granted on 7 January 2013, each with an 1. BEBRERE _FEE-FHEREFER=F
exercise price of HK$0.55 per share and a validity period from 7 —=F—A+ARY  FEZITEERERE
January 2013 to 6 January 2023 under the Share Option Scheme o556  R-ZF—=F—A+HE=-F ==
2003. F—HNHIFHR B o

2. The share options were granted on 20 May 2013, each with an 2. ZEBIRERE T —=FEREFTEIR_F
exercise price of HK$0.792 per share and a validity period from —=ZFAA-TARY  FEZTEELZER
20 May 2013 to 19 May 2023 under the Share Option Scheme BR0.792 RZF—=FAA=-F+HE=F
2013. C=FAATAA IR

3. The percentage shareholding in the Company is calculated on 3. RARB]ZREE AL TIIE—F—=F+=A
the basis of 9,093,101,032 shares in issue as at 31 December =+ —HZEZE7THR179,093,101,032/8 5 EE
2013. FTE -

4. The share options granted are subject to certain vesting period 4. RIESBREBERIEZICHTE TR ER
as specified under the respective Share Option Schemes. BXETEHBHAYIR -

(b) Long position in the shares and underlying shares of (b) RZAATHEEELE - ShEEZRHTEE
the associated corporation of the Company — Gemdale AR 2FR
Corporation

Number of

04

share options

Approximate

outstanding Total percentage

(Note) number of of total

Nature of Number of i RITEZ underlying  shareholding

Name of Director interest shares BREHAR shares LR ERE

EEnE ERMtE [dvip- =] (Hiat) HERGEE ZBEI

Mr. Ling Ke Beneficial Owner 130,000 8,946,000 9,076,000 0.20%
BT EnlEEA

M. Huang Juncan Beneficial Owner 100,000 4,914,000 5,014,000 0.11%
\mEBREE EnlEAA

Mr. Wei Chuanjun Beneficial Owner 30,000 2,394,000 2,424,000 0.05%
EEFLEA EmEEA

Mr. Xu Jiajun Beneficial Owner 50,000 2,502,000 2,552,000 0.06%
RRIEFRE EmEEA

Note: The share options were granted on 19 March 2010, et ZEBRER-_ZE-—ZFF=H+NAK

each with an exercise price of RMB7.58 per share and a
validity period from 19 March 2011 to 18 March 2017.

Gemdale Properties and Investment Corporation Limited & # & & E AR A7

4 EAZTTEERFRARE?58
T RCE——FZ AT AAEF—
tFZATNAUHREER -



Directors’ Report

ESERE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company had any
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the Model
Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
SECURITIES

INTERESTS IN

As at 31 December 2013, the following persons (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) had the following
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

BREXHEBEEN RZBE—=F+_-A=+—
B ARREERGESTHABRER AR T
S EEAREAE (E& R EFLBEKRGIFEXV
B 2 Bfn - RO RERES - BAREE
7 M HIEERAIEI52FEHERARBAFEER
Mz EAERSORR - WIREES MG EIIE
XVER AR ST RIZBE R 1T AR A R B 32 P 2 4

LI AN
MEOKE °

FERRNEZ 2B

RZB—=F4+"A=+—8 KR FALR (X
RAEFXZHTHABRIN) NAF R HAE
BRI R A T RIR E 5 M B8 15 ) 33615
RN AABAFEERM I ERIAE

Long position in the shares of the Company REXTRB 2R
Approximate
percentage
of total
Number of shareholding
ordinary shares (Note 2)
Nature of interest/ interested LR ERAE
Name of shareholder Note Capacity BERERZ BHAES L
REEME Hfat EEME 515 EERHA (Hitz)
Gemdale Corporation 1 Interest of controlled 6,565,112,983 72.20%
corporations
THEE RiELE R
Famous Commercial Limited 1 Directly beneficially 6,565,112,983 72.20%
owned
EIEEEER AT HEERER
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Notes:

1. As at 31 December 2013, Famous Commercial Limited was
wholly and beneficially owned by Gemdale Corporation. As
such, Gemdale Corporation was deemed to be interested in
the 6,565,112,983 shares held by Famous Commercial Limited.
Gemdale Corporation is a company established in the People’s
Republic of China ("PRC”) and listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange.

2. The percentage shareholding in the Company is calculated on
the basis of 9,093,101,032 shares in issue as at 31 December
2013.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, no other
person had any interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Each of Messrs. Ling Ke, Huang Juncan, Wei Chuanjun and Xu
Jiajun, all being the executive Directors, is also a director and/or
top management of Gemdale Corporation which is the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company and is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Therefore, each
of Messrs. Ling Ke, Huang Juncan, Wei Chuanjun and Xu Jiajun
is materially interested in the transactions as disclosed in the
section headed “Connected Transactions” below.

Save for the transactions as disclosed in the section headed
“Connected Transactions” below and the material related party
transactions as disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
of the annual report, no other contracts of significance in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries is a party, and in which any Director had a material
interest (whether directly or indirectly) or to which Gemdale
Corporation or any of its subsidiaries is a party, subsisted at the
end of the Reporting Period or at any time during the Reporting
Period.
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RAGIEZHEBEETR R - HU - £
MEFHEREABRBELEEFEERRGIFEZ
6,565,112,983/R R (7 P B 1w o £ HEH 5
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R EBFHFXZGHT LT °
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OTHER DIRECTORS’ INTEREST

As at the date of this report, the following Directors were also
a director or an employee of the following companies, each of
which had or was deemed to have an interest or short position in
the shares or underlying shares in respect of equity derivatives

EEHMtES

RARERH - THEETRRATRAZEER
BE MERXTARBOIEERATETALZ
HEEBN AR IR AR REES LREGRIIFE
XVERSE2 M 3D #BRE AR AR AR E 2 sk

of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company  #& :
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Name of substantial shareholder Position in substantial shareholder
Name of Director of the Company of the Company
EEnE ARAREERRER RAERBRNETERR 2B
Mr. Ling Ke Gemdale Corporation S EE Director %
Er A Famous Commercial PR IS 7 Director o
Mr. Huang Juncan Gemdale Corporation LB Director )
EERBEE Famous Commercial HEB K2 7 75 Director E)
Mr. Wei Chuanjun Gemdale Corporation & Ho 52 B Chief Financial Officer BA TS B EL
BEEFELE Famous Commercial BEAE P 7 Director g
Mr. Xu Jiajun Gemdale Corporation S EE Director S
RRELE
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BEXS
The Group has entered into the following connected transactions ~ AREE R RSN EARE B B I L 2T 5169
during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report: WG
(a) Continuing Connected Transactions (a) RHEBRERS

1.

On 8 April 2013, a trademark master agreement was
entered into between Gemdale Corporation and the
Company which was supplemented by a supplemental
agreement dated 5 September 2013 (collectively, the
“2013 Trademark Master Agreement”), pursuant to which
Gemdale Corporation agreed to grant a non-exclusive
right to the Company and its subsidiaries to use certain
trademarks of Gemdale Corporation in the PRC as set out
therein for the period from 15 May 2013 to 31 December
2013 at a royalty fee in cash calculated based on (a)
0.6% of the contracted sales of the property projects
developed by the Group (other than FEZEKR B AR A A
Xi’an Zhujia Property Company Limited* (“Xi’an Zhujia”)
and &5 B FHEE % B A 7 Shenyang Gemdale
Binhe Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* (“Shenyang
Gemdale”) using the relevant trademarks; and (b) 1%
of the contracted sales of properties developed by
Xi'an Zhujia and Shenyang Gemdale, both of which
are subsidiaries of the Company using the relevant
trademarks.

*

For identification purpose only

1.

R-B—=FANR  £HEEERD
AEIVEEERGE YR -T—=FAh
ARRAVEARZE (GBI ZE—=F
BEEAMRE]) Bt eEERER
AATIREMBATR-_Z—=1A+
EHE-_ZT—=9+-A=+—HItHMH
BREEPRFERZ RV PASHERST
IR 2 IEBERER] - EF B ThE(a)AEE
(MELERBEARAR ([ARER]) &
EEeHENEEEEARR AT ([BB
£ ]) BN FREBREEREER ZY
HAMMETE206%  ROBARERE
B (MEHARQAG ZWEB RG]
FAEHEEHREB 2 WEANIEEE
1%t E -

* EREE)
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Gemdale Corporation is the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company and is therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. The
entering into of the 2013 Trademark Master Agreement
constituted a continuing connected transaction of the
Company. Accordingly, the Company set the annual
cap for the royalty fee payable pursuant to the 2013
Trademark Master Agreement at RMB35,000,000 for the
period ended 31 December 2013.

During the Reporting Period, a royalty fee of
RMB18,693,000 was paid to Gemdale Corporation under
the 2013 Trademark Master Agreement.

On 8 April 2013, two separate entrusted operation
agreements (collectively, the “2013 Entrusted Operation
Agreements”) were entered into between each of 1t
SR ERMEMIEHR AR Beijing Gemdale Hongyun
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* (“Beijing Gemdale”)
and BRPAS M EFZ X BB A Shaanxi Gemdale Jiahe
Property Co., Ltd.* (“Shaanxi Gemdale”) and the
Company, pursuant to which each of Beijing Gemdale
and Shaanxi Gemdale agreed to engage the Company
(or its subsidiary(ies)) to manage the daily operations
of certain property(ies) located in the PRC for and on its
behalf for the period from 15 May 2013 to 31 December
2013 at a management fee of RMB6.91 and RMB10.57
per square meter per month, respectively, with reference
to the total gross floor area of the property(ies).

Both Beijing Gemdale and Shaanxi Gemdale are
subsidiaries of Gemdale Corporation and are therefore
connected persons of the Company under the Listing
Rules. The entering into of the 2013 Entrusted Operation
Agreements constituted continuing connected transactions
of the Company. Accordingly, the Company set the
annual cap for the aggregate amount of management
fee receivable pursuant to the 2013 Entrusted Operation
Agreements (aggregated under Rules 14A.25 and 14A.26
of the Listing Rules) at RMB21,400,000 for the period
ended 31 December 2013.
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During the Reporting Period, an aggregate amount of
management fee of RMB20,129,000 was received from
Beijing Gemdale and Shaanxi Gemdale under the 2013
Entrusted Operation Agreements.

On 8 April 2013, a property management service
agreement (the “2013 Property Management Service
Agreement”’) was entered into between JFIITH &b ¥
B AR A7 Shenzhen Gemdale Property Management
Co., Ltd.* (“Shenzhen Gemdale”) and Vision (Shenzhen)
Business Park Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Weixin"), a
subsidiary of the Company, pursuant to which Shenzhen
Weixin agreed to commission Shenzhen Gemdale to carry
out certain property management services for Phase 1
and Phase 2 of Vision Shenzhen Business Park for the
period from 15 May 2013 to 31 December 2013 at a
property management fee of approximately RMB7 per
square meter per month with reference to the gross floor
area of the property.

Shenzhen Gemdale is a subsidiary of Gemdale
Corporation and is therefore a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules. The entering into
of the 2013 Property Management Service Agreement
constituted a continuing connected transaction of the
Company. Accordingly, the Company set the annual cap
for the property management fee payable pursuant to
the 2013 Property Management Service Agreement at
RMB8,020,000 for the period ended 31 December 2013.

During the Reporting Period, property management fee of
approximately RMB7,558,000 was charged to Shenzhen
Gemdale.
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As the 2013 Trademark Master Agreement expired on 31
December 2013, a new trademark master agreement (the
“‘New Trademark Master Agreement”) was entered into
between Gemdale Corporation and the Company on 13
December 2013 so as to enable the Group to continue to
use the trademarks of Gemdale Corporation in the PRC
licensed under the 2013 Trademark Master Agreement.

Pursuant to the New Trademark Master Agreement,
Gemdale Corporation agreed to grant a non-exclusive
right to the Group to use certain trademarks of Gemdale
Corporation in the PRC as set out therein and to
provide consultancy services to the Company (or its
subsidiary(ies)) in relation to the property projects of
the Company (or its subsidiary(ies)) using such licensed
trademarks for the year ending 31 December 2014 at a
royalty fee calculated based on (a) 0.6% of the contracted
sales of property projects developed by the Group (other
than Xi'an Zhujia and Shenyang Gemdale) using the
relevant trademarks; and (b) 1% of the contracted sales
of properties developed by Xi’an Zhujia and Shenyang
Gemdale using the relevant trademarks.

Accordingly, the Company set the annual cap for the
aggregate amount of royalty fee payable pursuant to the
New Trademark Master Agreement at RMB64,000,000 for
the year ending 31 December 2014.

As the 2013 Entrusted Operation Agreements expired
on 31 December 2013, three new separate entrusted
operation agreements (collectively, the “New Entrusted
Operation Agreements”) were entered into between
each of Shaanxi Gemdale, Beijing Gemdale, 43 f  Hb
EE I E R AR /A A Shaoxing Gemdale Shenxing Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.* (“Shaoxing Gemdale”)
and the Company on 13 December 2013.
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Pursuant to the New Entrusted Operation Agreements,
each of Shaanxi Gemdale, Beijing Gemdale and
Shaoxing Gemdale agreed to engage the Company (or its
subsidiary(ies)) to manage the daily operations of certain
property(ies) located in the PRC for and on its behalf as
set out therein for the year ending 31 December 2014 at
a management fee of RMB6.48, RMB10.57 and RMB7.69
per square meter per month, respectively, with reference
to the total gross floor area of the property(ies).

Accordingly, the Company set the annual cap for the
aggregate amount of management fee receivable
pursuant to the New Entrusted Operation Agreements
at RMB46,560,000 (aggregated under Rules 14A.25
and 14A.26 of the Listing Rules) for the year ending 31
December 2014.

As the 2013 Property Management Service Agreement
expired on 31 December 2013, a new property
management service agreement (the “New Property
Management Service Agreement’) was entered into
between Shenzhen Weixin, a subsidiary of the Company,
and Shenzhen Gemdale on 13 December 2013 so as to
enable Shenzhen Weixin to continue to engage Shenzhen
Gemdale to provide property management services for
Phase 1 and Phase 2 of Vision Shenzhen Business Park.

Pursuant to the New Property Management Service
Agreement, Shenzhen Weixin agreed to commission
Shenzhen Gemdale to provide certain property
management services for Phase 1 and Phase 2 of Vision
Shenzhen Business Park for the year ending 31 December
2014 at a property management fee of approximately
RMB7.2 per square meter per month with reference to
the gross floor area of the property.
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Accordingly, the Company set the annual cap for the
property management fee payable pursuant to the New
Property Management Agreement at RMB12,360,000 for
the year ending 31 December 2014.

On 13 December 2013, the Company and Shenzhen
Gemdale entered into a framework agreement (the
‘Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which Shenzhen
Gemdale (as the property management services provider)
agreed to provide property management services on
security control, cleaning, liaison, material procurement
relating to property management during the development
stage of the property projects of the Group as set
out therein for the year ending 31 December 2014 at
a service fee calculated based on the service costs
incurred for the various property projects of the Group
to be launched in 2014 plus 10% margin and 5.7% tax
mark-up as business tax reimbursement over such costs
and margin.

Accordingly, the Company set the annual cap for the
aggregate amount of service fee payable pursuant to the
Framework Agreement at RMB39,000,000 for the year
ending 31 December 2014.

In relation to any property project of the Group which
requires the services under the Framework Agreement,
the relevant member of the Group will enter into a
separate subsidiary agreement with Shenzhen Gemdale
or its subsidiary setting out the specific scope of services
required and amount of fees payable in conformity with
the principles set out in the Framework Agreement.
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On 20 February 2014, two design services agreements
(collectively, the “Design Services Agreements”) were
entered into between each of FAZ K EEAFR AR Xi'an
Zhutian Property Company Limited* (“Xi’an Zhutian”)
and AL ERFEHERZEBR AR Xi'an Zhutai Real Estate
Development Company Limited” (“Xi’an Zhutai”), both of
which are wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company, and
wII & s i B R 5 A BR A A) Shenzhen Gemdale Research
and Design Company Limited* (“Gemdale R&D and
Design”), respectively, pursuant to which each of Xi'an
Zhutian and Xi’an Zhutai agreed to engage Gemdale R&D
and Design to provide certain design services on the
master plan design, construction plan and construction
design development for the property project(s) in Xi'an,
the PRC set out therein for the year ending 31 December
2014 at a design fee of RMB26 per square meter of the
final gross floor area (above ground level) approved by
the government for the property project(s).

Gemdale Corporation is the ultimate holding company
of the Company and Gemdale R&D and Design is a
subsidiary of Gemdale Corporation and is therefore a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
The entering into of the Design Services Agreements
constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company.

Accordingly, the Company set the annual cap for the
aggregate amount of design fee pursuant to the Design
Services Agreements (aggregated under Rules 14A.25
and 14A.26 of the Listing Rules) at RMB6,790,000 for the
year ending 31 December 2014.

*
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Connected Transactions

On 17 August 2013, an agreement (the “Acquisition
Agreement”) was entered into between Wealth Avenue
Limited (the “Purchaser”),
of the Company, and Famous Commercial Limited (the

a wholly-owned subsidiary

“Vendor”), pursuant to which the Vendor has conditionally
agreed to sell to the Purchaser, and the Purchaser
has conditionally agreed to purchase from the Vendor,
the sale shares, comprising (i) the shares representing
51% of the entire issued share capital of Ever Trusty
Commercial Limited; (i) the shares representing 51%
of the entire issued share capital of Integrity Investment
(Hong Kong) Limited; and (iii) the shares representing
the entire issued share capital of Ever Trusty Investment
Management Limited, at an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$1,272.7 million, which shall be satisfied
in full by the Company issuing 1,325,726,134 new shares
at an issue price of HK$0.96 per share to the Vendor.

The Vendor is a controlling shareholder of the Company
and is therefore a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. The entering into of the Acquisition
Agreement constituted a connected transaction of
the Company. The above connected transaction was
approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company on 17 October 2013 and completed on 28
October 2013.

On 17 August
(“Oceanlane”)
subscription agreement, pursuant to which the Company

2013, Oceanlane Global
and

Limited
the Company entered into a
has conditionally agreed to allot and issue, and Oceanlane
has conditionally agreed to subscribe for, such number
of new shares in the Company up to a maximum of
776,737,490 new shares
at a subscription price of HK$0.96 per Subscription

(“Subscription Shares”)

Share. The final number of the Subscription Shares was
subsequently agreed by the parties to be 155,347,498.
The Subscription Shares are subject to a lock-up period
of 6 months from the completion date of the subscription.
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Oceanlane was owned as to more than 30%, in aggregate,
by Mr. Ling Ke, Mr. Huang Juncan, Mr. Wei Chuanjun
and Mr. Xu Jiajun, who are all executive Directors.
The transaction was approved by the independent
Shareholders on 17 October 2013.

Annual review of
transactions

the continuing connected

In accordance with Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules,
the INEDs had reviewed the continuing connected
transactions as contemplated under the 2013 Trademark
Master Agreement, 2013 Entrusted Operation Agreements
and the 2013 Property Management Service Agreement
(collectively, the *2013 Continuing Connected
Transactions”) which were subsisting during the
Reporting Period and confirmed that the 2013 Continuing
Connected Transactions had been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or
from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the 2013 Continuing Connected
Transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, were engaged
to report on the Group’s 2013 Continuing Connected
Transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst &
Young have issued their unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the 2013
Continuing Connected Transactions disclosed above by
the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

(c)
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Save as disclosed above, none of the material related party
transactions as disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
for the Reporting Period constituted discloseable non-exempted
connected transaction or non-exempted continuing connected
transaction under the Listing Rules.

To the extent of the above material related party transactions
constituted connected transaction as defined in the Listing Rules,
the Company had complied with the relevant requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of the annual
report, the following Directors are considered to have interests
in businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group pursuant
to the Listing Rules:

Mr. Ling Ke, Mr. Huang Juncan, Mr. Wei Chuanjun and Mr. Xu
Jiajun, all being executive Directors, held shareholding or other
interests and/or directorships in companies/entities within the
group of Gemdale Corporation which engaged in the businesses
of residential property development while supplementing with
commercial property development and financial business in
Mainland China.

However, the Board includes three INEDs whose views carry
significant weight in the Board’s decisions. The audit committee
of the Company, which consists of three INEDs, meets regularly
to assist the Board in reviewing the financial performance,
internal control and compliance systems of the Group. Further,
each of the above-mentioned Directors is fully aware of, and
has been discharging, his/her fiduciary duty to the Company
and has acted and will continue to act in the best interest of the
Company and its Shareholders as a whole. Therefore, the Group
is capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and
at arm’s length from, the businesses of such companies/entities
in which Directors have declared interests.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS INFORMATION UNDER RULE
13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in the
information of Directors since the date of the Second Interim
Report 2012/13 of the Company required to be disclosed in this
report are as follow:

1. The Directors’ fee of each of Mr. Wei Chuanjun and Mr.
Xu Jiajun, all being executive Directors, has increased to
HK$600,000 per annum with effect from 1 January 2014.

2. The Directors’ fee of Mr. Hui Chiu Chung, Mr. Chiang
Sheung Yee, Anthony and Mr. Hu Chunyuan, all being
INEDs, has increased to HK$339,150, HK$297,150 and
HK$370,650, per annum, respectively, with effect from 1
January 2014.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Reporting Period, the five largest suppliers and the
largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 30%
and 8% of the total value of the Group’s purchases respectively.

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers and the largest customer accounted for approximately
38% and 17% respectively of the Group’s revenue.

Other than one of the Group’s five largest customers was a
subsidiary of the Company’s ultimate controlling shareholder,
at no time during the Reporting Period did the directors, their
associates or any Shareholders (which to the best knowledge
of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interests in these suppliers or
customers referred to above.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme are set out on
page 138 of the annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities on the Stock
Exchange during the Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 356 (2012: 210)
employees. Salaries of employees are maintained at competitive
levels while bonuses may be granted on a discretionary basis
with reference to the performance of the Group as well as the
individual’'s performance. Other employee benefits include
mandatory provident fund, insurance and medical cover,
subsidised educational and training programmes as well as
share option schemes.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined with reference

to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group.
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Directors’ Report
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Upon closing of the unconditional mandatory cash offer made
by Standard Chartered Bank for and on behalf of Famous
Commercial Limited to acquire the shares of the Company in
accordance with Rule 26.1 of the Takeovers Code, approximately
23.71% of the then issued share capital of the Company is
held by the public who are independent of the Directors, chief
executive or substantial shareholders of the Company, its
subsidiaries or any of their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules). Accordingly, the Company cannot fulfill the
minimum public float requirement set out under Rule 8.08(1)(a)
of the Listing Rules. As such, the Company has made an
application to, and has obtained from, the Stock Exchange for a
waiver from strict compliance with Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing
Rules for a period of 3 months commencing from 19 November
2012.

Immediately after completion of the placement of 900,000,000
shares of the Company, the public float of the Company as
required under the Listing Rules has been restored on 31
January 2013.

Save as disclosed above, based on the information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules throughout the Reporting
Period and as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of
this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Corporate Governance Report are set out on
pages 27 to 49 of the annual report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant event after the reporting period of the
Group are set out in note 42 to the financial statements.
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AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for their re-appointment as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of
Gemdale Properties and Investment Corporation Limited

Mr. Huang Juncan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 7 March 2014
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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To the shareholders of Gemdale Properties and Investment
Corporation Limited

(Formerly known as Frasers Property (China) Limited)
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Gemdale Properties and Investment Corporation Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 83 to 226, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the period from 1 October 2012 to 31 December 2013,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the period from 1 October 2012 to
31 December 2013 in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central
Hong Kong

7 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

SmEEER

[ |
Period from 1 October 2012 to 31 December 2013
BT —F+A-BAE-T—=F+-A=1+—HIHH

Period ended
31 December

Year ended

30 September

2013 2012
BE-T-=F BE_T— %
+=HA=+-—A8 NLA=+H
1 H R IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Notes (Restated)
Bt (E3))
Revenue WA 5 290,651 199,264
Cost of sales PHERK AN (20,350) (10,001)
Gross profit EF 270,301 189,263
Direct operating expenses BEEEERY (318,713) (81,507)
Other income and gains E A R 5 21,332 71,707
Changes in fair values of KEMEZNRE 15 1,413,446 667,648
investment properties b))
Provision written back/(made) Bl () BB 6 278,420 (24,327)
Administrative expenses TBHEX (118,459) (33,794)
Finance costs B & A 7 (56,063) (29,626)
Share of losses of jointly-controlled FE{E R HE R R R 20 (9,881) -
entities
Profit before tax B 15 AT A 8 1,480,383 759,364
Tax g 9 (343,454) (214,766)
Profit for the period/year REARE S EEEHA 1,136,929 544,598
Attributable to: AT AL RS, -
Owners of the Company ViN/NECIE= VSN 11 1,149,394 497,150
Non-controlling interests FEIE RS AR SR A (12,465) 47,448
1,136,929 544,598
Earnings per share attributable to ViN/NEIES Y DN S
owners of the Company: FRERN
— Basic (HK$) — EAR (BIT) 12 0.1323 0.0725
- Diluted (HK$) — 5 OB% ) 12 0.1323 0.0724

Details of the dividend proposed for the period are disclosed
in note 13 to the financial statements.

E’go

REEHUR B B2 7 B B 75 R M SR 13
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Period from 1 October 2012 to 31 December 2013

H-ZE——F+A—HEZZT—=F+=-A=+—HILHH
Period ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
BEz-ZE-= HE-_T——F
+=A=+-H nA=+AH
LHHAR HFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BETIT
Notes (Restated)
it (&351)
Profit for the period/year AREARE S EEE 1,136,929 544 598
Other comprehensive income H2mBA
- Other comprehensive income to be — B E1% M
reclassified to profit or loss in EMOEAEEY
subsequent periods H 2 mes
Cash flow hedges: WEMELEF
Effective portion of changes in RERE S FEFE R 25 = 2,462
fair values of hedging instruments TEEAZARE
arising during the period/year, net P82 BUEG
FER
- 2,462
Exchange fluctuation reserves: REEEE
Exchange differences on translation }ﬁ%'k/iﬁl\%ﬁ‘%z 248,390 3,606
of foreign operations b =5
Share of exchange differences FE{L LRI T2 776 -
on translation of foreign operations BREFINES 2
of jointly-controlled entities b =
249,166 3,606
Other comprehensive income for THE FEEMEERA 249,166 6,068
the period/year, net of tax BB IR
Total comprehensive income RER, FEE2ERALE 1,386,095 550,666
for the period/year
Attributable to: AT AT
Owners of the Company PiN/NEIE= VN 1,360,798 503,201
Non-controlling interests IR IR R 25,297 47,465
1,386,095 550,666
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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[ |
31 December 2013
RZZ—=F+-A=+—H

31 December 30 September 1 October
2013 2012 2011
—F-=f —F-F —F——f
+=A=+-H NA=1H +A—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BB BETT
Notes (Restated) (Restated)
Hizt (E5) (&%)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEN&E 14 15,526 1,728 1,813
Investment properties BEME 15 3,908,744 2,129,075 1,456,147
Prepayments, deposits and BRZE Zek 24 8,514 1,847 1,891
other receivables H iU EE R
Investments in jointly-controlled entities REFEHEE RE 20 105,351 - -
Available-for-sale financial investment Y ESREE 21 8,822 8,822 8,822
Deferred tax assets EREMBEE 34 39,565 509 7,569
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 4,086,522 2,141,981 1,476,242
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Properties held for sale FHEME 16 171,671 79,061 90,251
Properties under development BREDYE 17 8,583,168 2,384,239 1,862,115
Prepayments for acquisitions of land use rights — Ug8& + 35 i 2 B 7008 18 511,746 620,298 -
Held-to-maturity investment EEIEEE 22 155,098 - -
Trade receivables BN E 8RR 28 9,249 4,946 1,316
Prepayments, deposits and BRZE  Zek 24 214,406 13,080 540,014
other receivables B iRT
Due from fellow subsidiaries TEW R Z KB A B FIE 33 103 - -
Due from a non-controlling shareholder JEM IR AR AR SR FRIR 33 63,254 63,254 -
Due from the immediate holding company EW B &R A B FE 33 - - 63,385
Derivative financial instrument TESRTIEA 25 - - 971
Restricted cash XRFHRE 26 42,237 74 73
Deposits, bank and cash balances FH BIRBSES 26 1,815,436 1,537,802 899,394
Total current assets RBEELE 11,566,368 4,702,754 3,457,519
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade payables B ZER 29 362,934 28,152 38,014
Advanced receipts, accruals TBWEE - ERHEIRIE 30 3,019,021 164,099 247,390
and other payables R E A e RTAR K
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings M ERTREMER 31 279,176 1,178,079 485,904
Loans from the ultimate holding company RIEERABER 32 2,390,677 35,424 -
Loans from the immediate holding company ERERAFIER 32 1,179,226 - -
Loan from a non-controlling shareholder FERBRFEER 32 151,996 - -
Due to the ultimate holding company B SR A R HIE 33 243,514 - -
Due to the immediate holding company N EZERARRIE 33 66,625 827,148 81,634
Due to non-controlling shareholders JERS eI AR AR B FhIE 33 81,544 76,590 -
Due to fellow subsidiaries ENRZEN B LA RTIE 33 1,299 - 42
Due to related companies JENMEE N T HIA 33 580 189 -
Tax payable FETHIR 1,739 69,023 80,133
Total current liabilities RBEELE 7,778,331 2,378,704 933,117
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 3,788,037 2,324,050 2,524,402
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ZEZHERTBHEE 7,874,559 4,466,031 4,000,644
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[ |
31 December 2013

R-ZF—=F+=-A=+—H

31 December 30 September 1 October
2013 2012 2011
—E-=F —E—CF —E——F
+ZA=+-H NA=1H +A—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT oL
Notes (Restated) (Restated)
Hizt (&3)) (&%)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings ~ Ff 2377 R EMER 31 - 260,504 818,799
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIEAE 34 769,935 401,015 223,696
Total non-current liabilities FREBEELE 769,935 661,519 1,042,495
NET ASSETS EEFE 7,104,624 3,804,512 2,958,149
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to owners KATEE AEGER
of the Company
Issued capital BEITIRA 27 909,310 705,811 684,940
Reserves fh1E 28 4,962,439 2,268,856 1,630,654
5,871,749 2,974,667 2,315,594
Non-controlling interests FERBRRER 1,232,875 829,845 642,555
TOTAL EQUITY BHEE 7,104,624 3,804,512 2,958,149

Mr. Xu Jiajun
BREXE

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

BITTEFERTTEARE

Mr. Wei Chuanjun
EEERE

BTTEFERYFAEE
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Statement of Financial Position
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[ |
31 December 2013
RZZ—=F+-A=+—H

31 December 30 September
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—fF
+=A=+-H NA=TH
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Hizt BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RINBAR 2 E 19 - -
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BAFIE - Re REMERIRR 24 8,514 -
Total non-current assets FRBEEAR 8,514 -
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Due from subsidiaries WA R FIE 19 4,226,293 1,554,956
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BAFIE -« Be REMEWRIRR 24 3,954 2,596
Deposits, bank and cash balances BH - BkBeEH 26 57,410 389,047
Total current assets TBEELE 4,287,657 1,946,599
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accruals and other payables FEEHRERIE R M R 30 10,017 6,211
Interest-bearing bank borrowing Mt BERTER 31 = 715,588
Due to subsidiaries TE P B /A R FIE 19 7,902 34,016
Loan from the immediate holding company BREERREER 32 720,000 -
Due to the immediate holding company B EBER D BIFUR 33 2,480 -
Total current liabilities REBEEAT 740,399 755,815
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 3,547,258 1,190,784
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEAERADER 3,555,772 1,190,784
NET ASSETS BERE 3,552,772 1,190,784
EQUITY iR
Issued capital BEITRA 27 909,310 686,414
Reserves i 28 2,646,462 504,370
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 3,555,772 1,190,784
Mr. Xu Jiajun Mr. Wei Chuanjun
BRREEE EEELE

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

BTTEFRTTHARE

Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

BTTEFRYFARE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

[ |
Period from 1 October 2012 to 31 December 2013

-2 ——F+A—R&E_F—=F+"-_A=1+—H1HHE
Period ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
BE-2-=F HE-ZT——F
+ZA=1+-H NR=TH
121 I35
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Notes (Restated)
ik (E50)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEEBoReRE
Profit before tax B AR A 1,480,383 759,364
Adjustments for: 5t NI IBEL AR
Finance costs BKER 7 56,063 29,626
Interest income FIBBA 5 (15,449) (27,558)
Net loss on disposal of items of property, HENE  BER 8 6 42
plant and equipment RERA BRI
Depreciation neE 8 3,358 538
Amortisation of land use rights i FE 2 B 8 - 15,205
Changes in fair values of investment properties TQE%%ZQﬁE%@J 8 (1,413,446) (667,648)
Share-based compensation expenses BHOBEHEY 8 62,471 1,597
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of FEWEU)\ (REEE)/ HifE 6 (16,022) 17,330
receivables, net
Provision written back for a property WERRIBE 2 BELE 6 (262,398) -
development project
Share of losses of jointly-controlled entities LR ERER 20 9,881 -
Operating (loss)/profit before working capital changes RELSEHI L (BR),/ BH (95,153) 128,496
(Increase)/decrease in properties held for sale FHENE, 8,/ B (89,995) 11,182
Increase in properties under development BRAYE LN (5,969,818) (229,894)
Decrease in prepayments for acquisitions of land use rights Iii& T FE Bz BN EREZ 2D 108,552 -
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables, ERESER - BETE (197,667) 505,511
prepayments, deposits and other receivables WEEE (38m),/ WD
Increase in restricted cash ZEHRE 2 (42,160) -
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, advanced ERESER - BUGIE - BAREE 3,186,470 (94,942)
receipts, accruals and other payables REMGERERZ B,/ (7))
Cash (used in)/generated from operations e (i) /FEY RS (3,099,771) 320,353
Overseas taxes paid BTSN BB (99,938) (41,784)
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities REEy (i) / HEzRLRE (3,199,709) 278,569
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEB 2 HETFE
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment BANE  BEREEEE 2FE 14 (17,329) (690)
Additions/improvements to investment properties REMERT /e 15 (20,645) (1,273)
Purchase of held-to-maturity investment BABZIHRE 22 (155,098) -
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HENE  BEREEER 21 48
plant and equipment FBEIE
(Increase)/decrease in time deposits with original maturity A E AR R 5|5 ABA=EA (37,637 139,112
of more than three months when acquired ZEHFER (), B
Interest received B E 17,494 28,115
Investments in jointly-controlled entities RARISER B4 (114,456) -
Cash inflow from business combination under common control FEHEHIT 7 %A H 2 BERA 781,690 260,997
Net cash from investing activities REEBFEzRLRE 454,040 426,309
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERETREBR

[ |
Period from 1 October 2012 to 31 December 2013

AT —F+A—HEZZE—=F+=-A=+—HILHH
Period ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
BE-E2-=% HE-Z——F
+ZA=1+-H NR=TH
LLE I35
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Notes (Restated)
ik (E50)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEXKCRERE
Interest and other bank charges paid TRFISREMBITER (163,362) (51,793)
Issue of share on placement B &3k 27(a)(iii) 691,617 -
Issue of shares on exercise of share options TEEREnSET RN 27(a)ii) 506 2,009
Repayment from a related company REBERRIZER 391 147
Advance from the ultimate holding company REEBIERARFUR 243,555
Repayment to the ultimate holding company B RIIR D ] FUR (41) -
Advance from the immediate holding company REEEAERARFIE 701,913 -
Repayment to the immediate holding company TEEE&T%QQT P (1,462,382) -
Net amount received from/(paid to) non-controlling shareholders 21t /() 3E1= BRIk 30 0B %48 4,955 (4,914)
Net amount received from fellow subsidiaries ERAZKBARFIAFE 1,196 -
Dividend paid to a non-controlling shareholder BER—2FERRR ZRE = (6.474)
Capital injected from non-controlling shareholders FERBRR 2 TE 377,733 -
New bank and other borrowings HERTREMER 149,374 336,359
Repayment of bank and other borrowings %{%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁ (1,331,426) (205,059)
Proceeds from settlement of derivative financial instruments #1445 T A7 5508 - 3,433
Loan proceeds from the ultimate holding company XQE—MHH”“TEW 4,541,255 -
Repayment of loans from the ultimate holding company 1‘ELE—W?LH““TE (2,187,464) -
Loan proceeds from the immediate holding company REEBRERARE 1,179,226 -
Loan proceed from a non-controlling shareholder RE I Hxﬂxﬁ%f 151,996 -
Net cash from financing activities MEXEFMEZREFE 2,899,042 73,708
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ReRRAZEER 2 EMEE 153,373 778,586
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period/year 8/ F R kRS EEER 1,504,210 726,690
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net NEEREH FE  FE 86,624 (1,066)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period/year BR/ EXAZRERRESEER 1,744,207 1,504,210
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERRESEEALER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 2o
Cash and bank balances HERBIEH 1,604,070 546,819
Non-pledged time deposits ERREHER 211,366 990,983
Deposits, bank and cash balances as stated in REE MBI R ERR 26 1,815,436 1,537,802
the consolidated statement of financial position R RORR2EH
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity REARRISARA-AAEHAT (71,229) (33,592)
of more than three months when acquired HER
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period/year B/ EXzRERBEESEER 1,744,207 1,504,210
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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[ |
31 December 2013
—EF—=F+=-A=+—H

92

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Gemdale Properties and Investment Corporation Limited
(formerly known as Frasers Property (China) Limited) is
a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
registered office of the Company is located at Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda.

During the period, the principal activity of the Company is
investment holding while the Group is involved in property
development, investment and management of residential,
commercial and business park projects.

The immediate holding company of the Company is
Famous Commercial Limited (“Famous”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. In the
opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company
of the Company is &1 (£E) RHBRAE (“Gemdale
Corporation”), which is established in the PRC with limited
liability and whose shares are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange.

Following the change of the ultimate holding company of
the Company to Gemdale Corporation on 28 September
2012, the financial year end date of the Group has been
changed from 30 September to 31 December effective
from 2013 to align with that of Gemdale Corporation.
The consolidated financial statements presented for
the current period therefore covered fifteen months
period from 1 October 2012 to 31 December 2013.
The corresponding comparative amounts shown for the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity, consolidated statement
of cash flows and related notes covered a twelve months’
period from 1 October 2011 to 30 September 2012,
and therefore may not be entirely comparable with the
amounts shown for the current period.

RAEER
SHEHEEEAR AR (FIHEMME
(FE) AERAAE) DR BERETMELZ
BRAF - HixftprEREibit #Canon’ s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton
HM12, Bermuda °

REA  RABAREER BT EER
MARBEARENEER  REREERE
T BFEMEEEEAAR -

RRRZBRER AT —RNEBEM
BRIz BRARIEEEHEAR ARG ([
B BEERRARFZREZERRAA
D—RXRFBERIZBERAR — i (&
B) BirBERAR ([REE]) - HikD
ELBRBHFXZH LM -

BELMERR _T——FAA-1+/\H
KRARRRZEEERAR  RERAEE
ZHRFEBRSER FEARE—
BT =GR AEBZHBRELE
AEmILA=+H%A+-_A=+—A8-
KREZF 2R MR REAMRER T
——F#+A—HBE-_ZT—=ZF+-A=+
—HIE+RBEABE mEsEEER &
EREWGE  FEeRRERHER  Gel
MERMABM R RRELR S
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A=+HL+=Z@AM - Btz

®
it
n
522 s SRR 2 S B -

Gemdale Properties and Investment Corporation Limited & # & & E AR A7



Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

2.1

BUSINESS COMBINATION INVOLVING ENTITIES
UNDER COMMON CONTROL

On 17 August 2013, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (the “Purchaser”) and Famous (the “Vendor”),
the immediate holding company of the Company,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement by which
the Purchaser acquired 51% of the entire share capital
of Ever Trusty Commercial Limited, 51% of the entire
share capital of Integrity Investment (Hong Kong) Limited
and the entire share capital of Ever Trusty Investment
Management Limited (together “the Target Companies”)
from the Vendor (“the Acquisition”) and the consideration
was satisfied by the issuance of 1,325,726,134 new
shares of the Company to the Vendor. The Acquisition
was completed on 28 October 2013.

As the Company and the Target Companies are under the
common control of Gemdale Corporation before and after the
Acquisition, the Acquisition has been accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group as a business
combination under common control using the principles of
merger accounting under Accounting Guideline 5 Merger
Accounting for Common Control Combinations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). The consolidated financial statements included
the financial position, results and cash flows of the Target
Companies as if the Acquisition had occurred since 28
September 2012 (the date on which Gemdale Corporation
completed the acquisition of the Company). There was
no material effect on the statement of profit or loss of
the Group arising from the business combination under
common control for the year ended 30 September 2012.
The assets and liabilities of the Target Companies were
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 30 September 2012. As a result, comparative figures
of the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
September 2012, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year ended 30 September 2012 and the related notes have
been restated accordingly.

2.1

[ |
31 December 2013
—E—=F+-_A=+—H

BRABZEHTER ZEBS6H

RZZE—=FN\A++tH  AQRF—HE2
EWBAT ([ER]) BARAEEER
REEBE([EH]) B —HEEHE -
BEZWBE EFREARBKERS
ERAREHRAZ51% « HiEHRE (B
B) BRAARERAZ51% KKERE
ERERAFRZEHIBRAN (HBIEZEA
ADTWED  FPREEBRE
171,325,726,13488 & 2 Bl #T I 0 2 77 =
Tt ZBER-_T—=F+A=+/\H
SERK °

HMRARE KB IZRQ RN R EE
HRB&MmEEAMEH - BIREBEESSE
Mog ((E8etag]) Bhzest
eS| B R AEHEHZ EHEFE
ZUWE B IR ERIEG T 2 EB A HE AT
AREBGRETHIRE - Nz E P HRE
BETEERRZMBMRR FERES
mE - BZKEER-_T——FNLA=
TN\B (£HhEBMRZATKBBARAR])
B HEARG T 2 EBAHEREEE
BT —FAAZTHUIEMBFEZE
ERUBEATE BERAFIZEERSE
BEAER-_E——_FAA=+TAZES
R ERA - Bt RZFE—ZFNLA
“tHZREMBRAR BEZT—=
FRAZFTHIEFEZHREEEHRL
BARERER  URABHEZHEK
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31 December 2013
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2.1

94

BUSINESS COMBINATION INVOLVING ENTITIES 2.1 WS REREEZESTESRE£KS6 (2)

UNDER COMMON CONTROL (continued)

HRAZEHI T 2R B AHEREEPBARREK

The effects arising from the business combination under ZEEBMT
common control on the consolidated financial statements
are summarised below:
As at As at
30 September 1 October
2012 2011
RZT——F RIE——F
NAA=+A +A—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ST T
Consolidated statement of financial position ﬁéﬁﬂ‘ﬁz\#ﬁ?i\%
Increase in deferred tax assets and ?ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁé&#ﬁ@] 509 _
increase in total non-current assets BEBEEE N
Increase in properties under development R T ¥ EIE N 280,200 -
Increase in prepayments for acquisitions e L it i 2 Y 620,298 -
of land use rights FRIBIE N
Increase in prepayments, deposits and TERRIR - Ee REM 51 -
other receivables JE Us B FR 48 0
Increase in deposits, bank and G RITRIRS L RRIE N 260,997 -
cash balances
Increase in total current assets MENVE ELFREM 1,161,546 -
Increase in advanced receipts, TEUGIE « FERTIRERIA K 918 -
accruals and other payables ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬁ%@ﬂ\ﬂ
Increase in loans from the ultimate ARG A BB SR8 N 35,424 _
holding company N )
Increase in an amount due to the JES BB A B FIARE N 827,148 -
immediate holding company
Increase in total current liabilities BB BRI N 863,490 _
Increase in net current assets MENVE EFEEM 298,056 -
Increase in net assets B EFERE 298,565 —
Increase in issued capital B EITAARE N 19,397 -
Increase in share premium Hﬁfﬁiﬁ?&%#ﬂﬂ \ 141,601 -
Decrease in exchange fluctuation reserves ERQ TE%1%5)@Z9‘ (298) -
Decrease in merger reserves & PR (7,629) -
Decrease in retained profits REBENB D \ (805) -
Increase in non-controlling interests JEJ2E I % BR A 2 3 N 146,299 -
Increase in total equity Rt A ERIE AN 298,565 -

Gemdale Properties and Investment Corporation Limited & # & & E AR A7



Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties and derivative financial instruments,
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the period
from 1 October 2012 to 31 December 2013. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised gains
and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and

dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is
attributed to the non-controlling interest even if it results
in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

2.2

[ |
31 December 2013
—E—=F+-_A=+—H

mBEE

AP HRRIBBEEEGTMASRMZ
R BHRELED ([FEMBREER])
(BREMEEEMBHRELER - BAESF
HA([HEGFER]) R2E) BF
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5 BRABERAEIN  FIAEREDELS
REM TR -

—

REEE
ol PN

RFAMBHRRBEARBREKEBA A
(e [A%EE])) A-—T——-F+HA—H
E_E-ZF+A=+—HILBREZH
BHEK - WBRRMBEHRER 2 MAEHHE R
ARBMBHEZAAR - LR S
K- WEBARZEEBWEAR - R
AEBRGEGE AT AGEFE
WHERATHE  EZEHRELERR
Ik REARARER S EBRESK A
SEARAEER P KRERKER
BENGERE RTEEHE -

B BRI R s EE A B AL A R
HEEMBATARNZZHBABRINEA
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2.2

96

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)
Subsidiaries (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of
any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate.

Business combination involving entities under

common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the combining entities or
businesses as if they had been combined from the date
when the combining entities or business first came under

the control of the controlling parties.

The net assets of the combining entities or business are
recognised at the carrying values prior to the common
control combination.

The consolidated financial statements include the results
of each of the combining entities or business from the
earliest date presented or since the date when combining
entities or business first came under the control of
the controlling parties, where this is a shorter period,
regardless of the date of the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the combining entities
or businesses had been combined at the previous
reporting date or when they first came under control of
the controlling parties, whichever is shorter.

2.2

mBEE (£)
mEE%E (&)
MBAR (&)

MAEEREMNBAR ZENE K&
BRIERONBARZEE (BER
B) RAE  (I)ERIHERR R ER 2 R
miE: R(iVE#aP Rk RetnE =
B REROBERBRKEZAAE (VT
ADRE ZWE R RE  Rii)ER A
REB@mFPEEZBHNER - XEEFH
PR EL A 2 T U B P AR 2 R TR B G BURE
HEE W EHR DB RIBm S RE RN -

BRARESTERZEBE 6

HAEMBRRAARAHERIDEZY
BHE - BUOENSREHERAER L
ZHIEE BREELESH -

RAFERADEFEERARIZEHE
BFAI 2 BREERER ©

REVMBRRANAHEBIEERIZ
HALEMEWEHEBRDE 21T H#E
EAZEREHHERBAARAHERS
rERZFE  MAFTEGHRRZEHEHZ
B -

RAMBRRAZIZLBET - BIH
EHERACEBERSE AR AMEH
EHERBRCRZITHEERZECIAH
E&6 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

2.3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current period’s financial statements.

HKAS 1 Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Amendments Financial Statements — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income

HKAS 12 Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes
Amendments — Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying

Assets

The impact of the revised HKFRSs on these financial
statements is further explained below:

(a) The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping
of items presented
income (“OCI").
(or recycled) to profit or loss at a future point

in other comprehensive
Iltems that could be reclassified

of time (for example, exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations, net movement
on cash flow hedges and net loss or gain on
investments) are
presented separately from items which will never

available-for-sale financial

be reclassified (for example, the revaluation of land
and buildings).
the presentation only and have had no impact on

The amendments have affected

the financial position or performance of the Group.
The consolidated statement of comprehensive
income has been restated to reflect the changes.
In addition, the Group has chosen to use the new
title “statement of profit or loss” as introduced by
the amendments in these financial statements.

2.3

31 December 2013 .
—=%F+=-HA=+—H

B RERBEECEE

AEBERAHR 2 M HREREREAT
FIERT BB S 2R -

BEGER BEG EASE1RSF

FAGRZIEFT HEAZZ0 - AMEEH
Ve NS TP ACTIEN

FHETHER| ERgHRAUE12%AZ

F10% T 5L W EEHEE W

BEEZETAR

BN NS RT B 7B B 75 R 45 YE Bl ¥ 2N B 75 1R
k22 E—SBENT
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BMEGINEB 2 ERZ8 BER
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2.3 CHANGES

IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

The HKAS 12 Amendments clarify the determination
of deferred tax for investment property measured at
fair value and introduce a rebuttable presumption
that deferred tax on investment property measured
at fair value should be determined on the basis
that its carrying amount will be recovered through
sale. Furthermore, the amendments incorporate the
requirement previously in HK(SIC)-Int 21 /ncome
Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable
Assets that deferred tax on non-depreciable
assets, measured using the revaluation model in
HKAS 16, should always be measured on a sale
basis.

The presumption that deferred tax on investment
property measured at fair value should be
determined on the basis that its carrying amount
will be recovered through sale has been rebutted
by the Group as the Group’s investment properties
are held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Accordingly
deferred tax has been determined on the basis
of recovery through use. The adoption of the
amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

23 EHBRREEZE® (F)

(b)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

2.3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

In addition, the Group has voluntarily changed its
accounting policy regarding revenue recognition of sale
of properties. The Group recognises revenue from sales
of properties when significant risks and rewards of the
properties are passed to the purchasers. In prior years,
when properties under development for sale were pre-
sold prior to completion, revenue was recognised at the
later of the signing of the sales and purchase contract,
the issue of the relevant building occupation permit by
the relevant government authorities or the delivery, which
was taken as the point of time when the risks and rewards
of the ownership of the property had passed to the
buyers. Deposits and instalments received on properties
sold prior to this stage were recorded as sales deposits
received and included in current liabilities. Under the
revised accounting policy, revenue from sale of properties
is recognised when (i) an irrevocable sale and purchase
contract has been entered into by both buyer and seller;
(ii) the seller has received or obtained the right to receive
all the consideration of the sale; (iii) the construction has
been completed, and its quality has been inspected and
accepted by the relevant government authorities; and
(iv) the ready-for-delivery conditions under the sale and
purchase contract have been fulfilled. In the opinion of
the directors, the financial statements prepared using
the revised policy will provide reliable and more relevant
information on the Group’s financial position and financial
performance to the users of the financial statements about
the effects of property sale transactions. This change in
policy has been applied retrospectively, but does not
have any financial effect on the Group’s results and cash
flows for the year ended 30 September 2012 and on the
Group’s financial positions as of 30 September 2012 and
1 October 2011.
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2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,

in these financial statements.

HKFRS 1
Amendments

HKFRS 7
Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7
and HKAS 39
Amendments

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12
Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12

and HKAS 27
(2011) Amendments

HKFRS 14

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Government
Loans'

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities'

Financial Instruments®

Hedge Accounting and amendments
to HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39

Consolidated Financial Statements'

Joint Arrangements'

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities'

Fair Value Measurement!

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12 - Transition Guidance'

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011) -
Entities?

Investment

Regulatory Deferral Accounts*
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2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 19
Amendments

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 32

Amendments

HKAS 36

Amendments

HKAS 39
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Employee Benefits'

Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions®

Separate Financial Statements'

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities?

Amendments to HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets - Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets?

Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments:  Recognition —and

Measurement -  Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting?

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine'

Levies?

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

2009-2011 Cycle

issued in June 2012

Annual Improvements Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-

Project

2012 Cycle®

Annual Improvements Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-

Project

2013 Cycle®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2013

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2016

5 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is
available for adoption
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2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKFRS 7 Amendments
disclose information about rights to set-off and related
The
disclosures would provide users with information that is

require an entity to

arrangements (e.g., collateral agreements).
useful in evaluating the effect of netting arrangements
on an entity’s financial position. The new disclosures
are required for all recognised financial instruments
that are set off in accordance with HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation. The disclosures also apply
to recognised financial instruments that are subject to
an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement, irrespective of whether they are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32. The Group expects to adopt

the amendments from 1 January 2014.

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of
phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Instead of
classifying financial assets into four categories, an entity
shall classify financial assets as subsequently measured
at either amortised cost or fair value, on the basis of both
the entity’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial assets. This aims to improve and simplify
the approach for the classification and measurement
of financial assets compared with the requirements of

HKAS 39.
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2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to
HKFRS 9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”)
and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition
principles of financial instruments of HKAS 39. Most
of the Additions were carried forward unchanged from
HKAS 39, while changes were made to the measurement
of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss using the fair value option (“FVQO”). For these
FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value of a
liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk must
be presented in OCI. The remainder of the change in fair
value is presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of
the fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk
in OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch
in profit or loss. However, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts which have been designated under
the FVO are scoped out of the Additions.

In December 2013, the HKICPA added to HKFRS 9
the requirements related to hedge accounting and
made some related changes to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
which include the corresponding disclosures about risk
management activity for applying hedge accounting.
The amendments to HKFRS 9 relax the requirements
for assessing hedge effectiveness which result in more
risk management strategies being eligible for hedge
accounting. The amendments also allow greater
flexibility on the hedged items and relax the rules on
using purchased options and non-derivative financial
instruments as hedging instruments. In addition, the
amendments to HKFRS 9 allow an entity to apply only the
improved accounting for own credit risk-related fair value
gains and losses arising on FVO liabilities as introduced
in 2010 without applying the other HKFRS 9 requirements
at the same time.

2.4

[ |
31 December 2013
—E—=F+-_A=+—H

CEMEERER2ERMBRE

R (&)

R-ZZE—ZF+—FH BEGHM2EH
TREBEBRGESMHHRELRFEIR 2
FIERE (TFERTE)) - UEBGE
A3 2 B T A 2 A BURRER R B4
ABBHBHRELRESEA - KEOH
BREAZ BB G ERFI9% - W
& BERBRAAREFAREZEREA
B EREDRERAREEE (2R
BEE]) A8 - BRFEAAEEREFREM
5 HEERRESMELZABIAE
EHoE  LAREMEEKETES -
BRIEREMEZEAKRETHRABZEERR
ENZRARELY  SRBERPELNE

S ER - BRIEBAAEZPSERN
BEE2 - AT FEREL MRERR
NEEEEEZERARLERERS
#) o

EEGHMAER _E—=F+_AnE
AU BEREERNEZRMAL P EF 22
KR E R & £ R E395 B E B I 15
WERAFE7THRIEH - LHENRD - B
AR e 2 BB EREBEAE
2R BARM B WMELERFOWR ZAER]
MEHHEEPBEREZRE  BEES
Rl E R RN & ERETEIR G -
ZFERT M TEIHIEE EABERE R
RERBEPRETESR T AERY
HRTEZRA - I BB REER
FORZETAF—BEBREMANES
AREERN-ZF-TFIAZAAEEE
BEMELBSEERAREBEZAAER
B A R R &M I WS RIS
IREMIBRIE -

S

Annual Report 2012/13 £ 103



Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

[ |
31 December 2013
—EF—=F+=-A=+—H

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its
entirety. Before this entire replacement, the guidance in
HKAS 39 on impairment of financial assets continues to
apply. The previous mandatory effective date of HKFRS
9 was removed by the HKICPA in December 2013 and
a mandatory effective date will be determined after the
entire replacement of HKAS 39 is completed. However,
the standard is available for application now. The Group
will quantify the effect in conjunction with other phases,
when the final standard including all phases is issued.

HKFRS 10 establishes a single control model that
applies to all entities including special purpose entities
or structured entities. It includes a new definition of
control which is used to determine which entities are
consolidated. The changes introduced by HKFRS 10
require management of the Group to exercise significant
judgement to determine which entities are controlled,
compared with the requirements in HKAS 27 and
HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities.
HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements that addresses the
accounting for consolidated financial statements. It also
addresses the issues raised in HK(SIC)-Int 12. Based
on the preliminary analyses performed, HKFRS 10 is
not expected to have any impact on the currently held
investments of the Group.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures
and HK(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-
Monetary Contributions by Venturers. It describes the
accounting for joint arrangements with joint control. It
addresses only two forms of joint arrangements, i.e.,
joint operations and joint ventures, and removes the
option to account for joint ventures using proportionate
consolidation.
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2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for
joint associates and
structured entities previously included in HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, HKAS
31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HKAS 28 Investments in

subsidiaries, arrangements,

Associates. It also introduces a number of new disclosure
requirements for these entities.

In July 2012, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS
10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 which clarify the transition
guidance in HKFRS 10 and provide further relief from
full retrospective application of these standards, limiting
the requirement to provide adjusted comparative
information to only the preceding comparative period.
The amendments clarify that retrospective adjustments
are only required if the consolidation conclusion as to
which entities are controlled by the Group is different
between HKFRS 10 and HKAS 27 or HK(SIC)-Int 12 at
the beginning of the annual period in which HKFRS 10
is applied for the first time. Furthermore, for disclosures
related to unconsolidated structured entities, the
amendments will remove the requirement to present
comparative information for periods before HKFRS 12 is
first applied.
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2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition of an
investment entity and provide an exception to the
consolidation requirement for entities that meet the
definition of an investment entity. Investment entities are
required to account for subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9 rather than
consolidate them. Consequential amendments were made
to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011). The amendments
to HKFRS 12 also set out the disclosure requirements
for investment entities. The Group expects that these
amendments will not have any impact on the Group as
the Company is not an investment entity as defined in
HKFRS 10.

Consequential amendments were made to HKAS 27
and HKAS 28 as a result of the issuance of HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12. The Group expects to adopt
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (2011),
HKAS 28 (2011), and the subsequent amendments to
these standards issued in July and December 2012 from
1 January 2014.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and
a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across HKFRSs. The standard
does not change the circumstances in which the Group
is required to use fair value, but provides guidance on
how fair value should be applied where its use is already
required or permitted under other HKFRSs. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 13 prospectively from 1 January
2014.
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2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 19 (2011) includes a number of amendments that
range from fundamental changes to simple clarifications
and re-wording. The revised standard introduces
significant changes in the accounting for defined benefit
pension plans including removing the choice to defer
the recognition of actuarial gains and losses. Other
changes include modifications to the timing of recognition
for termination benefits, the classification of short-term
employee benefits and disclosures of defined benefit
plans. The Group expects to adopt HKAS 19 (2011) from

1 January 2014.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right to set off” for
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. The
amendments also clarify the application of the offsetting
criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement systems (such as central
clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement
mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The amendments
are not expected to have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group upon adoption on
1 January 2014.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
issued in June 2012 sets out amendments to a number
of HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
from 1 January 2014. There are separate transitional
provisions for each standard. While the adoption of some
of the amendments may result in changes in accounting
policies, none of these amendments are expected to
have a significant financial impact on the Group. Those
amendments that are expected to have a significant
impact on the Group’s policies are as follows:
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2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(a)

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
Clarifies the difference between voluntary additional
comparative information and the minimum required
comparative information. Generally, the minimum
required comparative period is the previous period.
An entity must include comparative information in
the related notes to the financial statements when
it voluntarily provides comparative information
beyond the previous period. The additional
comparative information does not need to contain
a complete set of financial statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that the
opening statement of financial position as at
the beginning of the preceding period must be
presented when an entity changes its accounting
policies; makes retrospective restatements or
makes reclassifications, and that change has
a material effect on the statement of financial
position. However, the related notes to the opening
statement of financial position as at the beginning
of the preceding period are not required to be
presented.

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation:
Clarifies that income taxes arising from distributions
to equity holders are accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes. The amendment
removes existing income tax requirements from
HKAS 32 and requires entities to apply the
requirements in HKAS 12 to any income tax arising
from distributions to equity holders.
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SRR MIEE

25

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual
arrangement,
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture
operates as a separate entity in which the Group and the

whereby the Group and other parties

other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture
parties, the duration of the joint venture and the basis on
which the assets are to be realised upon its dissolution.
The profits or losses from the joint venture’s operations
and any distributions of surplus assets are shared by the
venturers, either in proportion to their respective capital
contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the joint
venture agreement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures (continued)

A joint venture is treated as:

(a)

(c)

a subsidiary, if the Group/Company, directly or
indirectly, controls more than half of its voting
power or issued share capital or controls the
composition of its board of directors; or over which
the Company has a contractual right to exercise
a dominant influence with respect to the joint
venture’s financial and operating policies;

a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group/Company
does not have unilateral control, but has joint
control, directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

an associate, if the Group/Company does not have
unilateral or joint control, but holds, directly or
indirectly, generally not less than 20% of the joint
venture’s registered capital and is in a position to
exercise significant influence over the joint venture;
or

an equity investment accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 39, if the Group/Company holds, directly
or indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture’s
registered capital and has neither joint control of,
nor is in a position to exercise significant influence
over, the joint venture.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject
to joint control, resulting in none of the participating
parties having unilateral control over the economic activity

of the jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s investments in jointly-controlled entities are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity
method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of jointly-controlled entities is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
reserves, respectively. Where the profit sharing ratio
is different to the Group’s equity interest, the share of
post-acquisition results of the jointly-controlled entities
is determined based on the agreed profit sharing ratio.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its jointly-controlled entities are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in
the jointly-controlled entities, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of jointly-
controlled entities is included as part of the Group’s
investments in jointly-controlled entities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation either at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability that is a financial instrument and within the
scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value either recognised in profit or loss or as a
change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is
measured in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in
a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
values of the disposed operation and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
properties held for sale, deferred tax assets, financial
assets and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash- generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.

2.5

31 December 2013 .
—=%F+=-HA=+—H

ERETHBERBE (&)

FeMEERE (&)

BEBBEREE 2 FEEBREEA D
DRERER - R MEREER - fFtR
KIBERERA] REIBE TS HE 8RR

EEIEERFERR 2 FEZVRIREREX

MERERE - BEBBERELHEHARER
SmAFEDBEEEDE B2 HER
MR -

REBRERRANEEEBETRBTEE
BRREBRETBFEHRE R - IFE
s Al At Al B £ 5E - BEER
ZEE (FMEKIN) BREBE  E2RXF
VARE € 7% & B P M (O] 2 B 2 (i A A0 s
B ERERZEBRIFERBREEF
EXEREERDREBEEMECEE L
REE (MGREEE #EH) - BES
BRONELMEFTABRR -

Annual Report 2012/13 £ 115



Notes to the

SRR MIEE

Financial Statements

[ |
31 December 2013

—F2—=F+-"A=+—H

2.5 SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family if that person

(1)
(i)
(iiif)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iiif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary
or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life as follows:

Buildings in The remaining term of leases or
Mainland China 20 years, whichever is shorter
Leasehold The lease terms or 5 years,
improvements whichever is shorter
Office equipment, 3-5 years
furniture and
fixtures
Motor vehicles 4-5 years
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course
of business. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the end of the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

Properties under construction or development for further
use as investment properties are classified as investment
properties under construction. If the fair value cannot
be reliably determined, the investment properties under
construction will be measured at cost until such time
as fair value can be determined or construction is
completed. The Group has concluded that the fair value
of its investment properties under construction can be
measured reliably at 31 December 2013, and therefore,
the Group’s investment properties under construction are
measured at fair value.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of completed investment properties are included in the
statement of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of a
completed investment property are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in the year of the retirement
or disposal.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments
are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at cost less any
impairment losses. Cost of properties under development
comprises cost of acquisition, land cost, construction
costs, development costs, capitalised borrowing costs
and other direct costs attributable to the development.
The land cost is recognised on the straight-line basis over
the lease term. Impairment is assessed by the directors
based on prevailing market prices, on an individual
property basis.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined by apportionment
of total development cost, including capitalised borrowing
cost, attributable to the unsold units. Net realisable value
is determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds,
or estimated by management based on the prevailing
market conditions, less all estimated costs to completion
and selling expenses, on an individual property basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and
available-for-sale financial investments, as appropriate.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair
value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments as
defined by HKAS 39.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with positive net changes in fair value presented as other
income and gains and negative net changes in fair value
presented as finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss. These net fair value changes do not include any
dividends or interest earned on these financial assets.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS
39 are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method less any allowance
for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in
the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in finance costs for loans and in provision made for
receivables.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to
maturity when the Group has the positive intention
and ability to hold them to maturity. Held-to-maturity
investments are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in
the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in provision made.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are
those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

After
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,

initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in other income, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as other income.
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25

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant
for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used in estimating fair value, such investments are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised costs and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over the
remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate.
If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the
statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
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2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and
is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is
no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral
has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the
statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is
not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.

2.5

ERETHBERBE (&)

ERMEERE (&)
BBERSIRZERMEE (&)

ERBER 2 REBREBRZEERA
BHEFAFRAKRASRE (TRBELREL
ZARKEEER) REMEZZHE -
R RKREREZRENEHREEZR
ERAR (BIIRERRFTEZERME)
PR

ZEBEEZREESEEERBEEERTR
L MEBERBERRER - FEKARRE
PEZEMETREEL - BRAER
BEERRAUNTRARBREREZMNER
it e EEFRREREFRN BRLEKE 2
AREERMEEMRCBREXCERT A
B8 - AT EREMAAREEE s -

WEEERBRGETREBRSBHRE
RRERBEEZFEENIORD - RlEB
AEBEERR - B INE0R D ST AR 2R
BFE - MR ERIEREME - ZEK
Bl ABRRR

BERAESIRCEE

HEEBHRKRA - AEREZESTAD
EERERE MZBALAHRAAEE
AR SR EMA MR A AENIE - AIEE
Z B HEE ZREEEGTER R
RenERENTS LEUEREEZD
BEFRZBEMEZEZRAE - ZEER
EZRERBBRTEEE -

126  Gemdale Properties and Investment Corporation Limited &7 & S E B R A 7



Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

25

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group
of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through
the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair
value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e, removed from the

Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive

cash flows from the assets or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate

amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded
in active markets is determined by reference to quoted
market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price
for long positions and ask price for short positions),
without any deduction for transaction costs. For financial
instruments where there is no active market, the fair value
is determined using appropriate valuation techniques.
Such techniques include using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of
another instrument which is substantially the same; a
discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign currency
risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the
fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value
is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges,
which is recognised in other comprehensive income and
later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item
affects profit or loss.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are
classified as:

° fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to
changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or
liability or an unrecognised firm commitment; or

° cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to
variability in cash flows that is either attributable to
a particular risk associated with a recognised asset
or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction,
or a foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm
commitment; or

° hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
(continued)

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relationship to which
the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk
management objective and its strategy for undertaking the
hedge. The documentation includes identification of the
hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the
nature of the risk being hedged and how the Group will
assess the hedging instrument’s effectiveness of changes
in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the
exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or
cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges
are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting
changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on
an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been
highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods
for which they were designated.

Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting
are accounted for as follows:

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income in the hedging reserve, while any ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the statement of
profit or loss.

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are
transferred to the statement of profit or loss when the
hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when
hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised
or when a forecast sale occurs. Where the hedged item is
the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability,
the amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-
financial asset or non-financial liability.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

Cash flow hedges (continued)

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of
the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge
is revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income remain in
other comprehensive income until the forecast transaction
occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met.

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective
hedging instruments are classified as current or non-
current or separated into current and non-current portions
based on an assessment of the facts and circumstances
(i.e., the underlying contracted cash flows).

o Where the Group expects to hold a derivative as
an economic hedge (and does not apply hedge
accounting) for a period beyond 12 months after
the end of the reporting period, the derivative is
classified as non-current (or separated into current
and non-current portions) consistently with the
classification of the underlying item.

° Embedded derivatives that are not closely related
to the host contract are classified consistently with
the cash flows of the host contract.

. Derivative instruments that are designated as, and
are effective hedging instruments, are classified
consistently with the classification of the underlying
hedged item. The derivative instruments are
separated into current portions and non-current
portions only if a reliable allocation can be made.
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25

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
joint ventures when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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25

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences

associated with investments in subsidiaries
and joint ventures deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences

can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(a) revenue from the sale of properties is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of the
properties are passed to the purchasers when (i)
an irrevocable sale and purchase contract has
been entered into by both buyer and seller; (ii)
the seller has received or obtained the right to
receive all the consideration of the sale; (iii) the
construction has been completed, and its quality
has been inspected and accepted by the relevant
government authorities; and (iv) the ready-for-
delivery conditions under the sale and purchase
contract have been fulfilled.

(b) operating lease rental income is recognised on a
time proportion basis over the lease terms;

(c) property management fee income and entrusted
management fee income are recognised when the
services are rendered;

(d) utility income is recognised when the services are
rendered; and
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2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(e)

interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial assets.

Employee benefits

(a)

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all eligible
employees. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ salaries, allowances
and other benefits and are charged to the statement
of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
which operate in Mainland China are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute 18% to 30% of its payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. These
contributions are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with

the rules of the central pension scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Employee leave pay and compensation
entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service payment are recognised when they accrue
to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service payment
as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of taking
leave.

(c) Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration
in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees for grants after 7 November 2002 is
measured by reference to the fair value at the
date at which they are granted. The fair value is
determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model, further details of which are given in note
27(b)(iv) to the financial statements.
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25

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(c)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is

recognised, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled
in employee benefit expenses. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions
at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of
profit or loss for a period represents the movement
in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do
not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled
transactions where vesting is conditional upon a
market or non-vesting condition, which are treated
as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that
all other performance and/or service conditions
are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the
original terms of the awards are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification
that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
(c) Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled,
it is treated as if it had vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the
employees are not met. However, if a new award
is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards
are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options
is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of earnings per share.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.
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25

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Dividend

Final dividends proposed by the Board are classified as
a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they
have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by
the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as
a liability.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with
the exception of monetary items that are designated as
part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement
of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to
exchange differences on those monetary items are also
recorded in other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary items measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and jointly-controlled entities are currencies other than the
Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollar at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserves. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollar
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which
have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
Group has to exercise judgement in the area of asset
impairment, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an
event has occurred that may affect the asset value or
such event affecting the asset value does not exist; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported
by the net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset or
derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using
an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions
in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.

Impairment of other receivables

The policy for the impairment of other receivables of
the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of accounts and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history individually. If the financial
condition of the Group’s other receivables was
deteriorated, resulting in an impairment of their abilities to
make payments, additional allowances may be required.
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SRR MIEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)
Land appreciation tax

Under the Detailed Rules for the Implementation of
Provisional Regulations on Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”)
of the PRC on 27 January 1995, all gains arising from the
transfer of real estate property in Mainland China effective
from 1 January 1994 are subject to LAT at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of
land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including amortisation of land
use rights, borrowing costs and all property development
expenditures.

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in property
development business in Mainland China are subject to
land appreciation taxes. However, the implementation
of these taxes varies amongst Mainland China cities
and the Group has not finalised its land appreciation
tax returns with various tax authorities. Accordingly,
significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of land appreciation and related taxes. The
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises these liabilities
based on management’s best estimates. When the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the provisions of land appreciation taxes in the period in
which such determination is made.

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Unlisted equity investment

The Group’s unlisted equity investment has been stated at
cost less impairment because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that management is of
the opinion that its fair value cannot be measured reliably.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market for similar lease terms and other contracts.
In the absence of such information, management has
determined the amounts within a range of reasonable fair
value estimates. In making its estimation, management
considered information from (i) current prices in an active
market for properties of different nature, conditions or
locations by reference to available market information; (ii)
recent prices of similar properties in less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of transactions that occurred at
those prices; and (iii) discounted cash flow projections,
based on reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived
from the terms of any existing lease and other contracts,
and (where possible) from external evidence such as
current market rates for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using discount rates that
reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in
the amount and timing of cash flows.
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SRR MIEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
(continued)

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on
31 December 2013 by an independent, professionally
qualified valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal
and Advisory on an open market, existing use basis.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of
the fair value included those related to current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, appropriate discount rates, expected future
market rents and future maintenance costs. Particulars of
the investment properties held by the Group are set out
in note 15 to the financial statements.

Current taxes and deferred taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant estimation and judgement were
required in determining the amount of the provision for
tax and the timing of payment of the related taxes. There
were transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination was uncertain during the ordinary
course of business.

As detailed in the Company’s accounting policy, deferred
tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Where the final tax outcomes of these matters are
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact on the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination is made.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision

A provision is recognised when a present obligation has
arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. Significant
estimation is required in determining the amount of
certain obligations. Where the final outcomes of these
obligations are different from the amounts that were
initially recognised, adjustments will be made according
to the latest information available.

Estimation of total budgeted costs and costs to
completion for properties under development

Total budgeted costs for properties under development
comprised (i) prepaid land lease payments; (ii) building
costs; and (iii) any other direct costs attributable to
the development of the properties. In estimating the
total budgeted costs for properties under development,
management made reference to information such as (i)
current offers from contractors and suppliers; (ii) recent
offers agreed with contractors and suppliers; and (iii)
professional estimation on construction and material
costs.
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SRR MIEE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the property development segment — development,
investment and management of properties;

(b) the business park segment — development,
investment and management of business parks;
and

(c) the corporate segment — the Group’s corporate
management services to the residential,
commercial and business park projects.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted
profit/(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before
tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit before
tax except that interest income, finance costs and share
of losses of jointly-controlled entities are excluded from
such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets and certain
deposits, bank and cash balances as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities, amounts
due to the ultimate holding company, the immediate
holding company, non-controlling shareholders, fellow
subsidiaries, and related companies, and certain loans
from the immediate holding company as these liabilities
are managed on a group basis.

During the current period and the prior year, there were
no intersegment transactions.

31 December 2013 .
—=%F+=-HA=+—H

rE>HER
BAHEERE  AEBRHEERRREEE
ROBEBGEN - WA ZEn] 2R &
2R

(a) YEBERIWM-VERER REN
B

(b) BWEXEIH -BRERE RENM
B M

(c) EXEBERHE -—AKEREIE B
EUREEEREBRT 2 AEER
AR5

EEEBBUVERAEBEKEDEEE - U
ERE IR B MBS BB RE o 5
DESRIAE - WA 2®/HIEEF S (BE)
B BFTERBACHAZRZ®F (8B
B) BRBAKLAREHN (BB 25
2 BERNEEZBRBADEN - - EFS
WA - S ERRENRRZEHEREE
AT ETEER o

DEEETREEECHRBEERE TR
FoRTRREES FRAZSEED
HEEEEER

SHEBETEEMERITREAMER - &

IR BEHERE  BNREERA

A BEERAR - FEERRER - RRH

BRBIREERNRFIE  ARETEEE

W“TEA'%HE?QEEE&%I%
EETE o

RAREEBEFEAR  FXBDEHHEL
BETENRS

Annual Report 2012/13 5 149



Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

[ |
31 December 2013
—EF—=F+=-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4.

15 months period ended 31 December 2013

=
BE-_F-—=Ff+t-A=t—HLE+EHE

A&
Property Business
development park Corporate Total
MERE BER TEER &t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT BETR BETR
Segment revenue: DEWA
Sales to external customers HETHNREP 55,490 235,161 = 290,651
Segment results: SEEE (134,218) 1,783,697 (118,601) 1,530,878
Reconciliation #HiE
Interest income A BUA 15,449
Finance costs VBER (56,063)
Share of losses of FE{G LRI TR AR (9,881)
jointly-controlled entities
Profit before tax B A A 1,480,383
Segment assets: PHEE - 11,460,765 4,059,699 29,244 15,549,708
Reconciliation #HiR
Other unallocated assets HEtRABEEE 103,182
Total assets BEEEE 15,652,890
Segment liabilities: 2THEE: 6,272,716 92,446 18,694 6,383,856
Reconciliation HEE
Other unallocated liabilities HihAHEEE 2,164,410
Total liabilities ERERCE 8,548,266
Other segment information: HitpHBER
Changes in fair values REMEZAER - (1,413,446) - (1,413,446)
of investment properties
Depreciation e 476 568 2,314 3,358
Provision written back for a MEHKREIBEZ (34,112) (228,286) - (262,398)
property development project %4 ol
(Reversal of impairment)/ EWER (RERR), (16,368) 200 146 (16,022)
impairment of receivables, net  JFi{E ' ¥
Capital expenditure* N 3,242 22,645 12,087 37,974

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property,
plant and equipment and investment properties.

* BRI BIERYE - BiERREAR
REYFEANZIE
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SRR MIEE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4.

Year ended 30 September 2012
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BE_T——FhAA=1THILFE
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Property Business
development park Corporate Total
MEER EEE TrEER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT BRI BETT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E71) (&71) (&51) (Z51)
Segment revenue: DEUWA
Sales to external customers HETFIREP 21,666 177,598 - 199,264
Segment results: DEEE (11,964) 806,769 (33,373) 761,432
Reconciliation B
Interest income FEUA 27,558
Finance costs BER (29,626)
Profit before tax B AR A 759,364
Segment assets: PEERE 4,158,744 2,280,842 12,471 6,452,057
Reconciliation #HiE
Other unallocated assets Hi KD EE 392,678
Total assets BERE 6,844,735
Segment liabilities: AHEE 149,646 56,371 21,657 227,674
Reconciliation #HiE
Other unallocated liabilities HEtAxDEEE 2,812,549
Total liabilities aReE 3,040,223
Other segment information: BEihoHER :
Changes in fair values of REMEZ DR - (667,648) - (667,648)
investment properties
Depreciation e 275 231 32 538
Impairment of other receivables — E fth fE U BR ZUR B B 17,330 - - 17,330
Amortisation of land use rights 0 {F A 7 55 15,205 - - 15,205
Capital expenditure* CNGE 391 1,520 52 1,963

*

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property,

* BEXAXBIERYE  BERRELR

REYFERZHE -

plant and equipment and investment properties.
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
sales of properties, gross rental income, property
management fee received and receivable from the
principal activities, utility income and entrusted
management fee income received from fellow subsidiaries
during the period/year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains
recognised during the period/year is as follows:

WA~ Hfti AR iz

WATTRAER 2 €58 - B8 FR
MEIHE KEETEXH O WEEKRE
TWABERMEEEERA - 2AED
EREWRAN R EERF R B AR ZER
AEBERA -

8 FREERARA - EMUA KU ES
2O

Period ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
BE-Z-—=F HE_T—_F
+=-A=+-A8 NA=+E
1IEHAR IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BEFIT
Revenue WA
Sale of properties MEHEE 37,493 18,079
Gross rental income el A4 154,079 119,017
Property management fee income BEMEZYXERE 69,271 52,598
for owned properties WA
Utility income NRAEBEREBRA 6,018 9,570
Entrusted management fee income WERREZRWEB AR 23,790 -
from fellow subsidiaries HEFEBKA
290,651 199,264
Other income and gains Hih g A R &
Recovery of retention money (Note) W ERE & RIB (H1:2) - 41,372
Interest income FEWA 15,449 27,558
Others Hib 5,883 2,777
21,332 71,707

Note: Amount, net of tax, represented the retention money
received relating to the disposal of the Group’s interest

in a land development site in Beijing in prior years.

Wit - BEHIBHEZ HEEBEFRERLER

EE I RERERANEREAZE
WRE 2 IE
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6. PROVISION WRITTEN BACK/(MADE)
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EI#(fEH) BE

Period ended Year ended
31 December 30 September

2013 2012

BE-2-=Ff BE_T—_F
+=A=+—8~ NAZ=+E
L HAE IHFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
(Restated)
(E3))
Provision written back for a property YIEIREIER 2 262,398 -
development project (Note) BEEE (Ki)
Impairment of trade receivables, FEWE ZERFBE - 558 (483) -
net (Note 23) (K1#E23)
Reversal of impairment/(impairment) HAab EUBR FURE R 16,505 (17,330)
of other receivables, net (Note 24) CRf&E) » 558 (K5t24)
Provision for litigation claims SFRAFR B = (6,997)
278,420 (24,327)

Note:

Amount represented the write back during the period for
provision made in prior years for a property development
project in Shenzhen Hi-tech Industrial Park, the PRC.
During the period, the Group reached in a consensus
with the relevant government authorities in Shenzhen for
the reactivation of the development of a previously idle
project namely phase 3 of Shenzhen Hi-tech Industrial
Park. The reactivated project can be developed into
investment properties and properties held for sale in
accordance with the framework agreement with the
government. Details of the transaction were disclosed in
note 30 to the financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 30 September 2012. Provision written back
was debited to investment properties (HK$228,286,000
(Note 15)) and properties under development
(HK$34,112,000 (Note 17)) in proportion to their gross
floor areas.

Wiat - BRI BEIE B 5 BRI S BT

EREEYEFERIEL T FREEAT
1EZ BI7E - RAEIA - 22 B 85718
BT S5 PTE L 2 R 3 R = 3T
RWEXEE=HYEEL - RIEFLK
FFEETZER % - ERUAR A HRA
KEYERFHENE - K BHEEH
BRAEFEG T —F— —FENF=+
H I F .2 B FE#& N15£30 - B
BOZRZZEARTAREYE (B
228,286,0007T (M17t15)) R EHY)
2 (EM34,112,0007T (F13E17)) -
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7.  FINANCE COSTS 7. HKER
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: HBEBRZ2WMWT
Period ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2013 2012

BE-_Z2—=F HE_ZT——F
+=B=+-—H HA=+H

1EEARS HFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT
Interest on borrowings wholly repayable REFNEEZHEEREK
within five years ZHE
- bank and other borrowings — RITREME K 64,326 49,615
- loans from the ultimate holding company  — S&IERATER 70,747 -
— loans from the immediate holding —EEERATIER 9,928 -
company
— loan from a non-controlling shareholder — JEIERRRER 8,312 -
153,313 49,615
Other finance costs Hmit%sER 11,905 7,221
Total finance costs incurred EACWBERBRE 165,218 56,836
Less: Interest capitalised to properties B BEBRRERYEZER (109,155) (27,210)
under development (Note 17) EFE (Bat17)
56,063 29,626

154  Gemdale Properties and Investment Corporation Limited &% & R E B R A 7



Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

8.

31 December 2013

—=%+=-HA=+—8H
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. BRBADEF
The Group’s profit before tax was arrived at after ZFEI PR AT B (FGEA) LT &
charging/(crediting):
Period ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
BE-E-z=£& H= —F
+=A=+-R” jlﬁ +A
LHER LFE
HK$'000 HK$000
BETR BT T
(Restated)
(27)
Depreciation (Note 14) e (fi:714) 3,555 685
Less: Amounts capitalised to properties B BIERRERYEY (197) (147)
under development EXEHE
3,358 538
Gross rental income (Note 5) Re W AR (H525) (154,079) (119,017)
Less: Outgoing expenses (Note a) W X (Hita) 25,349 21,927
Net rental income (Note b) BEWNFE (Mri2b) (128,730) (97,090)
Net loss on disposal of items of property, HEME  BERZEEE 6 42
plant and equipment ER%E
Changes in fair values of investment &é%%z NREEE (fi7115) (1,413,446) (667,648)
properties (Note 15)
Provision written back for a property WERREIBE 2 BEDE (262,398) -
development project (Note 6) (Hite)
Amortisation of land use rights T AR 71,854 15,205
Less: Amounts capitalised to properties o BIERERMEL (71,854) -
under development ERLeR
- 15,205
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of Het YRR CRERE),/ (16,505) 17,330
other receivables, net (Note 24) RE  FE (Wito4)
Impairment of trade receivables, net (Note 23) [EUE SEREURE - B8 (f75223) 483 -
Minimum lease payments under operating T NEFZEERE 15,554 3,023
lease in respect of land and buildings ZREATE
Employees benefits expenses (including REBHZAY (B
directors’ emoluments (Note 10): E=Me (1)
Wages and salaries T&REHH 90,362 37,130
Share-based compensation expenses (Note 27(b)(iv) BIAEN & B (B1:227(b)(iv)) 62,471 1,597
Pension schemes contributions }J?T(;# IR 607 1,071
Less: Forfeited contribution /Jﬁ BoR Mz \T>)\ (1,045) (197)
Net pension schemes contributions/(refund) RETEIER(RF) FH8 (438) 874
Total employees benefits expenses REBM AL 8% 152,395 39,601
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEIN S 2,117 2,209
Foreign exchange losses/(gains), net SNEBE (W)  FHE 36,875 (998)
Notes: Wizt -
(a) The outgoing expenses for the period/year were included (a) RHEAFRAFELTEFARGEBBERZ
in “direct operating expenses” on the face of the [EEAAERHS ] -
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
(b) Rental income on investment properties was included in (b)

net rental income.

%%#Z%%‘Z M2 WA BFAH 2 YAF
BHY ©
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TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the period (Year ended 30 September 2012:
Nil). Taxation on Mainland China profits was calculated
on the estimated assessable profits for the period/year at
the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdiction in which the
Group operates.

The provision of LAT has been estimated according
to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC laws
and regulations. LAT has been provided at ranges of
progressive rates of the appreciation value, with certain
allowable deductions.

The amount of tax charge in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss represented:

BIR

RN AEER A B EERRT S
Mo MY EELREENER 2 BE (BE
—E-_FNAA=ZTHFEL: &) P
BIREE &R 2 RIEE St A B FE At
ERBUR A - IMAKRER L R E PA
R RITREREFE -

THIRER 2 BEC B AT BEUAG KR
PR &t 2 FRTE VB AT o i IR E T IRIE
BEEERRE TR ZERR  REE
MR ZBEELBYE -

REFEEmRIBESHMT

Period ended Year ended

31 December 30 September

2013 2012

BE-Z—=F BE_T—_F

+=B=+—8” hA=+H

1EER S IEFE

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BETT

Current - Hong Kong BNER — &% - -
Current - Mainland China BNER — A B K e

Charge for the period/year o ERTH 29,807 29,708

(Over)/under-provision in prior years BEEE (B8 / TE2BE (878) 457

LAT in Mainland China PEARE Z THE(ER 890 557

Deferred (Note 34) BRI (f77734) 313,635 184,044

343,454 214,766
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TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which

9. BiE (&)

BARE REKED
5 52 P 0 B 5 A i )2 VR R 7 2
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31 December 2013

—=%F+=-HA=+—H
18 A B BT IE B) A 8

5 2 B

the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are X BRERTESE 2 HIE HIA
domiciled to the tax charge at the effective tax rate, and K8 A i (E” BEBMEK) BERBE 2
a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the statutory HERBSIT -
tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are as follows:
Period ended Year ended
31 December 2013 30 September 2012
BE-_Z—=% HE-T—-F
TZHA=+—HLEHE NAZTHLEFE
HK$°000 % HK$'000 %
BET T AT T
Profit before tax %5 B & A 1,480,383 759,364
Tax at the statutory tax rate REAFERERFE 2 FiE 390,903 26.4 193,413 255
Adjustments in respect of current BB HIRE 2 BNEAFR 18 (878) (0.1) 457 -
tax of previous periods
Losses attributable to JE(R LRI H T AL EE 1,630 0.1 - -
jointly-controlled entities
Income not subject to tax AR 2 WA (77,057) (5.2) (22,916) (3.0
Expenses not deductible for tax Az 2 25,657 1.7 23,182 3.1
Utilisation of previously BB RER  HIBEE (3,149) (0.2) (585) (0.1)
unrecognised tax losses
Tax losses for which no deferred  RBHRELRIEEE 3,038 0.2 9,555 1.3
tax asset was recognised ZBiIEEE
LAT in Mainland China REIARE 2 IR ETR 890 0.1 557 -
Deferred tax in respect of PP B A BETE TS R 2,420 0.2 11,103 15
withholding income taxes Bz EERE
in Mainland China
Tax charge at the effective rate RERTMRAE 7 FRIES H 343,454 23.2 214,766 28.3
The share of tax credit attributable to jointly-controlled EEHXREHEBHEER 2BE

entities amounting to HK$2,809,000 (Year ended 30
September 2012: Nil) is included in “Share of losses of
in the consolidated statement

jointly-controlled entities”
of profit or loss.

2,809,0007¢ (HE—-F
IHFEE: 8) BB AGREER
HRAZH EREEIE] -
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—=

10.

—=F+=-A=+—H
DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 10, EBERSREBABZME
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=EM<E
Directors’ emoluments for the period from - ——F+A—HEZ=ZZ—=
1 October 2012 to 31 December 2013, disclosed Ft-A=1— ElJtHﬂF'Eﬁ%‘E%Z
pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of B ARIE E AR A BB A ARSI
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as E16TERIRENT
follows:
Salaries, Employer's
allowances contributions
and benefits ~ Share-based to pension
inkind compensation  Discretionary scheme
Fees %% 2H expenses bonuses  EAS3E Total
He RENAE ROMEHX MERL  ZBIfX fit
Notes HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Name of directors ESn? i3 BETT  BETR BRI BETT BETn  BETn
Executive directors #iTEs
Mr. Ling Ke AREE (i 669 - 7,964 - - 8,633
Mr. Huang Juncan ERALE (i) 669 - 6,638 - - 1307
Mr. Wei Chuanjun EEERE (ii) 14 145 4,558 20 - 4,864
Mr. Xu Jiajun BRELE (i) 141 122 5,505 2 - 5878
Mr. Leung Ka Hing, Harry 2FERE (iil) - 915 150 901 234 2,200
1,620 1,182 24,905 941 234 28,882
Non-executive directors FnES
Mr. Cheong Fook Seng, Anthony S5 78Rk % (iv) 2 - - - - 20
Ms. Chong Siak Ching FEERT (iv) 2 - 109 - - 129
Mr. Hui Choon Kit st (i) 3 - - - - 35
Mr. Lim Ee Seng MaBEE (iv) 2% - - - - 25
Mr. Tang Kok Kai, Christopher ~ EIRIE% % (iv) 20 - - - - 20
Mr. Chia Nam Toon (altemate to ~ #@E%E (RE6at (V) - - - - - -
Ms. Chong Siak Ching) JBIEE)
120 - 109 - - 229
Independent BUkyTES
non-executive directors
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung SHRmAE 404 50 623 - - m
Mr. Chiang Sheung Yee, Anthony B4 (v) 308 - 513 - - 821
Mr. Hu Chunyuan m%mﬁé (v) 384 513 - - 897
Mr. Kwee Chong Kok, Michael ~ S&/BI%LE (vi) 56 310 75 - - |
Ms. Wong Siu Ming, Helen FARRT (vi) 53 310 75 - - 438
Mr. Chong Kok Kong FEREE (vi) 48 50 109 - - 207
1,253 720 1,908 - - 3,881
2,993 1,902 26,922 941 234 32,992
Notes: k3
(i) appointed on 20 November 2012 (i) R-FE——F+—HA-+H¥#¥

(i) appointed on 30 October 2012

(iii) resigned as Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Director on 30 October 2012 and 20 November
2012, respectively

(iv) resigned on 20 November 2012

(v) appointed on 30 November 2012

(vi) resigned on 30 November 2012

ZF
(i) REF——4F+ =+ AEZ(T
(i) TH=+HE
:gf:if — 5=+ HEHET
BERATES ‘
(iv) R E——F— = HEHE

i) R-IF——F+—H=+HET
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(a)

31 December 2013 .
—E—=F+-_A=+—H

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 10. EERSREBAEZME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) ESEME (A
Directors’ emoluments for the year ended BE—_T——FhLA=-THLFE
30 September 2012, disclosed pursuant to the BEFEZMESRE LHRAIRES
Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong NEHEGIE 16 HERIER T -
Companies Ordinance, are as follows:
Salaries, Employer's
allowances contributions
and benefits  Share-based to pension
inkind  compensation  Discretionary scheme
Fees 5&- 28 expenses bonuses &3 Total
e REWHE ROHEER BETL  zEIER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Name of directors e ESTT  BETR BT BT BETT AR
Executive director UnES
Mr. Leung Ka Hing, Harry DRERE - 2,441 202 680 108 3,431
- 2,441 202 680 08 3431
Non-executive directors FHES
Mr. Cheong Fook Seng, Anthony FRMLE 140 - - - - 140
Ms. Chong Siak Ching FEfERT 140 - 204 - - 344
Mr. Hui Choon Kit FHEsEE 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Lim Ee Seng hEEE 173 - - - - 173
M. Tang Kok Kai, Christopher BEELE 140 - - - - 140
Mr. Chia Nam Toon (alternate to HEEEE (REERT - - - - - -
Ms. Chong Siak Ching) JEAEE)
833 - 204 - - 103
Independent BUkHTES
non-executive directors
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung SRR 307 - 204 - - 511
Mr. Kwee Chong Kok, Michael BIEZei 324 - 101 - - 425
Ms. Wong Siu Ming, Helen EARLL 307 - 101 - - 408
Mr. Chong Kok Kong FERLE 274 - 204 - - 478
1212 - 610 - - 182
2,045 2,441 1,016 680 108 6,290

No remuneration has been paid by the Group to
the directors as an inducement to join upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office
during the current period and the prior year.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the current period and the prior year.

AERE E—FE  AEERER
EEXNEAMEER/INAREE
2 B SRAFRREREE o

AHRE E—FERN  EEHER
BEMZEERELR B RERR
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—EF—=F+=-A=+—H

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 10. EEREREEAEZHE (&)

EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b)  Five highest paid employees (b)

The five highest paid employees in the Group
for the period included four (Year ended 30
September 2012: one) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining one (Year
ended 30 September 2012: four) non-director,
highest paid employee for the period are as

hEREHMAL

RABER  ARERARRRSH
MALBRRENRZ (BE-T——F
NA=+HILFE: —%) &%
HEHM 28R EX - AHE
Hep—F (BE-T——-FNA=
TRLEFE: I&) R2FMER
CGEE=R) ZBes T

follows:
Period ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
BE-T-=F ®BE_T—_F
+=B=+-—H hA=+AH
1-FARE HFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & ~ ZBE R EYFIZH 817 6,066
Share-based compensation expenses B ile X 575 241
Discretionary bonuses (RN 2,722 -
Employer’s contributions to RKEFEIZ 121 176

pension schemes EBEMHR

4,235 6,483

The number of non-director, highest paid
employees whose emoluments fell within the
following bands is as follows:

EEFEMEER GEES) JIART
Rz A2

Number of employees

EE A"
Period ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
BE-_Z-—=F HZ=—_T——F
+=B=+—8H hA=+H
HK$ it LIEHAR HFE
Nil to 1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 =
1,000,001 to 2,000,000 1,000,001%2,000,000 =
2,000,001 to 3,000,000 2,000,001%3,000,000 = -
3,000,001 to 4,000,000 3,000,001%4,000,000 = -
4,000,001 to 5,000,000 4,000,001%5,000,000 1 -
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11.

12.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the period from 1 October 2012 to 31
December 2013 included a loss of HK$138,832,000
(Year ended 30 September 2012: HK$31,522,000) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share was
based on the profit for the period attributable to
owners of the Company, and the weighted average
of 8,686,330,023 (Year ended 30 September 2012:
6,852,522,794) ordinary shares in issue during the
period.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share was
based on the profit for the period/year attributable
to owners of the Company. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares used in the calculation
was the number of ordinary shares in issue during
the period/year, as used in the basic earnings
per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise
or conversion of all potentially dilutive ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

11.

12.

31 December 2013 .
—E—=F+-_A=+—H

RATEFEAEERF

EE g
A=+
eyl

——F+A-BETE—=F+=
—BILHFE - NRFFA ARG
C BREEFARRBMBEHRER ZE

18 &8 138,832,000 (BE—_ZE——
FNLA=ZFTHLEFE  B¥31522000

JT) °

RRARFAABEEBRAEF

(a)

(b)

BREREF

BREXBFIBBERRBFTEA
FEREREES  REAASETE®
B 0 4 F 1598,686,330,023/% (&
E-ZT-——"FNA=ZTHILFE:
6,852,522,794%) {E5TE

BREERF

BRETRNDREARBFHEA
PR FERMTE - BIE
IR E 2 BB N F I B AR
B/ FReETEakss (A
Nt BEBREABNE) ARAA
BEEEEBRGFETERERS
BB MREATRERTERK
Z hnREFIH L -
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—EF—=F+=-A=+—H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12.

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (continued)

ERAFEARGERER (&)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share FREAREERN 2 FEER -

are based on:

Period ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
BE-Z-—=F HE_T—_F
T=HETr=E NnA=+AH
1EHARE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Earnings 2R
Profit attributable to owners of the ViN/NEIE= YN Y 1,149,394 497,150

Company, used in the basic
earnings per share calculation

A (RUARTE
FREAREF)

Number of shares

IRB

Period ended
31 December

2013
BE-Z-—=F
t+=A=+-H

53R

Year ended
30 September
2012
HE-_ZT——F
hA=+AH
IFFE
(Restated)
(&351)

Shares

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during
the period/year, used in the basic
earnings per share calculation

Effect of dilution — weighted average
number of ordinary shares:
Share options

A2

RE/FREBBETERRZ
IR ER (A
AEEBRELRRN)

8,686,330,023

BEYE - LAaR
T ER -
R

6,852,522,794

13,935,693

8,686,330,023

6,866,458,487
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—=%#+=-A=+—H
13. DIVIDEND 13. BRE
Period ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
BE-Z— HE-_T——-F
+=A=+-8 NA=+H
1 HARE HFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETIT
Proposed final — HK$0.01 ERAH—FREER 90,931 -
(Year ended 30 September 2012: Nil) B0 (BEZT—ZF
per ordinary share NA=THLFE : &)
At the Board meeting held on 7 March 2014, the Board 15@: = —q i?ﬁl +H %??Z%%@@
resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend, B EFEERRBENBE_T—=
amounting to HK$90,931,000, of HK$0.01 per share for Ft+-A=+_—H thjif A 8k %
the 15 months period ended 31 December 2013. The AE R EFRB 001 - HEBERAER
proposed final dividend is not reflected as dividend 90,931,0007T ° ULHEIK A B 830 AR AR
payable in the consolidated financial statements until AE?TW#&%%WJ%E%EEHHX B ZIRER
it has been approved by the shareholders at the AR A BITZ R EAFAE ERBER
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. HOEBEA AER -
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% BERXE
Group rEH
Motor Office  Furniture Leasehold
vehicles  equipment and fixtures improvements Total
RE  BAZRE GAREE  HENEEE b
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BETT BETT BETT B¥TR
At 31 December 2013: R-B-=%+-A=t-R:
At 30 September 2012 and R-E-ZERA=1THR
at 1 October 2012 R=2-Z%t+A-H
Cost B 2,543 6,877 3,620 1,781 14,821
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  2R#HE RifE (2,414) (5,630) (3,268) (1,781)  (13,093)
Net carrying amount ERFE 129 1,247 352 - 1,728
At 1 October 2012, net of accumulated R=ZF-=%+A-H: 129 1,247 352 = 1,728
depreciation and impairment NREERERAE
Additions 57‘ 2,745 2,525 1,813 10,246 17,329
Disposals HE - (23) (4) - (27)
Depreciation (Note 8) E (M3t9) (183) (909) (281) (2,182)  (3,555)
Reclassification EEipL - (44) 44 - -
Exchange realignment [RDJW 3 39 9 - 51
At 31 December 2013, net of accumulated R-E—=£+-A=+—F " 2,694 2,835 1,933 8,064 15,526
depreciation and impairment NBEBNERAE
At 31 December 2013 R-B-=#+-A=1-H
Cost ( 4,841 7,351 5,340 10,246 27,778
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2 E A (2,147) (4,516) (3,407) (2,182)  (12,252)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,694 2,835 1,933 8,064 15,526
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. %% - BMERRE (&)

Group rEH
Motor Office Furniture Leasehold
vehicles  equipment  and fixtures  improvements Total
AE BAERE  GHRRRE  BEWERE ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

AETT  AETR  BETR AETL TR

At 30 September 2012: R-ZE-ZfhA=1H:

At 1 October 2011 RZZ-—-%t5-H

Cost AR 2,543 6,771 3,604 1,781 14,699

Accumulated depreciation and impairment  27EHE RifE (2,414) (5,563) (3,128) (1,781)  (12,886)

Net carrying amount REFE 129 1,208 476 - 1813

At 1 October 2011, net of accumulated R-ZF——-&£+H-A- 129 1,208 476 - 1,813
depreciation and impairment NREBRERAE

Additions R - 667 23 - 690

Disposals mE - (90) - - (90)

Depreciation (Note 8) & (Hit8) - (538) (147) - (685)

At 30 September 2012, net of accumulated R=E——FAA=FH " 129 1,247 352 - 1,728
depreciation and impairment MR ERIERHE

At 30 September 2012 RZE-ZEhR=1H

Cost AR 2,543 6,877 3,620 1,781 14,821

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 27 E KiAE (2,414) (5,630) (3,268) (1,781)  (13,093)

Net carrying amount REFE 129 1,247 352 - 1,728
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. REWH

Group
158
31 December 2013
Z8-ZE+ZAZt-8
Investment
Completed property
investment under
properties  construction Total

FIREME HRRENE g8 %
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BN BN

[ |
31 December 2013
—E—=F+-_A=+—H

30 September 2012
ZE-ZENA=TH
Investment
Completed property
investment under
properties  construction Total
IRENE EERENZ ek

HK§000  HKS000  HK$O000
BT BBt EBTn

Net carrying amount at the beginning of ~ RETTREIE / £E 12 2,129,075 - 2,129,075 1,456,147 - 1456,147
the financial period/year FEEE

Additionsfimprovements 5/ HE 279 20,366 20,645 1273 - 1273

Provision written back (Note 6) BEDR (W) - 228,266 228,286 - - -

Changes in fair values (Note 8) MEZ 28 (i) 594,481 818,965 1,413,446 667,648 - 667,648

Exchange realignment ERA% 97,400 19,892 117,292 4,007 - 4,007

Net carrying amount at the end of REBERE / FERZ 2821235 1,087,500 3,908,744 2,129,075 - 2129075
the financial period/year Fm3E

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on

31 December 2013 by an independent, professionally mERERER
qualified valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal

and Advisory (30 September 2012: CBRE HK Limited), at —=%F+=A
HK$3,908,744,000 (30 September 2012: HK$2,129,075,000) 1718 A E A

on an open market, existing use basis. The completed
investment properties were leased to third parties under

operating leases, further summary details of which are EIRBLEHE

included in note 37(b)(ii) to the financial statements.

BYBXSERMGLEMTERITEEN

NE(ZE—=—FNLA=+

B ERREML (FE) GRAF) R-F

=t BREQMAMSZIR
AEBZERENEEGRRE

#3,008,744,0007c (ZE—=—F A=
B : %2 129,075,00070) - B TIEY

HWHEETE=)7 HE—F

B2 BN HRERMEEI7(b)(ii) °
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—E—=F+=-A=+—H

15.

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group’s investment properties were situated outside
Hong Kong and were held under the medium lease terms
(between from 10 to 50 years).

At 31 December 2013 and 30 September 2012, no
investment properties of the Group were pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

At the end of the reporting period, the application
for certificate of land use rights of certain investment
properties situated in Mainland China held under medium
term leases with a carrying amount of HK$1,087,509,000
(80 September 2012: Nil) was still in progress. The
directors of the Company consider that the relevant
certificate of land use rights will be obtained upon the
payment of addition land premium.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties
are included on pages 228 to 232 of the annual report.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

The properties held for sale of the Group were situated in
Hong Kong and Mainland China and stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.

15.

16.

REWME (&)

AEBZHEMRURNB BRI -
FRERFL) (N F108505F) 1354 °

WARE

RZE—=F+-_A=+—RAKk=ZF—=
FANAZTH AEBZEREDEMRET
LAHKIR - AEBSRAERER L 2 BT
ﬁa

RBEER BT URTBEKREZREY
¥ T ERAERFNERES - ZIRE
WETDRBEPEHEOEE - HEREEEAE
#1,087,509,0007c (ZE—ZF A=+
H: %)  ARBEFRAFMEEINS
BERBB RIS B tinERAE -

AEBREMEZE—THBHATRSE
228F % 232H °

FHEME

AEERBAZFLEMELNTEMHE
RFE - THRRANME R R EIRFEME T Z
RIEHTIK

166  Gemdale Properties and Investment Corporation Limited &7 & £ E B R A 7



Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

17.

[ |
31 December 2013

—E—=F+-_A=+—H

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 17. BEDPWE
Group
KEE
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
+=—H=+-—H hB=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
(Restated)
(&%)
Land use rights (Note) + i FE (B3 5,632,836 1,294,930
Development costs AN 2,950,332 1,089,309
Net carrying amount at the end of the R FERZ 8,583,168 2,384,239
financial period/year RENFE
Note: The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid Wit - KEBRLMEFES B 15FETAEE
operating lease payments. All land is situated in the PRC B9z Mt o a1+ 5 A B
and held under leases of over 50 years. FF AL EBAE05F ©
The movements of properties under development during B/ FRERPDEZSEBNOT
the period/year are as follows:
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—fF
+=—HA=+-—H hBA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
(Restated)
(E7)
Net carrying amount at the beginning RETBERRE, FEYZ 2,384,239 1,862,115
of the financial period/year REFE
Additions BN 6,219,219 546,359
Transfer to properties held for sale BAFLEDE (109,271) -
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 8) T E AR B (f75E8) - (15,205)
Provision written back (Note 6) BEOE (Hite) 34,112 -
Exchange realignment PE 34, %8 54,869 (9,030)
Net carrying amount at the end of the RN BERE EEXRZ 8,583,168 2.384,239
financial period/year BREDFE
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—=

17.

18.

19.

—=F+ZA=+—H

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (continued) 17.

Additions to properties under development included
interest expense of HK$109,155,000 (Year ended 30
September 2012: HK$27,210,000) (Note 7) that was
incurred and capitalised during the period.

At 31 December 2013, no properties under development
of the Group (30 September 2012: HK$1,063,651,000)
were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted
to the Group (Notes 31 and 36).

PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITIONS OF LAND 18.
USE RIGHTS

The balance represents the deposits paid for acquisitions
of land use rights for parcels of land in Mainland China
at public land auctions. The carrying amounts of the
prepayments approximate to their fair values.

BRTUE ()

BRPYEZIEABIEHANELENDENRN
b2 F B 5 X 497 109,155,000 (&
EZE-—HFAA=TRHILEE: BEK
27,210,0007T) (Fiz£7) °

RZEBE—=F+-A=+—H AEBEL
BERPYE (ZE—Z-FNA=1TH:
BREF (B A5 %1,063,651,000 2 & T
BRAYE) B TIEE  NWESRAER
Bz —RRITELE (MI7E31X%36) °

W s £ 3t 6F A A 2 RS IR

ERERAFLIHNES ERBEUNTE
REEM IR 2 £ 38 AT N 2 1R E - %
FRNRREEREEAFERS

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. RMBRAAZRE
Company
¥iN/NE|
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
== -4
+=B=+—H hA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRG  HERAE - -
Due from subsidiaries NG R e 5,716,670 3,687,831
5,716,670 3,687,831
Less: Provision for impairment B ORE RS (1,490,377) (2,132,875)
4,226,293 1,554,956
Due to subsidiaries JENF B A RFRIA (7,902) (34,016)
4,218,391 1,520,940

The amounts due from and to subsidiaries included
in the Company’s current assets and current
liabilities of HK$4,226,293,000 (30 September 2012:
HK$1,554,956,000) and HK$7,902,000 (30 September
2012: HK$34,016,000) respectively, are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

5'J)\EZKL\ T//lb@ﬁé&mb@]ﬁ E:-E\Z

& W K B A BT B R A 3K =
42262930007c(—f——¢j1 =
+ B : B #1,554,956,0007C) N B #

7,902,0007‘1 (Z2——FhA=+8:#
#34,016,0007T) * B AEEE - T &
MEEFEERE -
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19.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Nominal value of
issued and fully

31 December 2013 .
—E—=F+-_A=+—H

RHBLARZRE (&)
TEMBRRZFBOT

Place of paid up ordinary
incorporation/ capital/registered
registration and share capital  Percentage of equity interest
business BRTRAR  attributable to the Company
Name of subsidiaries HMR/ B LERES/FR FAFEL Principal activities
MELRER RExH EXZEE RERDL TEER
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
= -
t=B=t-A NA=TH
Indirectly held by the Company:
BRAXLTRE
Beijing Gang Lu Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China United States dollars 100 100  Property development
Co., Ltd. (i) (ii) wE /AR ("US$”) 22,500,000 in Mainland China
ERAREHEREARAR() (i) 22,500,000t (%)) RAERENZER
Shanghai Zhongjun Real Estate PRC/Mainland China Renminbi (“RMB”) 54.85 54.85  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (1) (ii) wE/REAR 1,000,000,000 in Mainland China
LERERHEREERA) (i) (30 September 2012; RAEAENZERE
RMB750,000,000)
AR1,000,000,0007
(ZE-Z$MA=TR:
AR ¥750,000,0007)
Vision Century Administration Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 100 100 Management
) 7%500,0007 consultancy services
EEBHRE
Vision Century Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China US$10,000,000 100 100 Property development
(Dalian) Co., Ltd. (i) (i) hE /AR 10,000,000% 7T in Mainland China
RAEHERE (KE) BRAA (i) RPBAENSER
Vision Huaging (Beijing) Development PRC/Mainland China RMB130,000,000 60 60 Business park
Co. Ltd. (i) (i) HE/PEARE AR%130,000,0007T development and

RHEE (bR) SEERBROF() (i)
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19.
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. RHEBARZKRE (&)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEWBATZFBET : (&)
(continued)
Nominal value of
issued and fully
Place of paid up ordinary
incorporation/ capital/registered
registration and share capital  Percentage of equity interest
business BETRME  attributable to the Company
Name of subsidiaries HRRY B0 LERS/FR KAFEL Principal activities
MEARER REXE A2 REBAL TTER
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
—E-ZF -
TZA=1-A NA=TH
Indirectly held by the Company: (continued)
BREXLTRE: (£
Vision Property (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (i) (ii) PRC/Mainland China RMB259,069, 144 100 100 Property development
BATE (RY) BRAT) (i) hE/HEXAE (30 September 2012: in Mainland China
RMB223,000,000) RPBAENSER
AR 250,069, 1447C
(Z2-—FAA=TR:
AR%203,000,0007T)
Vision (Shenzhen) Business Park PRC/Mainland China RMB309,415,440 100 100 Business park
Co., Ltd. (i) (ii) TE/REARE ARH309,415 4407 development and
BT RREAR AR (i) investment
in Mainland China
ReEAEGEE
ERRRE
Dalian Huiquan Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100 - Property development
Company Limited* (i) (i VLN AK10,000,0007 in Mainland China
REEFEHEREERAA) (i) RAERENEEE
Shenyang Gemdale Binhe Real Estate PRC/Mainland China HK$360,000,000 51 - Property development
Company Limited® (i) ii) PE/REARE 71360,000,007T in Mainland China
EERMETNRHEE ZARRA (i) REERENELE
Shenyang Gemdale Huacheng Property PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100 - Property development
Company Limited* (i) (i) VLN AEE10,000,0007 in Mainland China
EERNENEEERAA() (i) REERENEEE
Shenyang Gemdale Yuefeng Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100 - Property development
Development Company Limited* (i) (ii BE/hEKE AR#10,000,0007 in Mainland China
EE e EERERZARRA) (i) RPEXENZER
Xi'an Zhujia Property Company Limited" (i) (iii)  PRC/Mainland China US$80,000,000 51 - Property development
BREREFERAA) (i) SN 80,000,000% T in Mainland China
RPERENZER
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19.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

19.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

[ |
31 December 2013
—E—=F+-_A=+—H

RMBLARZRE (&)
TEMBERRZFHBENT : ()

(continued)
Nominal value of
issued and fully
Place of paid up ordinary
incorporation/ capital/registered
registration and share capital  Percentage of equity interest
business BEATRAR  attributable to the Company
Name of subsidiaries SRR/ B LERA/H FAFEL Principal activities
WEARER RERBH BXeEE RERDL TEER
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
—E-Zf T
t=B=+-H NA=TH
Indirectly held by the Company: (continued)
BRAFLNEE: (£)
Xi'an Zhutai Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China US$150,000,000 100 - Property development
Company Limited* (i) (ii) PE/hEAE 150,000,000% 7T in Mainland China
RRERERERERRAR) (i) NGEWNE2E S5
Xi'an Zhutian Property Company Limited* (i) (i) ~ PRC/Mainland China US$90,000,000 100 - Property development
AREREZARDA) (i) B/ hEAE 90,000,000 7 in Mainland China

*

For identification purpose only

Notes:

(i) Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong, or another

member firm of the Ernst & Young global network

(ii) Wholly foreign-owned enterprise

(iii) Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise

The above table listed the subsidiaries of the Company

which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected

the results for the period/year or formed a substantial

portion of the net assets of the Group. Details of other

subsidiaries had not been included as, in the opinion of

the directors, they did not have any material impact on

these financial statements.

ReEARNELE
* EHEE
Bzt -

(i) FEh BB 2K @ ATV F TS TR 2K
B AT ENE T £ BATHE K BT

(i)  EEELE
(i)  PIHEEEELE

EERA ERINFTHAREERAH
B,/ FEXEREEYEIBRAERE
EFEIERNZARFMNBAR - EF
RE - BEHINEMHBRRZFE D
AR EENEAREMBHRRL B[S

B2 488
N2
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED 20. RHEFEHERRE
ENTITIES
Group
ARE
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
—E-=f —T-C_F
T=HET=E HA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Share of net assets B EEFE 105,351 -
Particulars of the Group’s jointly-controlled entities are AEE 7 HEHEHIEREFBOT ¢
as follows:
Place of incorporation/ Percentage of
registration and ARl
business Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name of jointly-controlled entities ~ FEMARYL/ %5 Registered share capital interest power  sharing activities
REEHERER REEHY EREAZEE Frg REE  FBIE IEER
Beijing Jinshui Real Estate PRC/Mainland China  RMB50,000,000 50 50 50  Property development
Development Company Limited” S /RE AR AR50,000,0007 in Mainland China
FREKEHEREERAR) RAEAENELE
Ningbo Langyue Real Estate PRC/Mainland China  RMB100,000,000 50 50 50  Property development
Development Company Limited* ~ # & /®REAE AR 100,000,000 in Mainland China
ERMN R EERARAA RPBAENSER
Tianjin Heshi Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China  RMB50,000,000 50 50 50  Property development
Company Limited* VLN AR50,000,0007 in Mainland China
REBOEHEREERAA) RPBAENSER
*  For identification purpose only * (EHREF
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20.
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INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED 20.
ENTITIES (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

REAREZFERRERE (&)

TREAANEEARZENERZMEEM

information of the Group’s jointly-controlled entities: BE
Group
REH
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E—_F
+=-A=+-A8 NA=+E
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Share of assets and liabilities of FE(R L EE S B 88
jointly-controlled entities: BEREE:
Non-current assets FERBEE 5,138 -
Current assets MENEE 4,698,885 -
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (417,197) -
Current liabilities mEBE (4,181,475) -
Net assets BERE 105,351 -
Period ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
BE-Z-=F ®BE_T—_F
+=A=+—-H HAE=+H
1HEARS IFFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Share of results of jointly-controlled FEAE LR B 2
entities: E g
Revenue and other income I A R B A 78 -
Total expenses Feliiba (12,768) -
Tax T8 2,809 -
Loss for the period/year HAR S FEEE (9,881) -
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21.

22.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 21. AHEESRRE
INVESTMENT
Group
rEH
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
—2-=fF —T=F
+=-A=+—H NA=+H
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BETIT
Unlisted equity investment JEETHRR R A 8,822 8,822
At 31 December 2013, the Group’s unlisted equity RZE—=F+ZA=+—8 x&£EKk
investment with a carrying amount of HK$8,822,000 {8 &5 18,822,000 (ZE—=F LA
(30 September 2012: HK$8,822,000) was stated at cost =+8 : #%8,822,0005T) Z 3F L pkiE
less impairment. BE TR A E BRI E T 5 B o
HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENT 22. BHZEIHKRE
Group
rEH
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
—E-=F —E-F
+=-A=+—AH NA=+H
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BETIT
Unlisted investment FELTEE 155,098 -
At 31 December 2013, held-to-maturity investment of the RZF-—=FF+ZA=1t—0 AKEF
Group represents a capital protected financial product ZF| B A 5 E (B /&357120,000,000 (48
with a nominal value of US$20,000,000 (equivalent to F KA 155,098,0007T) Z R A & Bl

approximately HK$155,098,000) with a maturity date of
7 February 2014. The carrying amount of the investment
approximates to its fair value.

Em JHESA-ZT-—NFE_AtH-Z
BREZEMERARERE
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TRADE RECEIVABLES EWE 5 R
Group
rEE
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F
+=H=+-—H NA=+A
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Trade receivables EUE ZR% 9,736 4,959
Impairment A (487) (13)
9,249 4,946

Trade receivables represent sale proceeds in respect of
sold properties and rental receivables. Sale proceeds in
respect of sold properties are payable by the purchasers
pursuant to the terms of the sale and purchase
agreements. Rental receivables are billed in advance and
are payable by tenants upon receipts of billings within an
average credit term of one month.

Under normal circumstances, the Group does not grant
credit terms to its customers. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly
reviewed by management. In view of the aforementioned
and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to
a certain number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing and unsecured.

EWE SERFIEE L EMR ZHERTRK
REKEE - CHEMEZHEMBZHIZ
BEEMZ ZGHRBEET XN - BREET)
BRABHERE  HERKRIKRERIN
FHEEMA—EA -

EEEBAT AEEITERERFRE
EEH - REEE R 2 U GRIA R R
BN REEREEERR - IR
HEmEERBFLE SRR - ER LR
ARAEEZEREEZERF S RET
REF HAKEYEAEEFT ZEER
o ARE I E L HRE 5 RS RR
EEAERARNEEERTAE - BRES
AR IR B R B 2 FROR
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the
reporting date, based on the invoice date and net of
provisions, is as follows:

23. FEWEBZERF (Z)

GRER2EBRE SRR (AERAH
RE) RRE B ZREDHTIOT

Group
rEE
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
—B-=F —ET——F
+=ZA=+—H hnA=+AH
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Within 1 month —fEAZA 9,058 4,946
1 to 3 months —2={@A 95 -
Over 3 months AR E 96 -
9,249 4,946

The movements in provision for impairment of trade

RAERE FEREESRFIRERREZ

receivables during the period/year are as follows: BENR

Group

rEH
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
+=A=+-—8 NAZ=+E
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT
At the beginning of the financial period/year R EfEEARS ~ EE 1) 13 13
Impairment recognised (Note 6) ERERRE (fi76) 496 -
Impairment reversed (Note 6) BEERE (fit6) (13) -
Exchange realignment b i (9) -
At the end of the financial period/year RETERERE TR 487 13
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. EWEBERXR (&)
Included in the above provision for impairment of trade L EWE ZERERREREREREE
receivables is a provision for individually impaired AT BRE B &8 %487,000 (T — —F
trade receivables of HK$487,000 (30 September 2012: NA=+8 : &¥13,0007T) 2 @ERIE R
HK$13,000) with a carrying amount before provision of BEREWKE ZERMIEL 2 REBEBBE
HK$487,000 (30 September 2012: HK$13,000). 487,000t (ZE——FEAA=+H: &
#13,0007T) °
The individually impaired trade receivables, as of AEBERFESIRNENRCEER T
30 September 2012, related to customers that were ——FAA=+THZERNRERKE R
experiencing delinquency in interest or principal REWE - BEBEREC RN AHE2H
payments, were recovered and the provision for #[E o
impairment was fully reversed in the current period.
The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not WRRARE MRS R EEIRRE BKE
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is SERZERAITAT -
as follows:
Group
rEH
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
—B—-=F —ET——F
+=—H=+-—H hA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Neither past due nor impaired KRR ARG RE 5,429 4,946
Less than 3 months past due BHLR =18 A 3,724 -
More than 3 months past due BHAZHN=8A 96 -
9,249 4,946

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large numbers of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

RBP R REREZBRBERTS RE T
REF  REFEPIHYER R

BEERERE BEERFR I EAEEE
RFFETHIZRBIUEP - RIEBE
EEAZH N EAREERIDBR SR EHK
Yeml - EREZAR & E AR E LR E R o
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24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24, FEANFRIE - ZeRHMERERR
RECEIVABLES
Group Company
N 3 VYN

31 December 30 September 31 December 30 September

2013 2012 2013 2012

—E-=f —T-CZF —E-=fF —E——F

+=A=t-H NA=tH +=A=t-H NA=+H

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

BT BETFT BT T BETT

(Restated)
(E7)

Other receivables H it B U ER R 66,682 20,427 2,721 -

Less: Impairment B RE (196) (17,513) (136) -

Other receivables, net HiEUERER - 55 66,486 2,914 2,585 -

Deposits e 18,982 1,244 8,670 -

Prepayments ENFE 24,675 7,223 1,177 1,535

Prepaid taxes and BB R INE 112,012 157 - -

surcharges (Note) (Hiiz)

Others Hiy 765 3,389 36 1,061

222,920 14,927 12,468 2,596

Non-current portion FERNERER 1D (8,514) (1,847) (8,514) -

Current portion included in BEFE 2R 214,406 13,080 3,954 2,596

At ERERRZ
SVERER D

prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Note: Amounts mainly represent business tax, other taxes and
surcharges prepaid for the sales deposit received from
the pre-sale of properties in the PRC.
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24.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

None of the deposits was either past due or
impaired. The provision for impairment relates to
other receivables. The movements in provision for
impairment of other receivables during the period/
year are as follows:

24.

(a)

[ |
31 December 2013
—E—=F+-_A=+—H

ANNE  RERABERERR (&)

Re W AREEIRERE o ZRER
WEEMBWEESRER - B F
A EL At JE WS BR FORUE B 2 B Eh an
T

Group Company
x5E NG|
31 December 30 September 31 December 30 September
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E-CF —E-=F —“E——F
T=ZB=+-H NA=+H +=A=t+-H NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BT
(Restated)
(E5)
At the beginning of the financial REEER 17,513 19,901 - -
period/year FET
Impairment recognised (Note 6) B REZNIME (41316) 900 17,404 136 -
Impairment reversed (Note 6) ERERE (M6 (17,405) (74) - -
Amounts written off as uncollectible AT YA 458 - (19,827) - -
Exchange realignment BB i, 5% (812) 109 - -
At the end of the financial REHEE,/ FER 196 17,513 136 -

period/year

Included in the above provisions for impairment of
other receivables of the Group and the Company
are provisions for individually impaired other
receivables of HK$196,000 and HK$136,000,
respectively (30 September 2012: HK$17,513,000
and Nil respectively) with carrying amounts
before provision of HK$196,000 and HK$136,000
respectively (30 September 2012: HK$17,513,000
and Nil respectively). The individually impaired
other receivables of the Group as of 30 September
2012 related to an other receivable from a supplier
which had a dispute with the Group. During the
current period, the Group arrived at an agreement
with the supplier and accordingly, the provision for
impairment was fully reversed.

The Group and the Company do not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancement over their
other receivable balances.

FHMAEE RARRGF ZEMRE UK
ERREREeERBEIERRD
85 Bl A 7 #196,0007T & i 45
136,000t (ZE—=—F L A=+
B : % 5l A% ®17,513,0007T &
&) AR H b U BR KT E R 2
el (B B 18 0 Bl 5 78 #5196,0000T &
75 136,000 (ZE—Z—F LA
=+H8: 25 AE%17,513,0007T
FE) - RZFE——FhLA=+H
R E E B IR IRE 2 E b R IR
RIEREAREBEFZZHER
ZHMERRR - ARAEREEZ
HER N AR ER R - AT
ZRERED 2 HEE -

AREBERANRBWEL % FEHME
WER R A AR Rk H
EEEHRTA -

Annual Report 2012/13 £ 179



Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

[ |
31 December 2013
—E—=F+=-A=+—H

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)  The aged analysis of the other receivables after
provision that were not considered to be impaired

24.

ANNE  RERAEBERERR (&)

(b) RERSBEZETRBEEEMBE
WERSRZ Bkl D AT AT

is as follows:
Group Company
bS] N
31 December 30 September 31 December 30 September
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —ZT——F —E-=F —ET—-F
+=A=t+-H NA=+THB +=ZRA=t-H hA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BB BETT BT
(Restated)
(E5)
Less than 1 month past due BEOR—EA 1,168 2,253 = -
2 to 3 months past due AEME=EAR - 434 - -
Over 3 months past due BE=@EAN L 65,318 207 2,585 -
66,486 2914 2,585 -

None of the above assets is impaired. The Group

and the Company do not hold any collateral or

other credit enhancement over these balances. The

financial assets included in the above balances

relate to receivables for which there was no recent

history of default.

FREESERE -  ARERARQ
ERZ: I A e RN LR il
SHEHMEEERTA - A Ll
B EMEEY RIS EHERT
82 YRR
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25.

26.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
Forward currency contracts — cash flow hedges

For the year ended 30 September 2012, three forward
currency contracts designated as hedges were entered
into in respect of the future payment of land premium for
a PRC project. A net gain of HK$2,462,000 was credited
to the hedging reserves for the year ended 30 September
2012.

DEPOSITS, BANK AND CASH BALANCES

25.

31 December 2013 .
—E—=F+-_A=+—H

TTEEMIA
BEHMEREN - BEREYH

HE_T-——"FAA=1TBHILFE %37
T=MEERRKB AL SHERE
THMEETE R EREBED - Wat

SREE B2 462,000t AHE — T —
“FNAZTHIEFEZERRER -

26. ERSRIOTERERESER

Group Company
x5E VYN
31 December 30 September 31 December 30 September
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=f —E—CF —E-=fF —E—ZF
+=A=+-H AA=+HE +=A=+-H NE=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT BT T BT
(Restated)
(E5)
Cash and bank balances ReRfTHEH 1,646,307 546,893 8,546 5,354
Structured deposits (Note a) ERIETED (Hita) - 506,190 = -
Time deposits (Note b) EHER (Wizb) 211,366 484,793 48,864 383,693
1,857,673 1,537,876 57,410 389,047
Less: Restricted cash (Note ¢) W RIBERE (Hite) (42,237) (74) = -
1,815,436 1,537,802 57,410 389,047
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26.

DEPOSITS, BANK AND CASH BALANCES
(continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Full principal amounts of structured deposits would
be received on the maturity date. Interest income
earned is subject to US London Interbank Offered
Rate (“LIBOR”) in accordance with the terms of the
contracts entered into with certain banks.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates
based on daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits
are made for varying periods of between one day
and thirteen months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest
at the respective time deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

As at 31 December 2013, the amount included
guarantee deposits amounting to approximately
HK$42,160,000 placed with designated bank
accounts for the construction projects undertaken
by certain property development companies of the
Group.

At the end of the reporting period, the deposits,
bank and cash balances of the Group denominated
in RMB amounted to HK$1,721,484,000 (30
September 2012 (restated): HK$624,522,000). The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies;
however, under
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration

of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign

Mainland China’s Foreign

Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

26.

B

Wit -

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
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27.

ISSUED CAPITAL

(a)

Authorised and issued capital

[ |
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27. BERITRE

(a)

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of issued capital of the Group is
set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s
issued capital between the beginning and the end

of the period are set out below:

EEREBITRA
AEBDBEITRAZ MR ARG
BeHEHINFARmEYRK
A e ARA] D BITRARY LR
ZEBHEIWNT

Company
AT
Number of Share
shares capital
R EE [N
HK$’000
BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: T mikgkE®0.107T -
Authorised: EE
At 1 October 2011 and RZE—F+A—HK 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
30 September 2012 “Z-—FNA=+H
Increase in authorised capital (i) AT R () 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
At 31 December 2013 N-ZE—=F+=-A=+—H 20,000,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAE:
At 1 October 2011 n-E——F+H—H 6,849,401,580 684,940
Issue of new shares on exercise TEEREREIT L 14,735,000 1,474
of share options (ii) FTRR (i)
At 30 September 2012 RZE—ZFNA=+H 6,864,136,580 686,414
Issue of new shares on exercise TIEBREmET 3,238,318 323
of share options (ii) ¥R (i)
Issue of new shares on placement (iii) Bt & A% (i) 900,000,000 90,000
Issue of new shares for PERIESI T 2 EBA 1,325,726,134 132,573
business combination under MmE4T 2 5 I%AR (iv)
common control (iv)
At 31 December 2013 NZE—=F+=-A=1+—H 9,093,101,032 909,310
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27.

ISSUED CAPITAL (continued)

(a)

Authorised and issued capital (continued)

(i)

(if)

(iiif)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed
by shareholders of the Company on 15
May 2013, the authorised share capital
of the Company was increased from
HK$1,000,000,000 to HK$2,000,000,000 by
creation of 10,000,000,000 additional shares
of HK$0.10 each, ranking pari passu in all
respects with the existing shares of the
Company.

The subscription rights attaching to
3,238,318 (Year ended 30 September 2012:
14,735,000) share options were exercised
at the subscription prices ranging from
HK$0.1547 to HK$0.1580 (Year ended 30
September 2012: HK$0.1000 to HK$0.2050)
per share, resulting in the issue of
3,238,318 (Year ended 30 September 2012:
14,735,000) shares of HK$0.10 each for a
total cash consideration before expenses,
of HK$506,000 (Year ended 30 September
2012: HK$2,009,000).

On 28 January 2013, the Company, Famous
and Standard Chartered Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited (as Placing Agent) entered
into a placing and subscription agreement
pursuant to which the Placing Agent agreed
to place 900,000,000 shares on behalf of
Famous at a price of HK$0.78 per share
and Famous also agreed to subscribe for
the same number of shares to be issued
by the Company at the same price (the
“Subscription”). The Subscription raising
a total of net proceeds of HK$691,617,000
was completed on 4 February 2013.

27.

BRITRE (&)
EERBRITRA (4)

(a)
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(i)

(iii)

AAFBER-ZT—=F
AFA+tHHEBA—EBILE
REBER FBEBEIE M
10,000,000,0000/% & f% &
010 2 B o - BAE AN
NABZIETERA - BB
1,000,000,0007T 1& = # #
2,000,000,0007T © T 1 i%
MERBRRABBRMNDEST
AEZERSER -

WMEENRERHZ
3,238,318ty (Bi =2 = T —
“FEAAZTHIEFE:
14,735,00010) B HEE %
REE TR B K01547T
ZH 01580 (HEZ_F
——FAA=ZFTHIEE:
& I% 75 #0.10007T & 76 ¥
0.20507T) #E/T{F + W HL ik
& 3 173,238,318/ (& =
—E-——FARA=+HItHF
€ : 14,735,0000%) & i
o102 &1n - IR
BCRMBRBEERZR) ©
7 506,000 (B E =T
——FAA=THIFE:
2 ,009,0007T) °

RZE—=F—AF=_+N
B ARF - BEREITE
% (B8) BRAR (EAR
ERE) FTURE RRERH
B EERERER
REEBUSRAE0.787TH
{E 1% B2 & 2900,000,000/%
B - BB IRE B AR RE
BRBARRETZ AR
EBRM((RBEEE]) - R
BEHEONRZ-_Z—=F_A
MU EER « BRFERIEF
5875 #691,617,0007T °



Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

27.

ISSUED CAPITAL (continued)

(a)

(b)

Authorised and issued capital (continued)

(iv)  Upon the completion of the Acquisition on
28 October 2013, 1,325,726,134 new shares
of the Company were issued to Famous, the
Vendor, as consideration (Note 2.1).

Share option schemes

On 20 May 2003, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (“Share Option Scheme 2003")
which had a term of 10 years from its adoption
date and expired on 20 May 2013. No further
options can be offered under the Share Option
Scheme 2003 but its provisions in respect of any
options granted thereunder prior to its expiration
but remained unexercised as at 31 December 2013
will remain in full force and effective. On 15 May
2013, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (“Share Option Scheme 2013”) which has
a term of 10 years from its adoption date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted must not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
adoption of the schemes. The offer of a grant may be
accepted upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 per acceptance. The exercise period of
the share options granted is determinable by the
board of directors of the Company (the “Board”),
and commences on a specified date and ends on a
date which is not later than 10 years from the date of
grant of the share options. The exercise price will be
determined by the Board, but shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must be
a trading day; (i) the average of the closing prices of
the Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Company'’s share.

[ |
31 December 2013
—E—=F+-_A=+—H

EBITRAE (2)

(a)

(b)

EERCBITRE (7)

(ivy, MZZE—=F+A=+N
HERKEZ B A2
AImEE BRI E ) BT
1,325,726, 13408 AN R &) #7 A%
MERRE (Mizk2.1) o

B ESHE

R-ZEZE=FRAA_+TH ARA
R —BREsE ([ —TT=F8K
PRt E)]) - mERA A R+
FERY WERZT—=FHAZ
THEHm - BEEMERENRE
T -FREREIERD - IE
HREmATBEEREER - —=
FHt_A=t—ANARTEZE
IEE R - BRI A+ R K
BMA-R-_E—Z=FRA+HAE "
RRR)RA—FBAEE ([ =F
—ZFREREE ) mERMAA
HIERH AR -

A AR 2 AR BB &
RASBBAARNRRARMTEE B
BEITRAR Z10% T & FE A
EEMEERASNBEITES
SHBRNERE - BHHBEREZITE
HBEARARESg ([EFg]) B
T BETHBARBRERIEZET
SHRBRHERES BB +F -
BhEsZTHERESSETE K
ZEBTRERTINESEFR &S
E()VRLBEREEZER (BWEAAXR
S8) ARRRMHRBEZMELZ
H¥&MmolcmE : (NEERT
BEREBHAERZS B ARR
AR 0 PO X P EE 2 HRER AT 2
SEHUTHE - R(ii) AR B 5

HE -
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27. ISSUED CAPITAL (continued)

27. BRITRAX (&)

(b)  Share option schemes (continued) (b) BREE (E)
(i) Movements (i) 4
Movements in the number of share options B FREARITERERE S
outstanding and their related weighted BB R E 2 AT
average exercise prices during the period/ TEECEESHET
year are as follows:
Period from
1 October 2012 to
31 December 2013 Year ended
H-Z-—%t+A-H 30 September 2012
E-E-=Zf+ZR HE-Z2——%
=t—ALEHE NA=THLEFE
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
price  Number of price Number of
per share share per share share
SR meE options Sz options
TATKEE BREHE THOOHEE  BREHE
HK$ HK$
BT BET
At the beginning of the REBEE / EE) 0.1836 107,729,130 0.1802 108,194,182
financial period/year
Granted R 0.7317 619,428,000 0.1656 17,488,000
Exercised K 0.1564  (3,238,318) 0.1363 (14,735,000)
Cancelled (Note (i) I (Bra) 0.1844 (104,490,812) - -
Lapsed ES - - 0.1872  (3,218,052)
At the end of the RETBERE/ FER 0.7317 619,428,000 0.1836 107,729,130

financial period/year
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27.

ISSUED CAPITAL (continued)

(b)

Share option schemes (continued)

(i)

Movements (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, out
of the 619,428,000 (30 September 2012:
107,729,130) outstanding options, no share
options (30 September 2012: 77,776,130)
were exercisable.

Cancellation

Subsequent to the acquisition of
approximately 56.05% of the ordinary
shares of the Company by Famous, an
unconditional mandatory general offer was
made by Famous to the then holders of
outstanding options issued by the Company
on 29 October 2012 pursuant to Rules
26.1 and 13.5 of the Hong Kong Code on
Takeovers and Mergers at a consideration of
HK$0.43 less the exercise price of each of
the respective share options for cancellation
of the outstanding options.

The offer was closed on 19 November 2012
and the option holders have accepted the
offer and all the 104,490,812 outstanding
share options as of that date were
cancelled. The share-based compensation
expenses of the unvested share options
amounting to HK$878,000 were recognised
immediately to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, and the corresponding
share-based compensation reserves
balance of HK$13,368,000 was transferred
to the retained profits during the current
period.

[ |
31 December 2013
—E—=F+-_A=+—H

EBITRA ()

BRERTE (F)

(i)

28 (4)

NI - - B N 5
619,428,000 (= =
——® WA=+ 8:
107,729,13013) & & 17 &
ZHERES - WEAITE
i RAITE 2 BARRE (=
T-——_FNALH=+H:
77,776,1301%) °

At

ROEE W E AR QAL
56.05%.2 & @R 1D & -
BIEBBWERE HTAE
26. 11 M 13,515« IBIEE
N_ZE——F+H=+NA
MANBERFEEEHETE
AT 2 BIRE 21 5B A
R I A6 58 1 1 B TED B
ZH) - DIRE 0430 &
EEBRE SO BRET
FEIRETESRITEZ
FEIRHE -

ZEHON-_T——F+—A
THhEER  BREZFEA
EBRZELN  MAAERZA
K 1T 2104,490,81217 B8
BREDCETH AEBEE
EZBROM RSB
878,000t 2. 1A 7~ HA ] Bl B¢
NMrEBmEAPER - MiE
HEZBRNMSFEEHRER
#13,368,000 074 4~ Hi e 85
TREBEF -
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27. ISSUED CAPITAL (continued) 27.

(b) Share option schemes (continued)
(ili)  Exercise prices and vesting schedule

The exercise prices and exercise periods
of the share options outstanding as at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

EBITRA ()
(b) HBRESE (&)
TEEREBEEX

R & BIR 5 R TR B A AR
ZITEERITERMT

(iif)

31 December 2013

30 September 2012

—E-=%+ZA=t+-H —Z-_FAAR=TH
Exercise Exercise

price Number of price Number of
TEE share 11#E share
Date of grant  Exercise period (Notes) HK$ options HK$ options
=R THE8 (Hrat) B BRERE B BREHE
31/12/2003 31/12/2004 - 30/12/2013 - - 0.1580 8,641,737
31/12/2004 31/12/2005 - 30/12/2014 - - 0.1547 9,716,280
30/12/2005 30/12/2006 — 29/12/2015 - - 0.1343 9,608,113
13/11/2006 13/11/2007 - 12/11/2016 - - 0.1670 11,900,000
09/11/2007 09/11/2008 - 08/11/2017 - - 0.3370 15,550,000
14/11/2008 14/11/2009 - 13/11/2018 - - 0.1000 9,250,000
13/11/2009 13/11/2010 - 12/11/2019 - - 0.1550 13,425,000
12/11/2010 12/11/2011 = 11/11/2020 - - 0.2050 12,150,000
11/11/2011 11/11/2012 - 10/11/2021 - - 0.1656 17,488,000
07/01/2013 07/01/2014 - 06/01/2023 0.5500 154,230,000 - -
20/05/2013 20/05/2014 - 19/05/2023 0.7920 465,198,000 - -
619,428,000 107,729,130
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27.

ISSUED CAPITAL (continued)

(b)

Share option schemes (continued)

(iiif)

Exercise prices and vesting schedule

(continued)

Notes:

Vesting schedule for share options granted on

31 December 2003

— =
—=

27. BRITRAX (&)

[ |
31 December 2013

=F+_-_A=1+—H

(b) EBRRESE (Z)
(i)  {TEEERRBEEX ()

R=ZZBZE=ZF+=ZH=+—8H
RzBEREZRERER

Percentage of
shares over
which a share
option is
exercisable
ATEBRE
(i02253:37)
ZEDH

%

Before the first anniversary of the date of grant
On or after the first but before the second

anniversary of the date of grant

On or after the second but before the third

anniversary of the date of grant

On or after the third but before the fourth

anniversary of the date of grant

On or after the fourth anniversary of the date of grant

REAH 2z —BFA
RHBHz —BF R RENBFR

RHBHMBFR RE=ZBFA

REAHZ =BF A2 R EBNASH

REABHZ NBFH 2%

0
25

25

25

25

Vesting schedule for share options granted

after 31 December 2003

R-ZEE=%+=-A=+—H
BRECERECEBREX

Percentage of
shares over
which a share
option is
exercisable
AT EBRE
B RRG
2B

%

Before the first anniversary of the date of grant
On or after the first but before the second

anniversary of the date of grant

On or after the second but before the third

anniversary of the date of grant

On or after the third anniversary of the date of grant

REAHZ —RAEA
REAMZ —RER 2R ERBER

REAMZMBEFR 2 REZBER

REBHZZEFR %

40

30

30
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27. ISSUED CAPITAL (continued)

(b) Share option schemes (continued)

(iii)

Exercise prices and vesting schedule
(continued)

In relation to the share options, if the eligible
participant, during any of the periods
specified above, exercises the share
options for such number of shares which, in
aggregate, represent less than the number
of shares for which the eligible participant
may exercise in respect of such period, the
balance of the shares comprised that the
eligible participant could have exercised
(but did not exercise) in that period shall be
carried forward and added to the number of
shares which the eligible participant may
exercise in the next succeeding period or
periods.

27.

BBITRAK (&)
BBRREE ()

(b)
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27.

ISSUED CAPITAL (continued)

(b)

Share option schemes (continued)

(iv)

Valuation of options granted during the

period

The valuation of options granted during the
period was based on the binominal model,
taking into account of the following inputs

[ |
31 December 2013
—E—=F+-_A=+—H

27. BRITRAX (&)
(b) EBRRESE (Z)
(iv)  ZNHARSI% 4 B R 2 (R 1E

REIRR 2 B JIAR I
“IEAHMEREAETRE
Wit AAT &8 AERER

to that model: A
154,230,000 465,198,000
options options
granted on granted on
7 January 20 May
2013 2013
—B—=% —E—=%
—AtH AA=+H
rHZ BHZ
154,230,000/ 465,198,0001%
B BB
Volatility of the Company’s share price N2 R IR (B & IE 39.8% 48.6%
Expected dividend yield TE EAAR B s R 4% 4%
Expected employee exit rate TEHAE TEER X
— Directors —¥=% 14.2% 16.7%
— Senior management -5EET 14.2% 16.7%
Risk free rate oo [ B 1) 2 0.756% 1.093%
Exercise multiple TR EE
— Directors — &= 2.01 2.01
- Senior management — =N EEE 1.66 1.66

Share-based compensation expenses of
HK$61,593,000 (Year ended 30 September
2012: HK$1,597,000) arising from options
vested during the period, together with
the HK$878,000 arising from the unvested
the period

options cancelled during

(Note (ii)) were charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the period.

HNGBEREEE ZRHD
B < 7 = 8 # 61,593,000
(BE-_Z—=—FHLA=+
HI1EFE % %1,597,000
) EREAZHEZ K
GEEREEE RS
B & B X /& #878,0007T
(MI=E(zi) - EREBARZERE
BmR A o

Annual Report 2012/13 38 {191



Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

[ |
31 December 2013
—EF—=F+=-A=+—H

28. RESERVES 28. f#fE
Group REH
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements AEEZHBSERARAHRAK E—F
therein for the current period and the prior year are B2 BEHINNRFHRFELEA EEHEBIH LR
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in AREREEE o
equity on pages 88 to 89 of the annual report.
The merger reserves of the Group represent the REES OB ARREESS O P
differences between the nominal value of the aggregate BB AR 2 IR BEEE AR E H B
share capital of subsidiaries acquired over the nominal BMEARMBITRACEBECERE - 5F
value of the share capital of the Company issued in BEHAR M FRENFE2.1
exchange pursuant to the business combination taken
place in the current period, as detailed in note 2.1 to the
financial statements.
Company ARF
Retained
Share Capital  Share-based profits/
premium  Contributed  redemption  compensation (accumulated Proposed
account surplus reserves reserves losses) final dividend Total
RE%R/
kit RER B\By GRERGE ROMEEE (2EER)  BRRMRE an
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI BTn  BBTn
At 1 October 2012 RZF-CF 42,550 642,378 196 13,409 (194,163) - 504,370
+A-H
Issue of new shares on exercise {1 BREMETT 1,102 - - (919) - - 18
of share options kil v
(Note 27(a)(i) (272)li)
Issue of new shares on ek 601,617 = = = = - 601,617
placement (Note 27 (a)(ii)) (Hizora)fi)
Share-based compensation RiOMERT = o = 62,471 = - 62,471
expenses (Note 8) (Hite)
Cancllation of share options iERE = = - (13,368) 13,368 - -
(Note 27(b)i) (27)iy)
Issue of new shares on business ~ RAREHERAH 967,781 = = = = - 967,781
combination under common &2 RG
control (Note 27(a)(iv)) (Hizera)iv)
Profit for the period RHRER = = - - 510,040 - 510,040
Proposed final dividend for the ~ BE-F-=F = o = - (90,931) 90,931 -
15 months period ended tZA=1-R
31 December 2013 (Note 13) I+ R A
BERSRE
(hit13)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=& 1,613,050 642,378 196 61,593 238,314 90,931 2,646,462
s
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28. RESERVES (continued) 28. f&fE (&)
Company (continued) AT (&)
Share Capital  Share-based
premium  Contributed  redemption  compensation  Accumulated
account surplus reserves reserves losses Total

BiEER  BARE AAREEHR ROWSES 2EEA #a
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000
AETL  AETRT  BETR AETT AETL  ARTR

At 1 October 2011 RZB—4F 42,015 642,378 196 11,812 (161,829) 534,572
+A-8
Issue of new shares on exercise 1T BREM 21T 535 - - - - 535
of share options Wil 3
(Note 27(a)(ii) (Wiz2r(a)(i)
Share-based compensation BREHEES - - - 1,597 - 1,597
expenses (Note 8) (Hi8)
Loss for the year TEERE - - - - (32,334)  (32,334)
At 30 September 2012 i 42,550 642,378 19 13,409 (194163) 504,370
NEZTH
The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess BRIEBHAZSZEAF+—A+HBZA
of the fair value of the shares over the accumulated losses 5 RRABZEABBIERD AL EBD
of the Company pursuant to the announcement dated ARARREEE S - BREAFTMHA 2
15 November 2005. Under the amendments to the bye- B3] EEERA/NEGEZETERLT
laws, the Company may make distributions to its members BUARRR A M ARBBREPBLERIES
out of the contributed surplus in certain circumstances KT HE MR o

when the directors consider it appropriate to do so.
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29. TRADE PAYABLES 29.

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the reporting
date, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

FEY B 5 B8R

EAESER (LERADASR) NEE
A2 ERATMT :

Group
AEH
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—fF
+=—HB=+-—H hA=+H
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Within 1 month —fEHzA 285,560 27,652
1 to 3 months —Z=@A 60,804 208
Over 3 months —@BANE 16,570 292
362,934 28,152

Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled within an average term of one month.

ENEZERBIMEABERNFE—E
ARERE -

30. ADVANCED RECEIPTS, ACCRUALS AND 30. FAEWAE EFRIRERAEMENS
OTHER PAYABLES BRFX
Group Company
KEE b

31 December

30 September 31 December 30 September

2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E-CF —E-=F “E-—F
+ZA=+-H NA=+tH +=BA=t-H NA=+A
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BB BT BT

(Restated)

(E7)
Sales deposit receipts HERSTIE 2,816,140 - - -
Advanced rental receipts B S 508 12,588 493 - -
Deferred income (Note 38(a)(i)) ~ BIEWA (#1338(a)(i) 28,117 28,699 = -
Rental deposits received Blkicke 50,615 46,478 - -
Accrued expenses [EEHRER 91,707 67,409 10,017 5,840
Other payables Hib AR 19,854 21,020 - 371
3,019,021 164,099 10,017 6,211
Other payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and HEMBERIVEIEE - e REETE

have no fixed terms of repayment.

B

BN o
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—E—=F+-RA=+—H
INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. MERITRHEMER
BORROWINGS
Group
F%8
31 December 2013 30 September 2012
Z8-Zf+Zh=1-H ZE-CEAA=TH
Effective Maturity Effective Maturity
annual (Financial annual (Financial
interest year) interest year)
rate (%) i) HK$’000 rate (%) 55 HK$'000
BREAR%)  (HHEE) BT BRENE%)  (MEEE) BETT
Current ik}
Bank borrowings: BITER
- Secured (Note) -HER (Wit - - - 6.15-6.77 2012/13 183,225
- Unsecured -BER 2.906 2014 279,176 2.13-2.70 2012/13 994,854
279,176 1,178,079
Non-current R
Bank borrowing: RITER
- Secured (Note) -BER (W) - - - 6.15-6.77 2013/14 260,504
- 260,504
279,176 1,438,583
Company
KAT
31 Decmber 2013 30 September 2012
ZE-ZEtZR=t-H ZE-ZENAZTH
Effective Maturity Effective Maturity
annual (Financial annual (Financial
interest year) interest year)
rate (%) B HK$’000 rate (%) 55 HK$'000
BREFRC)  (HHEE) BETR mmeREe)  (BEREE)  BETR
Current ik ]
Bank borrowing FITER
- Unsecured —BER - - - 2.70 2012/13 715,588
- 715,588
Note: et -

The secured bank borrowings of the Group as at 30 September
2012 were secured by certain of the Group’s properties
under development situated in the PRC, with an aggregate
carrying value as at 30 September 2012 of approximately

HK$1,063,651,000 (Notes 17 and 36).

RIFE——FNA=+H  FKEEZZBEHHFR
TTE B A FE B E TR B 5+ %
(BAFREER - E——FNA=1HERLEEK
1,063,651,0007T (H1at17X36)) 1R -
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31.

BORROWINGS (continued)

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings repayable are

analysed as follows:

F&

MERITREMER (&)

i3

{

{

R RRITREMER Z AT

Group Company
bS] NG|
31 December 30 September 31 December 30 September
2013 2012 2013 2012
~¥-=f ¥ % ZB-=f T CF
+ZA=t+-H AA=+H +=ZA=t+-H NA=+A
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT BET T BT
Within first year or F—FRF 279,176 1,178,079 = 715,588
on demand EEXKER

In the second year BEFR - 260,504 - -
279,176 1,438,583 - 715,588

The carrying amounts of bank and other borrowings at

the end of the reporting period were denominated in the

following currencies:

RI|BEMR - RITMEBERZRRER

TSI -

Group Company
A58 A2

31 December 30 September 31 December 30 September
2013 2012 2013 2012
—Z-=F —E-CF —E-=F —Z--f
+=A=t+-H AA=+H +=ZA=t+-H NA=+AH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BETT BETT BETFT
Hong Kong dollar B - 715,588 - 715,588
Renminbi N - 443,729 - -
United States dollar ESiv 279,176 279,266 - -
279,176 1,438,583 - 715,588

All interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of the

Group and the Company were at floating rates.
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32. LOANS FROM RELATED PARTIES 32. BEFEX
Group Company
x5E NG|
31 December 30 September 31 December 30 September
2013 2012 2013 2012
—Z-=F —E-CF —E-=f “ECF
+=ZA=1+-H NA=+tH +=R=t-H NA=TH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
(Restated)
(E3))
Loans from the ultimate REREBRARER 2,390,677 35,424 - -
holding company (Note i) (B1s%i)
Loans from the immediate BEERARER 1,179,226 - 720,000 -
holding company (Note i) (hazii)
Loan from a non-controlling JERR R R E R 151,996 - - -
shareholder (Note i) (Hiztii)
3,721,899 35,424 720,000 -
Notes: Miet -
(i) The balances are unsecured, interest bearing at 6.15% (i) R ER - FIE 3 F B E6.15%
per annum and repayable within one year (30 September RR—FNEE (ZFE——FENLH=+
2012: unsecured, interest bearing at 120% over the A #HHF FEEBPEAARRITE
lending rate of People’s Bank of China (the “PBOC AHE ([ATEZKFIF]) .2120% KR
rate”) per annum and repayable within one year). At 31 —FERNEE) RZB—=F+_H=
December 2013 and 30 September 2012, the balances +t—AR—ZE——FANA=1H ZF
are denominated in Renminbi. RN RBEECAR -
(ii) The balances are unsecured, interest bearing at 4% per (i) BERRTIERA - FEERZI%BRR —F
annum and repayable within one year. At 31 December AEE R-ZFB—=FF _H=+—
2013, the balances are denominated in Hong Kong dollar. H - ZEERIZE TR ©
(iii) The balance is unsecured, interest bearing at 4% per (i) BRI FEEBINRR—F
annum and repayable within one year. At 31 December AEE RZFB—=FF _H=+—
2013, the balance is denominated in United States dollar. B - ZAERIEFEITIAR ©
The carrying amounts of the above balances approximate
to their fair values. J/XJZ%%%ZEEE@E@EQ?E@$H% °
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33. DUE FROM/(TO) RELATED PARTIES 33.

The amount due from/(to) related parties of the Group and
the Company are unsecured, interest free and have no
fixed term of repayment. The carrying amounts of these
balances approximate to their fair values.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts
of the balances with related parties of the Company
are denominated in Hong Kong dollar and the carrying
amounts of the balances with related parties of the Group
are denominated in the following currencies:

FE () BESRIE
AEERARNE 2R (ER) F 227

B

ZEEEREAAERE

B R EE EERE

%é%

RIBEHR - ARBEEET 2 ARRE
BB MAKEREET &8
FREERATERSIE :

Group
FEH
31 December 2013 30 September 2012
Z2-Zf+ZA=+-H ZE2-ZENAZTH
Denominated in Denominated in
THRERA THEE%A
HK$ RMB Uss Total HK$ RMB US$ Total
B AR® EY B B AR e g
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000 HK’'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BRI BT B%Tr  B¥Tr A%t EETr A%t EETx
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&351) (&51) (E71) (&51)
Due from fellow ERRZNEAR - 103 - 103 - - -
subsidiaries Eer]
Due from a YRR - - 63254 63,25 - 63254 63,254
non-controlling B
shareholder
Due to the ultimate ENHEERAT - (243,514) - (243,5514) - - -
holding company Pz
Due to the immediate ~ ENEZER L (63,368) - (3,257)  (66,625) (206,633) - (620,515) (827,148)
holding company HIE
Due to non-controlling  FER3EHEARAR R - - (81,544)  (81,544) - (76590)  (76,590)
shareholders B
Due to fellow ERRZHBAR - (1,299) - (1,299) - - -
subsidiaries TE
Due to related ERBERT - (580) - (580) (189) - (189)
companies HIE
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DEFERRED TAX 34. IEELEBIIE
Deferred tax liabilities BELEBEBEEE
The movements of deferred tax liabilities during the EERBEEERSE, FRZEHAT
period/year are as follows:
Group
AE8
Withholding
Revaluation Tax income
of properties losses taxes Tota
EfE BIEFSE BMFER BE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BETT BETT BETT
At 1 October 2012 RZE-—%+F—H 380,556 (11,885) 32,344 401,015
Deferred tax charged/(credited) WEEXRAHR 353,362 (3,817) 2,420 351,965
to the statement of (Bt A) ZBRRIE
profit or loss (Note 9) (Hst9)
Exchange realignment EHAR 15,805 (273) 1,423 16,955
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=%+=ZA=+—H 749,723 (15,975) 36,187 769,935
At 1 October 2011 RZZE——F+A—-H 212,702 (10,303) 21,297 223,696
Deferred tax charged/(credited)  REZFERINR / 166,830 (1,578) 11,103 176,355
to the statement of (FtA) ZERFIE
profit or loss (Note 9) (#1:#9)
Exchange realignment PEE ¢, 358 1,024 (4) (56) 964
At 30 September 2012 RZE-—FNA=+H 380,556 (11,885) 32,344 401,015
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34. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 34, EEBIE (££)
Deferred tax assets BEEBBREE
The movements of deferred tax assets during the period/ EEFIEEENE FRAZEBHNT :

year are as follows:

Group
HEE
Provision
Tax losses for claims Total
HIEEE RRBE B

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT

At 1 October 2012 R-_ZE——F+HA—H - - -
(as previously reported) (AF25)

Business combination under HEESIT 2 509 - 509
common control EBast

At 1 October 2012 R-E——F+/F—H 509 - 509
(as restated) (E3))

Deferred tax credited to the RIBIHEANFTAZ 38,330 - 38,330
statement of profit or loss (Note 9)  EIEFIA (Afi29)

Exchange realignment ME 5, e B 726 - 726

At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%F 39,565 - 39,565

+=-—A=+—H

At 1 October 2011 R-F——%+A—H - 7,569 7,569

Business combination under HREES T2 509 - 509
common control EBa0

Deferred tax charged to the RiE=R&R AR Z - (7,689) (7,689)
statement of profit or loss (Note 9)  iEIETRIE (H/779)

Exchange realignment I 5 AR - 120 120

At 30 September 2012 MIZTE—_%F 509 - 509
(as restated) AA=+8 (&%)
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35.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax assets (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tax
losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$653,718,000 (30
September 2012: HK$652,821,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits
of the companies in which the losses arose, and tax
losses arising in Mainland China of HK$245,912,000 (30
September 2012: HK$76,000,000) which will expire within
five years. Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of
HK$653,718,000 (30 September 2012: HK$652,821,000)
and HK$23,752,000 (30 September 2012: HK$26,424,000)
arising in Hong Kong and Mainland China, respectively,
have not been recognised as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
The Company had no deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities as at 31 December 2013 (30 September
2012: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group and the Company
did not have any significant contingent liabilities
(80 September 2012: Nil)

34.

35.

31 December 2013 .
—=%F+=-HA=+—H

ELEHR IR (&)
EEBBEEE (&)

RBEER  NEBRBEBEE ZTIEE
18 & #653,718,000C (ZZE—=—F A,
A=+ H: & ¥%652821,000T) © A &
REFBIEZEEEEBE 2 AT HE ZER
FmA - mARPBEREEE ZHIEERE
245,912,000 (ZE—ZF N A=
+ B : ##76,000,0007T) R HEARET
o BARPEIKRE  RERTIBEES

Bl /&7 #653,718,000T (ZE——F Hh
A =+H: ##¥652,821,0007T) K&K
23,752,000t (ZE——FNA=+H":
75 #26,424,0007T) + b Ty B 5% Y BB
NAIEEEZR -  BERATAAEEE
A FERTR M IAK I ZERIBERE - #UR
MZEEERRER EERIBEE -

BEPBECEMSERE - NP EKBERT
ZHNEIRECERIEIREES ﬁZkg
BIE10%BWTENT - WIREHR_-TZT
F-—A—AREMR WEANRZ-Z 7t¢
TZA=+—BRZEF - WPBE KRR
HNRIEEE 2 RE R A FFRBEHS
R EAREKZIENHRE - iAKE
MmE - @EAMREA%KI0% - Bt » &
%lﬁfﬁﬁﬁ$ﬂﬁﬁﬁjzaﬁwg

RAIRZTEZENF-—A—ARBRELZAF
BT IR 2 B B 8 S TE R

AR A IR B T AR RN A AT IS B
BR - RZFE—=F+-_A=+—H ' =&
NAVEECHIBEEREERIBEAE

(Z2—=—FhA=1+H:8&)-
HAREE

R-ZE—=F+-"A=+—8 A&EEAK
RRAREBEERKABE (ZT——Fh

A=+H:#&)-
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36.

37.

—=

—=%+=A=+—H

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 36. EEER
No assets of the Group were pledged at the end of the RBEHRR FEELREEFETME
reporting period. As at 30 September 2012, certain of E-RZTE—Z—FAA=1TH KAKEEZ
the Group’s bank and other borrowings were secured by ATHERTREMERNREMES XBE
certain properties under development with an aggregate 1,063,651,0007T 2 & T 3 & F ¥ £ 1E K
carrying value of HK$1,063,651,000) (Notes 17 and 31). #(FIsE17%31) °
COMMITMENTS 37. &IE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EXEIE
The Group had commitments for capital expenditure RE|ER - AEE 2 EARFE T
at the end of the reporting period as follows: T
Group
TEE
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
—E—=F —T—C—F
+=—HA=+-—H hA=+H
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
(Restated)
(&31)
Contracted, but not provided for BEL - BREE
— Properties under development —BEEPYE 1,985,504 989,612
— Investment properties - REME 57,315 -
— Furniture and equipment —REREE 10,176 -
2,052,995 989,612
Authorised, but not contracted for B BREY
— Properties under development — BRPYE 13,477,838 7,378,325
- Investment properties —REME 1,548,614 -
15,026,452 7,378,325
17,079,447 8,367,937
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37. COMMITMENTS (continued) 37. &iE (&)
(a) Capital commitments (continued) (a) EXEEE)
In addition, the Group’s share of the jointly- AN - AEE RS R R BB
controlled entities own capital commitments in WARENR LS RBEZERPYE
respect of properties under development, which BARAENT -
are not included in the above, are as follows:
Group
rEEH
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
+=A=+—-8H NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Contracted, but not provided for E%EZ’J ’ @iﬁiﬁ‘ﬁ 535,174 -
Authorised, but not contracted for BEEE  BREL 2,123,227 -
2,658,401 -
At the end of the reporting period, the Company did REE IR - ANQE)I RS AR
not have any capital commitments (30 September (Z2—=FhA=1H: &)
2012: Nil).
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHYRE
() As lessee (i) ERMP
The Group leases certain properties under REBRBEEHOL YR
operating lease arrangements. Leases AETYE - MEHEEERR
for properties were negotiated for terms EmAE—E2=F1F-
ranging from one to three years.
At 31 December 2013, the Group and the RZE—=F+=A=+—
Company had total future minimum lease A - K& E R D FRAR T
payments under non-cancellable operating A RE A ZBER AR K
leases falling due as follows: XA 2 AR S R RE 0
T
Group Company
r58 YN
31 December 30 September 31 December 30 September
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-z% —_B-Cf% —B-Zf —I--F
tZA=t+-H AA=+H  +ZA=t-AH AAZtA
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BETL BETR BETT
Within one year :ﬁmﬁ 16,261 1,700 15,921 -
In the second to fifth years, E_EFRFA 15,473 - 15,473
inclusive (BEEEME) _
31,734 1,700 31,394 -
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37. COMMITMENTS (continued) 37. &iE (&)
(b) Operating lease commitments (continued) (b) REHELRE (&)
(i) As lessor iy {EAHMEA
The Group leases its investment REERBEEHNLH
properties (Note 15) under operating lease MHET 2R EWE (T
arrangements, with leases negotiated for 15)  HEBAERR—E -+
terms ranging from one to twenty years. FAAE - HMHOBKRII—RE
The terms of the leases generally also KHEPEHTRES RRTE
require the tenants to pay security deposits BRTERMSREMED
and provide for periodic rent adjustments HEFHE o
according to the then prevailing market
conditions.
At 31 December 2013, the Group had total RZE—=F+=ZA=+—
future minimum lease receivables under H RNEEREBEEEESE
non-cancellable leases with its tenants N2 N E 2 R R &
falling due as follows: REWHEERE 2 BHER
LU
Group
rEE
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—F
+t=A=+—-H NA=+H
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT
Within one year —FR 170,579 163,803
In the second to fifth years, BE_ZFRFA 138,695 161,922
inclusive (BREEEMF)
Over five years HF#E 7,371 598
316,645 326,323
At the end of the reporting period, the RABEHA > AR jﬁtﬂ‘{/ﬁ
- : AR AL 2 EEHL
Company did not have any operating lease o [ Sy i
arrangements as lessor (30 September Rz A=
2012: Nil). )
38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. MELXRZ

At the end of the reporting period, the ultimate holding
company of the Company was Gemdale Corporation, a
company established in the PRC.

Other than the related party information disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
following is a summary of the significant related party
transactions carried out in the normal course of the
Group’s business during the period/year:

RIBEMR - AR TZE—WT ARRE
, )7_7 A

BEAMBHRRAREBESTEMNIN R
B/ FAARENEEEBTETZER
ERRZ BT -
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 38. BEARS (&)

(a) HBEIXS

(Income)/Expenses

(BA) /X
Period ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
gz-2-=f HE_T—F
+=A=1+-H NA=ZTH
f12::]5 ILFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
il BETR BETT
Compensation income from WOERSE R AR SR B A (i) (582) (489)
a non-controlling shareholder
Property management services fee from BRAERA 2 NEER (ii) (206) (147)
a related company R%E
Property management fee paid to a related XN FHRERAZNEERE (i) 657 510
company
Marketing and leasing services fee paid to SNTBERACEER (iv) 932 859
a related company HERBE
Rental income from a related company WEREE ARl 2 HE WA (v) - (252)
Consultancy fee paid to a related company XN FERERACERE (vi) — 340
Corporate management services fee paid to IRTEENA (vii) - 2,739
a related company PEERRES
Internal audit fee paid to a related company INTHERFAZAFERE  (vii) - 215
Entrusted management fee from BEES =Nl (ix) (23,790) -
fellow subsidiaries LEREE
Royalty fee paid to the ultimate holding TR FRIEERDE 2 (x) 23,403 -
company EHE
Property management fee paid to IRTREMBARZ (xi) 9,463 -
a fellow subsidiary NEERE
Management services fee paid to SN TREMBRRZ (xii) 4,310 -
a fellow subsidiary EERBE
Interest paid on loans from the ultimate IR TREERAR L (xiii) 70,747 -
holding company ERHME
Interest paid on loans from the immediate IRTERERARZ (xiv) 9,928 -
holding company BEHAE
Interest paid on loan from a non-controlling IR FHERBREZEFFE  (xv) 8,312 -
shareholder
103,174 3,775
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38.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

Related party transactions (continued)

(i)

(i)

In 2005, compensation income of RMB37.11

million was received for a property
development project as a result of the
breach of warranty given by the seller of
the project to the Group under the sale and
purchase agreement. Such compensation
income was recorded as deferred income
and released to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss based on the lease period
of the land use rights of the project. The
transaction was disclosed as related
party transaction because the seller was
the immediate holding company of the
Company until the change of control of
the Company in September 2012. The then
immediate holding company has remained
as the shareholder of a subsidiary of the

Company at the end of the reporting period.

During the period, an amount of HK$582,000
(year ended 30 September 2012:
HK$489,000) was released from deferred
income and recorded as compensation
income in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

During the period, a non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company paid
a management fee of RMB165,000

(equivalent to HK$206,000) (year ended 30
September 2012: RMB120,000 (equivalent
to HK$147,000)) to the subsidiary of its non-
controlling shareholder in relation to a staff
canteen management contract. The fee was
payable on a monthly basis at RMB10,000
during the period from 1 October 2012 to 30
September 2013 and at RMB 15,000 started
from 1 October 2013.

38.

RELXRS (&)
RELZXS (#)

(a)

206 Gemdale Properties and Investment Corporation Limited & 075 & S E AR A 7

(i)

(i)

RZTTRF - AEE—H
MEERIBER ZCEBEHBER
BEHERBEHBZEET RN
SEREZRE  HAEE
M E 7B ERAARE
37,110,000t - B @ E UK
ABVBEEMWANER - W%
B H 2+ AR & AR
Bl4rEiEmx - BREAR
—E-ZFNAERRRIER
BB AARR ZHEE
KRR MRS E R
HBAIRG  ZERZEEE
RABRMEBRKRDAERRD
Al—RMB AR ZRE °

REAR - IR E Y A B B
NHERARGEERER
ABR 2 /I8 & %% #582,000
T(HEZZE——-FNLA=
+HIEFE - B %489,000
TT) °

REIR  ARAIZ—RIER
EWBRRAREEBEET
BAHNIHERBAAR
#165,0007T (48 5 R B 1§
206,00070) (BZ=_F—=
FALAZTHLEFE AR
#120,0007T (48 5 R B 1
147,0007T)) T E FEZEAR IR
R2MBRAR - ZEBRHBZ
T-——_F+HA—HEZ_Z—
“FAA=Z+HYMREA
AR¥®10,000 R =T —=
F+A—HRBRESAARKE
15,0000 2 B EZ T ©
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Related party transactions (continued)

(iiif)

(iv)

(vi)

During the period, the same non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company paid
a management fee of RMB527,000
(equivalent to HK$657,000) (year ended 30
September 2012: RMB416,000 (equivalent
to HK$510,000)) to a subsidiary of its non-
controlling shareholder in relation to a
property management contract. The fee was
payable at 8% of the total monthly gross
management fee received from the tenants
of that property.

During the period, the same non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company paid
a management fee of RMB749,000
(equivalent to HK$932,000) (year ended 30
September 2012: RMB702,000 (equivalent
to HK$859,000)) to its non-controlling
shareholder in relation to a marketing and
leasing services contract. The fee was
payable at 2.5% of the total rental revenue
received from the tenants of that property.

The same non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into a 3-year lease
agreement with an associate of its non-
controlling shareholder. During the year
ended 30 September 2012, the agreement
was early terminated and the rental of
RMB206,000 (equivalent to HK$252,000)
was received during that year.

Pursuant to an agreement for certain
consultancy services in relation to a
property development project of the Group
with a total contract sum of SG$160,000,
the Group paid a fee of SG$56,000
(equivalent to HK$340,000) to a wholly-
owned subsidiary of a former substantial
shareholder of the Company during the year

ended 30 September 2012.

[ |
31 December 2013
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38. BELXRZ (&)
(a) BBEAZRS (&)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)
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RHR ARAEZHE—XK
2 EMBRATISEMES
BAHNSINERBARE
527,0007T (17 & W & &
657,0007T) (BEZE=-T—=
FALAZTHILEE: AR
¥416,0007T (FH & R 7B ¥
510,0007T)) T E IE4E I A%
BZMBRR - ZBRLR%
MERFEAKRDzERE
HBEE 8% o

PHIR » RAFZR—RIE
2ENB AR RTISHER
HERBANINEEREA
R #749,0007T (48 & R 7%
#932,0007T) (HE =& —
“EAAZTRHIEEE:
A R #702,0007T (8 & 7
7B #859,0007T)) F H JE#E
Bl E - ZBRRZYE
HAPWE e WA EE 2
2.5%Z 1 o

ARRZR—RIEZEW B
NSRRI g el
RBFIMAR=F 2 HEW
Z o RNEBE_E——FNA
Z“tHIEFERN  ZHEe
AT - ZFEANE WETE
& B A R #206,00075T (18
LSRE 252 0007T) °

BEAEER —BNELR
BEMBEzE THARSEE
M2 BENSREAR
hn3 #160,0007T @ AN &£ E
BHE-_ZE—_—FhA=1H
EFERNRAARQRIREZR
R 2EMBRARZFER
1 hn 3% #56,0007T (AR
75 #340,0007T) °
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38.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

Related party transactions (continued)

(vii)

(viii)

During the year ended 30 September
2012,
of the Company paid a consultancy
fee of RMBZ2,238,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,739,000)) to a subsidiary of the former
ultimate holding company of the Company

a non-wholly-owned subsidiary

for corporate consultancy services provided
to the non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

During the year ended 30 September
2012, the Group paid internal audit fee of
HK$215,000 to the former ultimate holding
company of the Company. The charge was
calculated based on cost of such service
provided.
During the period, the Company
received an entrusted management
fee of RMB19,002,000 (net of business
tax of RMB1,127,000) (equivalent to
HK$23,790,000) from two fellow subsidiaries
of the Company pursuant to two entrusted
operation agreements whereby the fellow
subsidiaries agreed to engage the Company
(or its subsidiary(ies)) to manage the daily
operation of certain of their properties
located in the PRC. The fee was receivable
at rates of RMB6.91 and RMB10.57,
respectively, per square meter per month
with reference to the total gross floor area
of the properties.

38.

RELXRS (&)
RELXS (#)

(a)
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(vii)

(viii)

BE-_Z——FNLA=1H
LHFE  ARAZ—RIER
BB A RIS AR BT AR 4R
TRAF 2B A RAAR
RIFERENBARIRHEZA
AIEARB B RERAA
R#2,238,0007C (1HE R
#2 739,0007T) °
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I E - NREBREA QR A
R AR N AR EX
& 8 %215,0007T © % B
FR IR A4 (48 B AR 75 2 A AR

4 o
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XA EK B AR WEEE
EE & A R #19,002,000
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1,127,0007T) (1 5 1 & 8
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Related party transactions (continued)

(x)

(xi)

(xi)

During the period, the Group incurred a
royalty fee of RMB18,693,000 (equivalent
to HK$23,403,000) to the ultimate holding
company of the Company pursuant to
a trademark master agreement and a
supplemental agreement to the trademark
master agreement whereby the ultimate
holding company agreed to grant a non-
exclusive right to the Company and its
subsidiaries to use certain of its registered
trademarks in the PRC. The fee was
payable at (i) 0.6% of the contracted sales
of properties of the projects developed
by the Group (other than Xi'an Zhujia
Property Company Limited (“Xi'an Zhujia”)
and Shenyang Gemdale Binhe Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Shenyang
Gemdale”), both of which are subsidiaries of
the Company) using the relevant trademarks
and (ii) 1% of the contracted sales of
properties developed by Xi'an Zhujia and
Shenyang Gemdale using the relevant
trademarks.

During the period, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company paid a property
management fee of RMB7,558,000
(equivalent to HK$9,463,000) to a fellow
subsidiary of the Company pursuant to a
property management service agreement
whereby the wholly-owned subsidiary
agreed to commission the fellow subsidiary
to carry out certain property management
service relating to its investment property
in the PRC. The fee was payable at RMB7
per square meter per month with reference
to the gross floor area of the property.

During the period, certain subsidiaries of the
Company paid property management fee of
RMB3,442,000 (equivalent to HK$4,310,000)
to a fellow subsidiary of the Company for
property management services provided.
The management fee was determined with
reference to the actual cost occurred for
providing the services and the prevailing
market conditions.

[ |
31 December 2013
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38. BEIXZ (&)
(a) BEIXS (&)

(x)

(xii)
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38.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

Related party transactions (continued)

(xiii)

(xiv)

During the period, certain subsidiaries
of the Company paid loan interest
of RMB56,520,000 (equivalent to
HK$70,747,000) to the ultimate holding
company of the Company pursuant to
framework loan agreements with the ultimate
holding company whereby the ultimate
holding company agreed to grant RMB
loan facilities to those subsidiaries of the
Company for their project development at
an interest rate of 6.15% per annum. Further
details of the loans are disclosed in note 32
to the financial statements.

During the period, the Company paid loan
interest of HK$9,928,000 to the immediate
holding company of the Company pursuant
to loan agreements with the immediate
holding company whereby the immediate
holding company agreed to grant HK$ loan
facilities to the Company for the project
development of the Group at an interest
rate of 4% per annum. Further details of
the loans are disclosed in note 32 to the
financial statements.

During the period, a subsidiary of the
Company paid loan interest of US$1,071,500
(equivalent to HK$8,312,000) to its non-
controlling shareholder pursuant to a
loan agreement with the non-controlling
shareholder whereby the non-controlling
shareholder agreed to grant a US$ loan
facility to the subsidiary for its project
development with interest at the PBOC
rate. The interest rate was subsequently
changed to a fixed rate of 4% per annum
in August 2013. Further details of the loan
are disclosed in note 32 to the financial
statements.

All above transactions are connected transactions

as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

38.

RELXRS (&)
MELRS (&)

(a)
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38.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 38.

(b)

(c)

Outstanding balances with related parties:

(i) Details of the Group’s loans from related
parties at the end of the reporting period
are included in note 32 to the financial
statements.

(i) Details of the Group’s amounts due from/(to)
related parties at the end of the reporting
date are included in note 33 to the financial
statements.

Remuneration of key management personnel of
the Group:

[ |
31 December 2013
—E—=F+-_A=+—H

BELRRS (&)
(b) REESEAREESR:

(i) REBPREH KR BER
EFFBE R B mMERW T
32 EE -

(i) AEBRRERRZEYW
(EfD) A guEEe R
B SRR M 533 I FE ©

(c) FEBMIEEBASZHMH :

Period ended Year ended

31 December 30 September

2013 2012

BE-Z—=F HE_T_F

+=-A=+-AH NA=+E

IEEARS IHFE

HK$°000 HK$'000

BETT BT

Short term employee benefits RHESET 6,523 16,163
Post-employment benefits BEER 1212 A - 26
Share-based compensation expenses Bt 2 5 2 27,005 1,597
33,528 17,786

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 10 to the financial statements.

EHEEME 2 E—SFHFBRARNY
BmAMFE0 ©
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39.

—=F+ZA=+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

39. REHEPZEMIA

ERHEMTARNRERRZEEELD

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period N
are as follows:
Financial assets cREE
Group
e 4]
31 December 2013 30 September 2012
®-ZETZA=t-H ZZ-CEAAZTH
Available- Available-
Loans for-sale Held-to- Loans for-sale
and financial maturity and financial
receivables  investment investment receivables  investment
B3k IHHE KE Total §Rk  FfiHE Tota
BYER  ¢RRE  HERE B RMER SERE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E¥Tn  EMTn  R%Tn BMTn AYTn BEfr BETx
(Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (E51)
Available-for-sale financial TRIELRAE = 8,822 = 8,822 . 8,822 8,822
investment
Trade receivables EUBHEN 9,249 - - 9,249 4,946 - 4946
Financial assets included in SIABITSE  RER 86,233 - - 86,233 6,252 - 6,252
prepayments, deposits, ERlES 2
and other receivables SRAE
Held-to-maturity investment BEHERE = - 155098 155,008 - - -
Due from fellow subsidiaries EYRZNBATE 103 - - 103 - - -
Due from a non-controlling R RER 63,254 - - 63,254 63,254 - 63,254
shareholder
Restricted cash REHAL 42,037 - - 42,037 74 - 74
Deposits, bank and cash balances B 8RR ES 1,815,436 - - 1815436 1,537,802 - 1537802
2,016,512 8,622 155,098 2,180,432 1,612,328 8822 1,621,150
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. RERBSZEMIA (&)
(continued)
Financial liabilities EMAME
Group
rEE
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
== —EF-—F
+=A=+—-8 NA=+H
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
costs costs
BRBEEATE REEKAE
ZemaE ZemAaE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT
(Restated)
(E51)
Trade payables FET B SR 362,934 28,152
Financial liabilities included in advanced FIATENGRIR - EEHEERRA N 144,640 113,943
receipts, accruals and other payables HMENERcERARE
Loans from the ultimate holding company SRR RBIER 2,390,677 35,424
Loans from the immediate holding company ~B&ZEZER AR EN 1,179,226 -
Loan from a non-controlling shareholder IR E 151,996 -
Due to the ultimate holding company JE B X PR IR B 3RIB 243,514 -
Due to the immediate holding company FERT BRI A B E 66,625 827.148
Due to non-controlling shareholders JE 1~ FE 12 AR IR R R T8 81,544 76,590
Due to fellow subsidiaries e R R M8 A R 308 1,299 -
Due to related companies JERTREE N R FRIE 580 189
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings ~ Hf 8R17 R EME R 279,176 1,438,583
4,902,211 2,520,029
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39.

(continued)

Financial assets

BERES 2EMTIA (&)

SRMEE
Company
¥NNE
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
—B-=F —E—fF
+=—H=+-—H hA=+H
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
ERREWRER ERRERER
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Financial assets included in prepayments,  JIATERFIE - & K 11,289 1,061
deposits and other receivables HiEWIRR s S REE

Due from subsidiaries e BT B8 A RIFUIE 4,226,293 1,554,956
Deposits, bank and cash balances Fao SRITRBESEH 57,410 389,047
4,294,992 1,945,064

Financial liabilities EEMEE

Company
¥ NN
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
+=-A=+—-A8 NA=+E
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
costs costs
REBMERATE REEKNATE
ZEMEE ZEBBE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Financial liabilities included in accruals and ~ ZIAJEHRARIE K2 9,434 5.948
other payables HipERNER 2 eRmEE

Due to subsidiaries FETFT /B A RI5RIB 7,902 34,016
Interest-bearing bank borrowing ft SRITER - 715,588
Loan from the immediate holding company ~ B&ZERAFER 720,000 -
Due to the immediate holding company FE BRI IR A B B 2,480 -
739,816 755,552
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31 December 2013 b
—=%+=-HA=+—8H
40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 40. AARERAAEBESHREE
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and REBERARREBMIAEZERABERAR
the Company’s financial instruments are as follows: (ERUNNE
Group
A58
31 December 2013 30 September 2012
“E-Z§+tZA=t-H “E-ZHNA=1A
Carrying Carrying
amounts  Fair values amounts  Fair values
HREE ARE FREE AnE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT AETT BB
(Restated)  (Restated)
(E7) (E71)
Financial assets THEE
Deposits, bank and cash balances B BORRER 1,815,436 1,815,436 1,537,802 1,537,802
Restricted cash XR#RE 42,237 42,237 74 74
Due from a non-controlling shareholder BRI R R 3B 63,254 63,254 63,254 63,254
Due from fellow subsidiaries R Z B R RFE 103 103 - -
Trade receivables FEWE 58 9,249 9,249 4,946 4,946
Financial assets included in prepayments,  JIATBRFIE - 2& Kk 86,233 86,233 6,252 6,252
deposits and other receivables HiERRT e BEE
Held-to-maturity investment BEIHSRE 155,098 155,098 - -
Available-for-sale financial investment AHRHESRKRE 8,822 8,822 8,822 8,822
2,180,432 2,180,432 1,621,150 1,621,150
Financial liabilities tREE
Trade payables ENESEX 362,934 362,934 28,152 28,152
Financial liabilities included in advanced ~ FIATEMGHE - EaHRRER 144,640 144,640 113,943 113,943
receipts, accruals and other payables ity e BRS Z%mﬂ’m
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings Mﬁﬂ%ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂ 279,176 279,176 1438583 1,438,583
Loans from the ultimate holding company &2k “’W‘% 2,390,677 2,390,677 35,424 35,424
Loans from the immediate holding company B&ZERAFER 1,179,226 1,179,226 - -
Loan from a non-controlling shareholder I Hxﬂﬁig 151,996 151,996 - -
Due to the ultimate holding company JERT BRI R mlﬁ 243,514 243,514 - -
Due to the immediate holding company [ENEBTRARFE 66,625 66,625 827,148 827,148
Due to non-controlling shareholders g Hxﬂxﬁmlﬁ 81,544 81,544 76,590 76,590
Due to fellow subsidiaries ERRZRBA 1,299 1,299 - -
Due to related companies F@ﬁl@aﬁ@ﬁ?ﬁlﬁ 580 580 189 189
4,902,211 4,902,211 2,520,029 2,520,029
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40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

(continued)

40. AR

ERDAEEHRERE (&)

Company
LN
31 December 2013 30 September 2012
ZB-=f+tZA=t-8H —E-_§AA=TA
Carrying Carrying
amounts  Fair values amounts  Fair values
HREE ARE EEE RAfE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BB BT
Financial assets SHEE
Deposits, bank and cash balances T BORREH 57,410 57,410 389,047 389,047
Due from subsidiaries FEYH B A R FUR 4,226,293 4,226,293 1,554,956 1,554,956
Financial assets included in prepayments,  JIATERFIE - #& K 11,289 11,289 1,061 1,061
deposits and other receivables Hib YR s eBEE
4,294,992 4,294,992 1,945,064 1,945,064
Financial liabilities SRAE
Financial liabilities included in accruals S AFEEHHR AR 9,434 9,434 5,948 5,948
and other payables HiwEAER 2BAR
Interest-bearing bank borrowing B SRITER = = 715,588 715,588
Due to subsidiaries FERHERRFE 7,902 7,902 34,016 34,016
Loan from the immediate holding company ~E&ZRAAEH 720,000 720,000 - -
Due to the immediate holding company [ER B A RIZIE 2,480 2,480 - -
739,816 739,816 755,552 755,552
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40.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
(continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of deposits, bank and cash balances,
restricted cash, trade receivables, trade payables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, financial liabilities included in advanced
receipts, accruals and other payables, amounts due from/
to subsidiaries, amounts due from/to fellow subsidiaries,
amounts due from/to non-controlling shareholders,
amounts due to the ultimate holding company, amounts
due to the immediate holding company, amounts due
to related companies, loans from the ultimate holding
company, loans from the immediate holding company,
loan from a non-controlling shareholder, an available-for-
sale financial investment, a held-to-maturity investment
and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining
and disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:
Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which all inputs which have a
significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 2:

fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which any inputs which have
a significant effect on the recorded fair value
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs)

Level 3:

40.

[ |
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DRERDAESRERE ()

TREENBBEZAABENEMNRSTE
W& B (MIEREFIRNBERHET)
RUEBEESRIARIZEH -

RRMEFF AR BEZIEARBRAT

TR RITRReESR RGBS &
WEZRR - BANE SRR - JIAENK
B REREBERKEREREE 7§
ATAWGRIA ~ T e ARIE K ELAD A AR X
ZEmARE B ENHEARRE -
FEAFE R R E AR RIE - IR
FERT IR AR FRIR ~ BN RARIERL A )
HIE - BNBERERARNIEA - ENRE
NEIFRIE - BREERIBER  BEER
REER - FERBRRER At ES
BIRE  BEINMREUARNMERITRE
fERZ ARE  WREREHRS  £2
RA/ZETAREHREE -

DPRESHERE
REBFERATEREBETRTESR
TEZRAARE:

B RASEENAERNEEME
ZHRE (RERAB) FEZAA
=

B BEERRFEZARE M
EhFAHCARAAEAS
BERFE G AEEESLD
B AnBREE

B BEERERNEZARE M

ERREYHEARAREAR
BEAREZHAELIFAER
mEEE (TABRBAE)

Annual Report 2012/13 3§~ 217



Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

[ |
31 December 2013
—EF—=F+=-A=+—H

40.

41.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets measured at fair value:

The Group and the Company did not have any financial
assets measured at fair value as at 31 December 2013
and 30 September 2012.

Liabilities measured at fair value:

The Group and the Company did not have any financial
liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December 2013
and 30 September 2012.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, comprise
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, loans from
related parties and cash and short term deposits. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly
from its operations. It is, and has been throughout the
period under review, the Group’s policy that no trading
in financial instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s policies for
managing each of these risks are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank and
other borrowings with floating interest rates. The interest
rates and terms of repayment of the Group’s borrowings
are disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements.
The Group’s policy is to obtain the most favourable
interest rates available for its borrowings. Management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

40.

41.

ARBEEREE (&)
BARBEHECEE
RZE—=F+_A=+—RAKk=ZF—Z=
FRA=Z+H  AEBRARRWELM
BRARBEHEZEMEE -
BAREEZEE
RZE—=F+-_A=+—RAKk=ZF—=
FNLA=F+H  NEBRARR)WELM
BARBEZEHEE -

MERBEERERBE

AEEZTESRTIABENRRITRE
MmER BEIERUAERE REME
R REFEMTIAZTRANIAREHE
EBEE - AKEEZEAMEREEN
BE WERERBEXRBZREESERER
RENBEZER - AEBHRBERER
CEMEA—EMEETEANSRMTAR
5 0

REFEBSBTAY X EAKATIER
o HERKR - EERBRRADESA
W - ARERERSEWARZHERL
mF -

=k

AEEFEEMSMNEEHRERERREN
SEFRRTREMERAR - AEEE
KR K BRI M B R A 31 AR
B AEEZBRRNAEEFRFRRESR
MEk-BERERABEENXRER  HAH
EHEREIPER 2 RER
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41.

AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a

reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all

other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit after

tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings) and

the Group’s and the Company’s equity.

[ |
31 December 2013
—E—=F+-_A=+—H

BERABEEREERBEK (&)

FEmEkE ()

TEIITEFERMBRTRZERT
ARERBENF (FBATTRRZ
YB) U RARE S AR TS B
BB 7 HAE DT o

Group Company
56 LN
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in profit in profit
Increase/ after tax Increase/ after tax
(decrease) and equity* (decrease) and equity*
in basis points BH&ERN in basis points BB &R
Y  REzmzEm B REZZEN
E#/(TR) /B LR /(TR) /(AD)*
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BET T
31 December 2013 “E-Z£+ZA=+—H
Hong Kong dollar B 200 - - -
Renminbi ARE 200 - - -
United States dollar e 200 - - -
Hong Kong dollar B (200) - - -
Renminbi AEE (200) - - -
United States dollar e (200) — - =
30 September 2012 —E-ZFNA=TH
Hong Kong dollar oL 200 (14,439) 200 (14,439)
Renminbi ARE 200 (825) - -
United States dollar e 200 - - -
Hong Kong dollar o (200) - (200) -
Renminbi ARE (200) 825 - -
United States dollar e (200) - - -

* Excluding retained profits/accumulated losses

* TEERESF S REEE
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41.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

As most of the operating income of the Group’s business
is denominated in RMB and assets held and certain of the
borrowings of the Group are substantially denominated in
RMB, the Group is exposed to foreign currency risk. As
RMB was expected to fluctuate, the Group had entered
into RMB forward contracts in last financial year to fix
the exchange rates ahead of a highly probable future
payment of land premium for the Shenzhen project. All the
contracts were settled in last financial year. The Group
will continue to consider the suitability and cost efficiency
of hedging foreign currency risk exposure in view of
recent changes in the global financial environment.

On 31 December 2013, assuming that RMB appreciated
by 4% (2012:
remained unchanged, then equity of the Group would
have decreased by HK$121,242,000 (30 September 2012
(restated): increased by HK$1,221,000).

1%) against HKS$, and all other factors

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties except for the sales of properties, for which
no credit is given to the customers. It is the Group’s
policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms
are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis

and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise deposits and other receivables, an available-for-
sale financial investment, a held-to-maturity investment,
an amount due from a non-controlling shareholder,
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, restricted cash,
and deposits, bank and cash balances, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

41.

BERABEEREERBEK (&)
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REBPDAAREEHE - MAKEAZIMNE
% HRNEHARBSHBAKE - A&
BRE-—VMREFERNITILARBERS
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. There are no significant concentrations of credit
risk within the Group as the Group’s trade receivables are
widely dispersed in different sectors.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables are disclosed in notes 23
and 24 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows
from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
loans from related parties and interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings. The Group will consistently
maintain a prudent financing policy and ensure that it
maintains sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its
liquidity requirements. Through maintaining a reasonable
proportion in its assets and liabilities structure, the
Group is able to meet its ongoing financial needs. At 31
December 2013, all (30 September 2012: 82%) of the
Group’s debts, which comprise loans from related parties
and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, would
mature in less than one year from the reporting date
based on the carrying values of borrowings reflected in
the financial statements.

41.

[ |
31 December 2013
—E—=F+-_A=+—H

BERABEEREERBEK (&)

FERR (&)

HRASEERENE R EEBREZFE=T
BOIRS  WEFTHRERR - ARAE
Bz EREESEREZD BN TRER
BAEEYBEEXEFEERR -

BERAKEREEBEEZRR RERE
MR 2 EEREE — S ELBIE
TP R M 5T 23 M 244K BR ©

RBEEER

AEBFEBERADESTETE - &%
EadRER AR TEEEESHTA
RemBEE (PIMEKE SRR Z22H
AUREERE BT RERE °

AEBZBEERBATRBESER - U
R BRI REMER  #EHESNSE
MEHBEE M2 FE -  AEBBFES
BERZBERR  UHRREEFTRZ
BeREERE BEURCRDHESS
ko BREIFEERBBEREBZAER
Bl - REBERMEEFEVHEERR R
BUMBHRERARMRZEFRERE  RZF
—=F+ZA=+—8 " &x&£@HmEF (=
T-—_FHLA=+H:82%) FHE (&
RHERER  URMERITREME
P BMEABRBER—FZ2HEAE
Eﬁo
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[ |
31 December 2013

—=%+-A=+—8H
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. BIBEREEEEREX (&)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRR (&)
The maturity profiles of the Group’s and the Company’s RIBEHIER KB T4 KB AN =H 5
financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, W AEBRAATLSBEES DA
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, are SR
as follows:
Group
s |
3 to less than
Lessthan 12 months
3 months Az 1105 Over
On demand SR SR years 5 years Total
BEX =f8R T=faR oSt BENE gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETR BETR AET T BETT BETR
At 31 December 2013 RZB-ZE+ZA=t-R
Trade payables EFERERN 362,934 - - - - 362,934
Financial liabilities included in advanced I ATBYGIE - EERERR 144,640 - - - - 144,640
receipts, accruals and other payables ApERES 2BER
Loans from the ultimate holding company ~ HAERATER - 36,253 2,448,001 - - 2,484,254
Loans from the immediate holding company  ERZERAFEH - 11,631 1,205,229 - - 1,216,860
Loan from a non-controling shareholder ~ FEi2f xﬁxiﬁ‘ﬁ - 1,499 156,577 - - 158,076
Due to the ulfimate holding company F‘EHE'W“HE 243,514 - - - - 243,514
Due to the immediate holding company BRI 66,625 - - - - 66,625
Due to non-controlling shareholders Fgﬁiﬂ“ﬁxﬂx?i 81,544 - - - - 81,544
Due to fellow subsidiaries EfRAZHBAR 1,299 = = = = 1,299
Due to related companies EREEL TTAIE 580 - - - - 580
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings it B3T RE &3t - 2,740 281,917 - - 284,657
0,1% 5128 409172 - - 500498
At 30 September 2012 (Restated) RZE-ZERA=1R (E5])
Trade payables EEHER 27,652 208 255 37 - 28,152
Financial liabilities included in advanced  FIATENFE « it RIRER 112,184 327 900 405 127 113,043
recelpts, accruals and other payables AbERES 2BER
Loans from the ultimate holding company ~ HEERATER - - 38,184 - - 38,184
Due to the immediate holding company BN EZZRAAZE 827,148 - - - - 827,148
Due to a non-controlling shareholder EREERRERE 76,590 - - - - 76,590
Due to a related company ERBELDHE 189 - - - - 189
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings M BT RE{E - 5677 1137777 268,291 - 1481745
1,043,763 76,212 1,177,116 268,733 127 2,565,951
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41.
AND POLICIES (continued)

[ |
31 December 2013
—=%F+=-HA=+—H

MHEREREBRRBE (&)

Liquidity risk (continued) RBELRM (&)
Company
N
3 to less than
Less than 12 months
3 months SEES 1105
On demand D SR years Total
REX =fiR T=faR ¥t gt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
L BBt BT EBTR BT
At 31 December 2013 R-%-=£+ZA=1-8
Financial liabiliies included in N 9,434 - - - 9,434
accruals and other payables PR Zﬁﬁﬂﬁf
Due to subsidiaries EHER 7,902 - - - 7,902
Loan from the immediate holding company E%HM ‘5* - 7,101 736,018 5 743,119
Due to the immediate holding company ERERERDTNE 2,480 - - - 2,480
19,816 7,101 736,018 - 762,935
At 30 September 2012 RZZ-ZFAAZTA
Financial liabilities included in SINERRREREM 5928 - - 2 5,948
accruals and other payables ERET 208G
Due to subsidiaries ERHBAANE 34,016 - - - 34,016
Interest-bearing bank borrowing hERAER - 4,900 720,000 - 724,900
39,944 4900 720,000 20 764,864
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31 December 2013

—=

41.

=F+-_A=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability and the Company’s
financial capabilities to run operations on a going concern
basis and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the period ended
31 December 2013 and the year ended 30 September
2012.

41.

BERABEEREERBEK (&)

BEXxERE
AEEEANERZTZRABRAERREAE
BRBKEBEP 2N RARRZHMG
BN URERRBERZEARNLE U
HEBMBBRRFREAEE -

REBEEE NG A RIRB LB R
BRBEBREECRBRSEBIEL AR - K&
BRI ASEBARERRIRE KRS - MR
REBERNBITHR  URIFLFAEE
KEEE -BEE-_E—=F+-_A=+—H
HEARBE-_Z——FAA=+AL
FEA BREAZERE BEIREFIL
mEE -
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41.

AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
the total of loans from related parties and short and long
term interest-bearing bank and other borrowings divided
by total equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain the
gearing ratio less than 150% and comply with the relevant
requirements of bank loan agreements. The gearing ratios
as at the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

31 December 2013 .
—=%F+=-HA=+—H

BERABEEREERBEK (&)

EXERE (&)

AEEFABELE (AEEFER - U
ek R BRI REMER 2258
PRUAERBEE) BEIEER o REE K
TS BEL REMN150% - AR ESTIR
TERBZHBRTE - RBEERZE
fELL R

Group

rEE
31 December 30 September
2013 2012
—E-=F —ET——F
+=A=+-—H hA=+H
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT
(Restated)
(&31)
Loans from the ultimate holding company REERARER 2,390,677 35,424
Loans from the immediate holding company ~EB&ZERAFER 1,179,226 -
Loan from a non-controlling shareholder FIERRRE R 151,996 -
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings M 88817 R E M E R 279,176 1,438,583
Total debts EBERE 4,001,075 1,474,007
Total equity iR 7,104,624 3,804,512
Gearing ratio BELE 56% 39%
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[ |
31 December 2013

—=

42.

43.

44.

=F+-_A=+—H

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 7 March 2014, the Company entered into a loan
agreement with a syndicate of banks on a club deal basis
for a 3-year term loan facility in the principal amount of
up to US$185 million. The purpose of the loan facility is to
refinance the existing indebtedness of the Company and
the Group’s corporate funding requirements.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

In addition to the restatement of comparative figures
as a result of the application of merger accounting
as explained in note 2.1, certain comparative figures
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss have
been reclassified to conform with the current period’s
presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of directors on 7 March 2014.

42.

43.

44,

REHPRER

Z—NFE=AtAH AAFEKEE
ERZERBITIL—DER G
SR 4 & = #185,000,000% T 2 =
BERRE  ZEXRESARARTR

EEEMERMMEAEBHERBES

F=sk o

B ||

¥

aﬂf%m%ﬁ%

EEBEF

HRER A G5 (2. 1PrAER) T
FRULBRBFEII  GRABRERZET
HERFEEINNATEARE 2R

HEMBHRE

BBRREXN_-_ZF-NF=-ALHEES
FHUE R IRRETIE
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Continuing Obligation under Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules
BELTRAAE1I3EZFHEER

BANKING FACILITIES WITH COVENANTS RELATING
TO SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

In accordance with the requirements under rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules, the directors of the Company report below details
of loan facilities, which existed during the 15 months ended 31
December 2013 and up to the date of the annual report, and
included conditions relating to specific performance of the
controlling shareholder of the Company:

(a) The Company was granted a 3-year term loan facility
of HK$1,000 million on 22 October 2010 for funding the
general working capital requirement of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”). During the period under
review, the undrawn loan facility of HK$280 million was
lapsed upon the expiration of the available drawdown
period. The Facility was fully repaid on 22 October 2013.

Shanghai Zhong Jun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.,
a 54.85% owned subsidiary of the Company, on 7 June
2012, was granted a third extension of 2 years for a
term loan facility of US$36 million, with maturity date of
30 June 2014 for financing the capital expenditure of its
development project.

The Company was granted a 3-year term loan facility of up
to US$185 million on 7 March 2014, with maturity date of
6 March 2017, for refinancing the existing indebtedness
of the Company and the corporate funding requirement
of the Group.

Under the agreements of the above facilities, the Company
undertook to the lenders that the Company would remain as a
subsidiary of Gemdale Corporation or Famous throughout the
duration of the facilities. Failure to perform the undertaking will
constitute an event of default. If the event of default occurs,
the outstanding liabilities under the loan facilities may become
immediately due and payable.

RITHEZNRERARNERRREABITHE
BEEzkH

B EHHRBEIB321EZRE  ARAIESE
WEBRARATEHEE-_E—=F+-_A=+—81t
+REAANEEAFEREG —FFEESHBR
ARABERBRRABITHRESTIEGEZERRE

15

R-E—ZTF+A-+-B KAATHE
% 7 #1,000,000,0007t 2 = F HHE FK @b
& AREAARRIRENBAR ([AE
B]) 2 —MEEMT - NEEBHAN - A
RAJ IR EREE AR E R - KIZW
2 EFELE 5 #280,000,000T ERE 5k
W ZERBMECR-E—=F+A=-+
“HEE#EE -

RARIRIFEL4.85% B 2B AR £
BHEEHNERERRATNRE—ZF
N A BEE A#36,000,000F L2 BER
BMEZFEZINTEH - BEMFE  E=2FT—
MENA=THEH ZEREEAETE
BEB ZEAR MR IRERE -

R-_ZE—NFE=ZALR ARRERRS
#185,000,000% L2 = FHIE KB E -
2T —+F=ANHIE  BAREARR
REEHERERREASEAERBE

THEK e

(c)

REAE LEERGZE - ARF2RERT A
o ARARRERREEER S EBEKE
BB RE - BEAREBITABAG  HEKE
e MBRARBOEMHEL  IRSEREERT
ZAEIRBER B ANE B K 2B T BNE A -
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Particulars of Major Interests in Properties
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1.  PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 1. BERDPYE
Estimated
Site Area Gross Floor
Properties Uses Shareholding (m?) Area (m?)
A EE AEIREEE
LYES Az BRIk R (FFHXK) (FFK)
Mainland China
Hh B K BE
Phases 2 to 5, Shanshui Four Seasons Residential/ 54.85% 535,573 723,800
No.2 Sichen Road and Commercial
No.1 Gu Lang Road, Sijing Town, (EEC
Songjiang District, Shanghai
7K 2RI 88 — 5 55 A
TR
SRR A B 255 M BUR B 1558
Gemdale Vision Apartment Apartment/ 100% 6,585 31,100
Vision Shenzhen Business Park Phase 3, Commercial
High-tech Industrial Park, RNEEHE
Nanshan District, Shenzhen
BT AE
gl ¥ o) 12 (B 58 = BA
ARYIT R LU = B R T A R
Phases 1 to 3, Shenyang Yijing Residential/ 100% 310,286 521,800
No0.300 Wangjiawan, Commercial
Dongling District, Shenyang FE mE
BSERE-—EF=H
&5 T R P& (& F FKIE3005%
Phases 1 to 2, Residential/ 51% 61,361 183,400
Shenyang Riverfront Left Shore Commercial
No.20 Hunnan East Road, F= /B
Dongling District, Shenyang
BSENLFEE—E2FE_H
8 5 Th 5% [ )% B SR B 2055
Phases 1 to 2, Shenyang Yuefeng Residential/ 100% 79,200 225,900
West to Yalujiang, Commercial
Huanggu District, Shenyang T m%



Particulars of Major Interests in Properties

TRYEREHE

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (continued) 1. RHY%¥ (&)
Estimated
Site Area Gross Floor
Properties Uses Shareholding (m?) Area (m?)
A EE REREEE
LYES 2= BRI (FFHXK) (FFK)
Mainland China
B KR
Phases 1 to 3, Dalian Huiquan Residential/ 100% 152,600 235,400
Next to Huiquan Road East, Commercial
Ganjingzi District, Dalian FE /1
REBEERE-EZF=H
A& H HF & R EK R A
Phases 1 to 2, XiangYue TianXia Residential/ 51% 66,053 260,400
South to Nansanhuan Road and Commercial
north to Zhiwuyuan East Road, [EX=S =
Qujiang New District, Xi'an City,
ARRTE—EZFE_H
sl pAR i
= IR LARE RAE Y E SR DAL
Phases 1 to 2A, Yi Hua Nian Residential/ 100% 93,008 275,300
East to Xinkaimen South Road, Commercial
Qujiang New District, Xi'an City, F=E mE
BEFE-FTE_HA
78 22 T T [ 55 B P i B A SR
Phase 2B to 3, YiHua Nian Residential/ 100% 134,235 368,800
North to Jinyang Road, Commercial
south to Tanghua Road and FE,/EE

east to Xinkaimen South Road,
Quijiang New District, Xi'an City
BEFE _BHEE=-H

a2 T HTHT R & F R AL -
FEEERE AR KPR s AR
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TRERERFHS

2. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(a)

(b)

Completed investment properties

Properties

ES

Mainland China
B K BE

Phases 1, 2A, 2B(1) and (2)

Vision Shenzhen Business Park
Shenzhen High-tech Industrial Park,
Nanshan District, Shenzhen
BHMREE - FZA
FB(1)REZB(2)H
AYITE LR S RMEXE

B2 to L6, Sohu.com Internet Plaza
Tsinghua Science Park,
Zhongguancun East Road,
Haidian District, Beijing
BINBEAEB2ELE
ERERETEANREBEENEE

Uses

Rz

Commercial

BES

Commercial

BES

Investment property under construction

Properties

JES

Mainland China
B K BE
Phase 3,

Vision Shenzhen Business Park,
Shenzhen High-tech Industrial Park,
Nanshan District, Shenzhen

B E S =

AYTELERHRMEXER

Uses

itk

Commercial

[GES

Term of

Lease

i R

Medium

]

Medium

]

Term of
Lease

HREH

Medium

]

2.

(a)

REME

RIREWME

Shareholding Status
BRMRR R
100% Rental
HE
60% Rental
HE
(b) HEEREWMEHE
Site Area
Shareholding (m?)
R E A
BRMRR (FFHXK)
100% 44,368

230 Gemdale Properties and Investment Corporation Limited < 05 & 5 E AR A 7

Approximate
Gross Floor
Area (m?)
MOZERE
(FFFHK)

143,000

14,900

Estimated
Gross Floor
Area (m?)
AEFREEE
(FFFHK)

208,900



Particulars of Major Interests in Properties

TRYEREHE

o

H

il

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 3. ZETERYE

Approximate

Gross Floor (m?)/

Properties Uses Shareholding Carpark (units)
MORERE

(EH*K)

LJES A& BRAR B (@)

Hong Kong

S

Car parking spaces of Greenery Place Carpark 100% 57
1 Town Park Road South, B

Yuen Long, New Territories

RBEEFEN

AT LB 15

Mainland China

T KR

Commercial units and clubhouse Commercial 54.85% 13,500
Phase 1, Shanshui Four Seasons [EES

Lane 1888 Sichen Road, Sijing Town,

Songjiang District, Shanghai

L7k Y 235 55 — R

SEBEMRALBEM

T AROT [ R UM PR 2 B 188855

Car parking spaces of Carpark 100% 61
the Ninth ZhongShan (B2

2 Xinglin Street,

ZhongShan District, Dalian

P ILNSREEA

AETHH L & B HE 257
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TRERERFHS

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT HELD BY
JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Properties

ES

Mainland China

B A BE

Tianjin Yijing

Xinzhuang Town, Jinnan District, Tianjin
REBE
REMZHRFHHA

Ningbo Changfeng

Changfeng Village, Zhonggongmiao Road,

Yinzhou District, Ningbo City
BHEY
BEMHMEERBFTEREN

Beijing Mentougou

Gao Jia Yuan, Longquan Town,
Mentougou District, Beijing

It RPFIsEE
IRTFIEERERESK

Uses

R#

Residential/
Commercial

FE/ A%

Residential/
Commercial

FE/d%

Residential/
Commercial

FE/d%

4. HEEZHEBSEZZRTYE

Shareholding

BRRR

50%

50%

50%
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Site Area (m?)
RAEE
(FHK)

142,772

59,088

293,296

Estimated
Gross Floor
Area (m?)
HrtEEEE
(F7HXK)

278,600

145,700

350,300
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